
 
City of Lake Alfred  Phone:  (863) 291‐5270 
120 E. Pomelo Street  Fax: (863) 291‐5317 
Lake Alfred, FL  33850    www.mylakealfred.com 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 

 
CALL TO ORDER: MAYOR CHARLES LAKE 
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  PASTOR BLOCKER 

ROLL CALL: CITY CLERK AMEÉ BAILEY 
 
CITY MANAGER & CITY ATTORNEY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS: ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA 
 

PROCLAMATION – VETERANS DAY 
PROCLAMATION – POLK COUNTY FAMILY WEEK 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1.) CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES FOR OCTOBER 17, 2016 
2.) CITY COMMISSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 
3.) RESOLUTION 11-16: ACCEPTING BUCHANAN PROPERTY 
4.) EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN ADOPTION 
5.) BOARD APPOINTMENTS 

 
AGENDA 

 
1.) ORDINANCE 1372-16: ULDC FLOODPLAIN AMENDMENT 
2.) ORDINANCE 1373-16: COMP PLAN AMENDMENT TO ADD MIXED USE 
3.) ORDINANCE 1374-16: FUTURE LAND USE FOR GAPWAY GROVES 
4.) ORDINANCE 1375-16: ZONING PUD FOR GAPWAY GROVES 
5.) ORDINANCE 1376-16: FY 2015/16 FINAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 
6.) PURCHASE: PUBLIC WORKS VEHICLE 

 
RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS (PLEASE LIMIT YOUR COMMENTS TO 5 MINUTES.)   
 
COMMISSIONER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS: 
 
VICE MAYOR DALEY 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY 
MAYOR LAKE    -    ADJOURN





 
 
 

Proclamation 
To recognize November 11th - 18th as Polk County Family Week. 

 
WHEREAS, the quality of our community life begins within the homes of individual families.  
 
WHEREAS, families are indispensable to a stable and free society. 
 
WHEREAS, family traditions and values help make America compassionate, and hopeful. 
 
WHEREAS, corporations, non-profit agencies, government entities, faith based groups, schools and 
families themselves, have an important role to play in building successful families. 
 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Lake Alfred formally recognize the week of 
November 11-18th as 
 

"Polk County Family Week” 
 
 

in the City of Lake Alfred and urges all families to unite, honor and celebrate together. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunder set my hand this 7th day of November, 2016. 
 
 
                         

Charles O. Lake, Mayor 
      City of Lake Alfred, Florida 
 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
 

1.)  OCTOBER 17, 2016 CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Draft Minutes 
 

ANALYSIS:  Please review the minutes at your earliest convenience and if there are 
any questions, comments or concerns please contact the City Clerk, Ameé Bailey at 
(863) 291-5747.  
 
 

 
 

2.)  CITY COMMISSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 
ANALYSIS:  Each of the meetings/ events scheduled below may be constitute a public 
meeting at which two or more City Commissioners or Planning Board Members may 
attend and discuss issues that may come before the City Commissioners.    
 

Date Meeting/ event Location Time 
November 10, 2016 Ridge League of Cities Board 

Meeting 
Auburndale 
Recreation Hall 

6:30 pm 

November 11, 2016 Veterans Day Ceremony City of Auburndale 
Downtown Park 

11:00 am 

November 16, 2016 Planning Board City Hall 6:00 pm 
November 17, 2016 Parks and Recreation Board City Hall 6:00 pm 
November 17, 2016 Code Enforcement Special 

Magistrate Hearing 
City Hall 3:00 pm 

 
 
  



October 17, 2016 DRAFT City Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 7  
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CITY OF LAKE ALFRED 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY OCTOBER 17, 2016 

7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 

 
Call to Order: Mayor Charles Lake 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance: Pastor Strawn 
 
Roll Call: Those in attendance were Mayor Charles Lake, Vice Mayor Nancy Daley, 
Commissioner John Duncan, Commissioner Jack Dearmin, and Commissioner Albertus 
Maultsby.   
 
Staff attendance: City Manager Ryan Leavengood, City Attorney Frederick John Murphy, City 
Clerk Ameé Bailey-Speck, Police Chief Art Bodenheimer, Public Works Director John Deaton, 
Parks and Recreation Director Richard Weed, and Community Development Director Valerie 
Vaught. 
 

CITY MANAGER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated there are several Lake Alfred Public Library events including 
Family Fear Factor on Saturday, October 29th from 5 till 7 pm.  The event will include a 
Halloween costume contest, games, and strange things to touch and eat.  Contact the Library 
for more information.   
 
The Good Old Days festival will be held on October 22nd from 4 pm to 8 pm.  The event will be 
a street party on E. Pomelo and feature family friendly events, old-fashioned sack races, horse 
shoe courts, dunk tank, competitions, and vintage cars.  Contact Parks and Recreation for more 
details. 
 
Mackay Gardens and Lakeside Preserve will host a free astronomy workshop on Saturday 
October 29th from 7 to 10 pm and a gardening workshop on Thursday November 3rd at 10 am.  
Contact the Parks and Recreation Department for more details. 
 
City Offices and the Public Library will be closed on November 11th in honor of Veterans Day.  
Also at 11 am the Cities of Lake Alfred and Auburndale will host a Veterans Day event at the 
Auburndale Downtown Park. The speaker will be Kelsey Ashbrook , a Auburndale High School 
graduate who was accepted into all four military academies.  She is currently in the Naval 
Academy.  
 
Jeff Tillman, former Parks and Recreation Manager was named as the Assistant City Manager 
in Auburndale. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department is now accepting applications for the 2016 Lake Alfred 
Christmas Parade (Saturday, December 3rd). The theme this year is “An Enchanted Christmas.”   
Applications are due by November 23rd   Contact Parks and Recreation Department for more 
information. 



October 17, 2016 DRAFT City Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 7  
 

 
The City Commission received the invitation for the CVC/Sandars Real Estate event.  Please let 
the City Clerk or City Manager know if you plan to attend. 
 
City Manager Leavengood gave an update on the preparation that occurred for Hurricane 
Matthew.  He thanked the Fire Department and Public Works Department for their efforts.   
 
The City Manager provided a tax exemption letter to Mr. Juday for $10,000 rather than the 
$5,000 previously mentioned for the new City sign.  When Mr. Juday found out that the original 
$5,000 did not cover the cost of the sign, he donated another $5,000. 
 

CITY ATTORNEY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
City Attorney Frederick John Murphy stated they have closed on several real estate 
transactions for the City and the Ad Valorem assessment has been certified 
 

RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS 
 
No citizen comments. 
 
PROCLAMATION – GOVERNMENT WEEK 
 
Mayor Lake read the proclamation and encouraged all citizens, city government officials and 
employees to recognize this week, celebrate, and encourage educational partnerships between 
city government and schools.  The City is trying to encourage partnerships with the local 
schools, so students can learn about local government. 
 
PROCLAMATION – COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 
Mayor Lake read the proclamation and encouraged civil engagement.  Community 
Development Director Valerie Vaught accepted the proclamation.   
 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION - ASHLEY PUTNEY – 5 YEARS 
 
Police Chief Art Bodenheimer stated that Ashley Putney began her career with the Lake 
Alfred Police Department on 10/17/2011. She had previous communications operator 
experience with the Polk County Sheriff's Office for 4 years before coming to Lake Alfred Police 
Department. 
 
During the time Ashley has been with the department she has been a vital part of training and 
the certification for all operators within the department. With her previous experience from 
PCSO on the Tiburon Mobile Com, she has been able to teach both communicators and officers 
on the proper use and implementation of Mobile Com. Ashley has also assisted with record 
entry and request in the absence of the Communications Coordinator. 
 
Ashley has a good rapport with the public that she interacts with and is willing to help others 
within various departments in the City. She is a pleasure to work with and has the ability to 
assist where ever needed. 
 
 



October 17, 2016 DRAFT City Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 7  
 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION - SUE GAUDLAP – 10 YEARS 
 
Public Works Director John Deaton stated that Sue Gaudlap has been a part of Public Works 
for 10 years and is responsible for keeping everything straight.  She came to the City of Lake 
Alfred on 10/30/2006. Since she is an exemplary employee, in 2009 Sue was honored by being 
voted Employee of the Year for the City of Lake Alfred. She has gained respect from her 
colleagues and sincerely appreciates her job. Sue has taken over the administrative duties for 
the Cemetery and is a vital part of the Public Works Department. Congratulations for your 10 
year tenure with the City of Lake Alfred and entrance into the City Retirement System.  This a 
great achievement and goal for the any employee.   
 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION - VALERIE VAUGHT - 15 YEARS 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated that the proclamation was timely since Community 
Development is such a critical component to the City services, which is not always seen.  Other 
services such as streets, water, and emergency services are visible to the public.   Community 
Development is essential in the quality of the community.  Valerie Way came to the City of Lake 
Alfred, after attending the Mayors Youth Council, in 1999.  She started her career with the City 
as a part-time temporary file clerk and worked her way through the following positions including 
Administrative Clerk, Acting Assistant City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, City Clerk, City Clerk and 
Assistant to the City Manager, and now in her current position as Community Development 
Director.  Valerie is a key part of the City’s Management Team and part of many high profile 
projects in the community including the Downtown Master Plan, establishment of the 
Community Redevelopment Agency, and recent downtown wayfinding program.  Valerie brings 
a high level of professionalism to the City improving the processes and outcomes within her 
department and adding value to the organization as a whole.  Her staff and the community have 
benefited from her leadership and commitment to public service for these past fifteen years.  
Congratulations  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Commissioner Duncan moved to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Commissioner 
Dearmin.  The motion was approved by unanimous voice call vote.  
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1.) PURCHASE: VEHICLE REPLACEMENT 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated the current FY 16/17 budget includes $25,000 for the 
purchase of a replacement vehicle in the Parks and Recreation department. The proposed 
purchase is for a 2017 Ford F150 super crew pickup truck consistent with recent vehicle 
replacement purchases. The vehicle will replace a 1999 F-150 extended cab that is at the end 
of its service life. 
 



October 17, 2016 DRAFT City Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 7  
 

City staff has solicited the following bids for the purchase: 
 Bartow Ford: $24,730 
 Weikert Ford: $23,048 
 Bill Jarrett Ford: $23,141 

 
Retail purchase price of the vehicle is $35,140. 
 
Staff recommended the purchase of a F150 pickup truck from Weikert Ford in the amount of 
$23,048. 
 
Commissioner Duncan asked if the vehicle was set-up with all needed equipment.   
 
Commissioner Maultsby asked how long the 1999 vehicle would be kept.   
 
Richard Weed Parks and Recreation Director, responded that the vehicle comes equipped 
with a recess hitch, supper crew cab, no tool box can purchase separately. 
 
John Deaton Public Works Director, responded that 2-3 vehicles in the utility yard will be sold 
on Gov Deals next month, which is open to the public to bid. 
 
Vice Mayor Daley moved to approve the purchase of a F150 super crew pickup truck from 
Weikert Ford in the amount of $23,048, seconded by Commissioner Duncan.  The motion was 
approved by unanimous voice call vote. There were no citizen comments. 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
2.) BID AWARD: HUGHES BUILDING RENOVATION 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated the warehouse (former Hughes Building), while the building 
is structurally sound, a partial renovation of the interior and exterior is necessary to bring it into 
full operational use including: repairing sections of rotten wood; installing interior sheetrock; new 
interior doors; pressure washing and painting of the exterior. The City Manager showed pictures 
of the interior and exterior and discussed the proposed renovations and possible uses.   
 
The current FY 16/17 budget includes $100,000 in general government impact fees to fund 
project.  As the Hughes building is an expansion of existing operations general government 
impact fees can be used to fund the renovation and improvements.   
 
City staff has solicited the following bids for the renovation project: 
 Watts Construction (Haines City): $42,600 
 A. Goff & Associates (Lake Alfred): $44,580 
 Henkelman Construction (Lakeland): $63,662 

 
Staff recommended awarding the bid to Watts Construction in the amount of $42,600 for the 
renovation of the Hughes Building. 



October 17, 2016 DRAFT City Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 7  
 

 
Commissioner Maultsby asked if the City has contracted with Watts previously.   
 
Mayor Lake asked about space in the building for the Historical Society to store chairs. 
 
City Manager Leavengood responded that Watts has completed several projects with the City 
including the bridge at MacKay, football concession, memorial, and new sign.  He stated that 
the facility can most likely accommodate the Historical Society needs.   
 
Michael Strawn, asked what other plans the City has for the building. 
 
City Manager Leavengood responded that the building will generally be used for operational 
storage to open up space at the public works yard and allow parks and recreation to have their 
own storage area.   
 
Commissioner Dearmin moved to approve to award the bid to Watts Construction in the 
amount of $42,600 for the renovation of the Hughes Building, seconded by Commissioner 
Maultsby.  The motion was approved by unanimous voice call vote. There were no citizen 
comments. 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
3.) RIDGE LEAGUE BOARD APPOINTMENT 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated City has received a renewal notice from the Ridge League of 
Cities. The renewal includes a section for the selection of a Board Member and Alternate Board 
Member to service on the Board of Directors for the Ridge League of Cities. Vice Mayor Daley is 
currently the Commission representative serving on the Board. 
 
The action item before the City Commission is to select a Board Member and Alternate Board 
Member for the FY 16/17 fiscal year. 
 
Mayor Lake stated he was interested in serving on the Board and previously was not aware of 
how the appointment was made.  He stated that Vice Mayor Daley has been on the Board for 
several years. 
 
Vice Mayor Daley responded that she generally asks the Commission in September about 
continuing her appointment on the board prior to the September meeting of the Ridge League 
when the new members are sworn in.  This year there was no swearing–in since the entire 
board moved up in positions mid-year due to a vacancy.  She stated that the Mayor is on 
several committees and she would like to continue to serve on the Ridge League Board.  She 
stated she is working on a grant committee.  Each Member City of the Ridge League selects a 
member for the Ridge League Board.   
 
City Attorney Frederick John Murphy stated that the Commission could discuss the 
appointment or hold a vote.  
 



October 17, 2016 DRAFT City Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 7  
 

Commissioner Maultsby asked when the Mayor and Vice Mayor were up for re-election. 
 
They responded that they both will be up in March.   
 
Mayor Lake nominated himself as the Board Member to the Ridge League of Cities.   
 
Commissioner Maultsby nominated Vice Mayor Daley as the Board Member to the Ridge 
League of Cities.   
 
City Attorney Frederick John Murphy stated that the Commission can vote for one of the 
Commissioners nominated.  The City Clerk handed out paper and each Commissioner cast their 
vote and signed their ballot.  The City Clerk tallied the votes and the City Attorney read the 
results.  Vice Mayor Daley received three votes (Daley, Maultsby, and Dearmin) and Mayor 
Lake received two votes (Lake and Duncan).   
 
Commissioner Duncan moved to appoint Mayor Lake as the Alternate Member to the Ridge 
League of Cities, seconded by Commissioner Maultsby.  The motion was approved by 
unanimous voice call vote.  
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
 

RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS 
 
There were no citizen comments. 
 

COMMISSIONER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Duncan stated that he and City Manager Leavengood are signed-up for the 
dunk tank on October 29th at the Methodist Church.  The Ridge Art Show drop-off is scheduled 
for November 4th and 5th from 8 am to 4 pm and then till noon on Saturday.  The judges will 
critique Saturday at 2:30 pm.   The reception is tentatively scheduled for the 10th.  
 
Commissioner Dearmin stated the dedications show how great the staff is and the activities 
are great.   
 
Commissioner Maultsby stated he appreciates the way the City works and how the 
Commission gets along even when they disagree.  He appreciated his Commission update.   
 
Mayor Lake stated he was a judge at the animal hospital.  He is headed to Tallahassee with the 
City Manager tomorrow to speak to the grant board regarding the Gardner House.  Then they 
will attend the Water Coop meeting the following day.  He is scheduled to judge costumes at the 
Fear Factor event at the library on the 29th.  He is looking forward to the Good Ole Days event 
this Saturday. 
 
Vice Mayor Daley stated she appreciated the opportunity to continue to serve as the Ridge 
League of Cities Director.  Mackay has a workday tomorrow and every Tuesday.  She 



October 17, 2016 DRAFT City Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 7  
 

congratulated the employees that received their longevity awards tonight.  She also attended 
the Discovery Academy Literacy Night and spoke to the kids about reading and her travels and 
careers.   
 
Police Chief Art Bodenheimer stated that the Police Department would be participating in the 
Prescription Pill Drop-off this Saturday from 10-1 pm.   
 
City Attorney Frederick John Murphy stated that newly elected Commissioner of the Canal 
Commission, Tracy Mercer, is in attendance tonight. 
 
With there being no further business to discuss, Mayor Lake adjourned the meeting at 8:24 pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Ameé Bailey 
City Clerk 
 

 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 
 

3.) RESOLUTION 11-16: ACCEPTING BUCHANAN PROPERTY 

 
ISSUE: The City Commission will consider approval of Resolution 11-16 accepting 
conveyance of vacant land on the corner of Shinn Blvd and Columbia St. W. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Resolution 11-16 
 
ANALYSIS: The proposed resolution formally accepts and completes the property 
purchase of vacant land from James Buchanan and Carol Walker that the City 
Commission has previously approved. 
 
Adequate record to affirm to the conveyance of the property. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 11-16. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  1 1 - 1 6  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA; AFFIRMATIVELY 
ACCEPTING THE CONVEYANCES OF THOSE CERTAIN 
REAL PROPERTIES FROM JAMES C. BUCHANAN AND 
CAROL JOANN WALKER, F/K/A CAROL JOANN 
BUCHANAN TO THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA, 
AS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN THE 
WARRANTY DEED AND THE QUIT CLAIM DEED BOTH 
EXECUTED BY JAMES C. BUCHANAN AND CAROL 
JOANN WALKER, F/K/A CAROL JOANN BUCHANAN ON 
SEPTEMBER 27, 2016, AND DELIVERED TO THE CITY 
OF LAKE ALFRED AND RECORDED ON SEPTEMBER 
30, 2016, IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 9948, PAGES 
941 THROUGH 944, PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Alfred and James C. Buchanan and Carol Joann 

Walker, f/k/a Carol Joann Buchanan entered into a Vacant Land Contract (hereinafter 
“Contract”) approved by the City of Lake Alfred City Commission which provided for the 
purchase and sale of certain real property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a closing of the transaction contemplated in the Contract took place 
and on September 30, 2016, James C. Buchanan and Carol Joann Walker, f/k/a Carol 
Joann Buchanan delivered that Warranty Deed and Quit Claim Deed for the real 
properties more particularly described therein and attached hereto as Composite Exhibit 
“A” and incorporated herein by reference to the City of Lake Alfred, Florida; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Warranty Deed was recorded on September 30, 2016, in 
Official Records Book 9948, Pages 941 through 942, public records of Polk County, 
Florida, and said Quit Claim Deed was recorded on September 30, 2016, in Official 
Records Book 9948, Pages 943 through 944, public records of Polk County, Florida. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the City Commission of the City of 
Lake Alfred, Florida: 

 
1. The City Commission of the City of Lake Alfred, Florida hereby affirmatively 

accepts from James C. Buchanan and Carol Joann Walker, f/k/a Carol Joann 
Buchanan the conveyance of said real properties described in that Warranty 
Deed dated September 27, 2016, and recorded on September 30, 2016, in 
Official Records Book 9948, Pages 941 through 942, and in that Quit Claim 
Deed dated September 27, 2016, and recorded on September 30, 2016, in 
Official Records Book 9948, Pages 943 through 944, public records of Polk 



2 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  1 1 - 1 6  

County, Florida, copies of which are attached hereto as  
Composite Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage. 
 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED by the City Commission of the City of Lake Alfred, 

Florida, in a regular session, this 7th day of November, 2016. 
 

      CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA 
      CITY COMMISSION 
 
             
      Charles O. Lake, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
       
      
Ameé Bailey Speck, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 

 
 

      
Frederick J. Murphy, Jr., City Attorney 
 



3 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  1 1 - 1 6  
 

 COMPOSITE EXHIBIT “A” 

 



4 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  1 1 - 1 6  

COMPOSITE EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 



5 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  1 1 - 1 6  

COMPOSITE EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 



6 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  1 1 - 1 6  

COMPOSITE EXHIBIT “A” 

 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 
 
4.) EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN ADOPTION 
 
 

ISSUE:  The City Commission will consider the adoption of the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Plan for 2016 through 2018. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

 Equal Employment Opportunity Plan 
 
ANALYSIS:  In September of 2014, the City Commission approved the Equal 
Employment Opportunity (EEO) Plan that was effective until September 30, 2016. The 
EEO plans are required by certain state and federal agencies when applying for grant 
funding.  Additionally, the proposed plan is consistent with and reinforces the City’s 
personnel policies providing for equal opportunity in hiring practices and continued 
employment. 
 
This proposed plan for the 2016-2018 term has been reviewed and revised with new 
formatting, language, and current utilization statistical information. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the 2016-2018 Equal Employment 
Opportunity Plan. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

City of Lake Alfred 
155 E. Pomelo Street 
Lake Alfred, Florida 33850 
(863) 291‐5747 

 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY PLAN 

2016-2018 

Ameé Bailey
City Clerk / Human Resources 

The City of Lake Alfred is an equal opportunity, affirmative action employer.



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                        Introduction 

INTRODUCTION 
 

The  City  of  Lake  Alfred  (City)  is  an  equal  opportunity,  affirmative  action  employer.    The  City  has 

established and maintains an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) for the City since 2004.   The 

plan  is a method of documenting  the organization’s  commitment  to equal opportunity  for all people 

without  regard  to  race,  religion, color, age, sex, national origin, disability, marital status, or any other 

factors  that cannot  lawfully be considered  in employing people.   This EEO Plan  is based on  the City’s 

desire  to  provide  an  equitable  personnel  management  system  addressing  equal  opportunities  for 

employment, placement,  training, promotion, and  salary  for all applicants and employees.   The City’s 

EEOP examines  the City’s current workforce by EEO  job categories, analyzes  the utilization of women 

and minorities, identifies goals to address any underutilization, and establishes measurable objectives to 

meet those goals.  

 

The  concepts  of  Equal  Employment  Opportunity  (EEO)  and  Affirmative  Action  (AA)  are  intended  to 

promote  fair  and  equitable  personnel  practices  within  the  City  of  Lake  Alfred.    As  such,  the  City 

continues a long standing commitment to the philosophies of each program.  The City supports and shall 

cooperate fully with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and executive orders in all 

employment policies, practices, and decisions including, but not limited to:   

 

The Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution, Title VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 

amended in 1972, Equal Pay Act of 1963, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, Americans 

with Disabilities Act of 1990, Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992, and all other 

relevant federal and state civil rights laws and funding agency guidelines. 

 

Equal Employment Opportunities Plan can be defined as the method used to analyze labor market data 

and employment practices.  The information is then used to identify and eliminate all barriers within the 

City’s employment practices  that may  limit  the participation of women, minorities, or other qualified 

employees to reach their full potential within all levels of the organization. Its purpose is to ensure the 

opportunity  for  full and equal participation of men and women  in  the workplace,  regardless of  race, 

color, or national origin. 

 

The  term  Affirmative  Action  was  first  used  to  mean  the  removal  of  “artificial  barriers”  to  the 

employment of women and minority group members.  It now refers to compensatory opportunities for 

previously disadvantaged groups –  specific efforts  to  recruit, hire, and promote qualified members of 

disadvantaged groups for the purpose of eliminating the present effects of past discrimination. 

 

This EEOP does not establish quotas or lower minimum performance levels for entry level positions and 

promotional  opportunities  to  correct  any  instances  of  under‐utilization.    However,  it  is  designed  to 

create a “level playing  field’  in which women and minorities can achieve  their  full potential based on 

equal employment opportunities. 

 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                              Table of Contents 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

INTRODUCTION 

SECTION 1  Policy Statements                1 

Equal Employment Opportunity 

Nondiscrimination 

ADA Statement 

Grant requirements 

Certification 

SECTION 2  Workforce Information                4 

City of Lake Alfred 

Polk County 

SECTION 3  Utilization Analysis and Findings             6 

Equal Opportunity 

Affirmative Action 

Police Department Analysis 

Underutilization 

SECTION 4  Goals, Objectives, and Strategies             13 

Goals 

Objectives 

Processes and Procedures 

New and Continued Strategies 

SECTION 5  Responsibilities                 18 

Plan Dissemination  

 

 

TABLES 

 

TABLE 1   Grant Awards 2015‐2016              2 

TABLE 2   Polk County Workforce by Job Category            5 

TABLE 3   Opportunity Elements – Fiscal Year Comparison          6 

TABLE 4   City of Lake Alfred Workforce by Job Category          7 

TABLE 5   Police Department Workforce by Job Category          8 

TABLE 6   Law Enforcement Rank Chart              8 

TABLE 7   City Incumbent Workforce by Job Category          9 

TABLE 8   Police Department Incumbent Workforce by Job Category       10 

TABLE 9   Underutilization BY Job Category            10 

TABLE 10   City of Lake Alfred Workforce Utilization Table          11 

TABLE 11  Police Department Workforce Utilization Table          12 

TABLE 12  Salary Schedule and Position Classifications – FY 16/17        16 

 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                                     1 | P a g e  

SECTION 1 

POLICY STATEMENTS 

 

Equal Employment Opportunity 

 

The City of Lake Alfred is an Equal Employment Opportunity Employer.  The City shall take affirmative action to 

assure equal opportunity in all personnel actions; regardless of race, color, sex, religion, age, national origin, or 

other factors that cannot  lawfully be considered in employing people.  Personnel actions include, but are not 

limited to: 

 

 Recruiting, hiring, and promotion programs in all job categories. 

 Decisions regarding employment and administration. 

 Terms  and  conditions  of  employment  such  as,  compensation,  benefits,  transfers,  training,  job 

opportunities, layoffs, recalls, and education. 

 Employee incentives. 

 Use and access to City facilities. 

 

The  City  firmly  believe  that  equal  employment  opportunity  can  only  be  achieved  through  demonstrated 

leadership and  implementation of a viable Equal Opportunity Employment Plan.   This plan sets forth specific 

affirmative  action  and  equal  employment  opportunity  responsibilities  for  department  heads,  managers, 

superintendents,  and  all  of  our  colleagues.    All  associates  are  expected  to  comply  with  this  policy  and 

demonstrate respect for others in the workplace.  It is imperative that all department heads, superintendents, 

and managers make  personnel  and  employment  decisions  in  accordance with  City  of  Lake  Alfred  policies, 

practices, and procedures.  Any employee of the City who fails to comply with this policy shall be subject to the 

appropriate disciplinary action. 

 

The City’s commitment to this policy is complete.  It is the City’s deliberate intention that actions and decisions 

shall  support  the  spirit  of  this  policy  and  program.    Recruiting,  interviewing,  testing,  hiring,  retention, 

compensation, training, and promoting shall continue to be an objective for securing and employing qualified 

individuals.   All personnel actions such as transfers,  layoffs, return from  layoff, and the administration of City 

sponsored  training  sessions,  education  programs,  tuition  assistance,  social  and  recreation  programs,  and 

employee  compensation  and  benefits  shall  be  administered  nondiscriminatory.    In  addition,  the  City  will 

continuously emphasize the need to recruit, employ, and promote minorities and females at all  levels of the 

organization. 

 

Non‐Discrimination 

 

All persons regardless of race, color, creed, religion, sex, national origin, age, sexual orientation, marital status, 

gender  identity, genetic  information, handicap or disability, religious or political affiliation, or veteran status, 

will be afforded the opportunity to pursue City employment, access City facilities, attend City programs, and 

utilize City services provided by the City of Lake Alfred.   

 

 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                                     2 | P a g e  

ADA Statement 

 

The  City  also  complies with  the  provisions  of  the  Americans with Disability Act  (ADA).    The  City  does  not 

discriminate against qualified  individuals with a disability because of  their disabilities.   A qualified  individual 

with  a  disability  is  one who  can  perform  the  essential  functions  of  the  job with  or without  a  reasonable 

accommodation.  All qualified individuals are encouraged to apply. 

 

Grant Requirements 

 

The  requirement  to  develop, maintain,  and  submit  an  Equal  Employment Opportunity  Plan  (EEOP)  derives 

from federal regulations implementing the Safe Streets Act.  Recipients who have received funding under the 

Safe Streets Act and other similar federal programs must comply with the EEOP requirements. 

 

The City of Lake Alfred and  the Lake Alfred Police Department apply  for and  receive grants  throughout  the 

year.   Although  the City  is not  strictly a  law enforcement agency,  the  Lake Alfred Police Department  is  the 

active  law enforcement branch of the City with sworn officers.   The Lake Alfred Police Department regularly 

applies and has received several grant awards  indirectly from the Justice Department as a sub‐recipient from 

the Florida Department of Law Enforcement  (FDLE).   Table 1 displays  the grants awarded  to  the City during 

2015 and 2016. 

 

TABLE 1 

Grant Awards 2015‐2016 

 

Grantee Name:     City of Lake Alfred       Lake Alfred Police Department 

 

Address:      155 East Pomelo St.      150 N. Seminole Ave. 

        Lake Alfred, FL 33850      Lake Alfred, Fl 33850 

Contact Person:    Amee Bailey        Art Bodenheimer 

Telephone Number:    863‐291‐5747        863‐291‐5200 

 

YEAR  GRANT NO.  GRANT PROJECT NAME GRANTING 
ENTITY 

GRANT 
AMOUNT 

OPEN 
CLOSED 

2016  S1652  MACKAY ESTATES HOUSE 
RESTORATION PH II 

FDOS $50,000  CLOSED

2016  FPID 429883‐1  PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE FDOT $2,209,722  OPEN

2016  2016‐JAGC‐POLK‐14‐H3‐162  SRO RIDE FDLE $9,152  OPEN

2016  2016‐JAGD‐POLK‐5‐H4‐113  PROJECT LONG RUN FDLE $1,000  OPEN

2015  2015‐JAGD‐POLK‐4‐R1‐048  VEHICLE UNLOCK FDLE $1,215  CLOSED

2015  2015‐JAGC‐POLK‐16‐R3‐128  PRINT AND SAFETY FDLE $10,193  CLOSED

2015  FPID 430925‐1  SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL FDOT $137,333  CLOSED





 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                           4 | P a g e  

SECTION 2 

WORKFORCE INFORMATION 

 

City of Lake Alfred  

 

The City of Lake Alfred was founded at a major railroad junction and was originally incorporated in 1913.   

Today the City is approximately 13 sq miles and is positioned near the employment centers of Lakeland, 

Winter  Haven  and  metro  Orlando  to  the  east.    Between  5,000  and  6,000  people  live  within  the 

corporate  limits,  and  another  39,000  people  live within  a  10‐minute  drive.   US  Highway  17/92  and 

County  Road  557  provide  easy  access  to major  transportation  routes  such  as  Interstate  4  and  US 

Highway 27.   Transit services are also available with stops throughout  the City and near City  facilities.  

The City provides many services and a variety of employment opportunities  in the fields of community 

development, police, fire, water, sewer, recreation, and administration.   

 

 
Polk County 

 

The City of Lake Alfred is located within Polk County.  Polk County is strategically located in the center of 

the  Florida peninsula, about equal distance  from  the east and west  coast and half way between  the 

Georgia‐Florida border and the Southern tip.  Polk County lies on the Interstate 4 corridor, 25 miles east 

of Tampa and 35 miles southwest of Orlando. As the geographic center of Florida,  it  is estimated that 

more than 7.5 million people reside within a 100‐mile radius of Polk County.   This  is one of the  largest 

concentrations  of  population  in  the  southeast.    The  total  area  of  the  county  is  approximately  2,010 

square miles, which makes it the fourth largest county in Florida.   

 

As of 2014, Polk County had an estimated population of 618,957 with a demographic make‐up skewed 

towards 65 years and over, which is consistent with Florida as a whole.  Relative to Florida and the U.S., 

Polk County is underrepresented in the 25 to 54 year old age groups.  In terms of racial distribution, Polk 

County is similar to the State.  This includes the Hispanic and black population, however the Asians are 

underrepresented  in  the County.   Polk County  lags behind  the  state  in both high  school  and  college 

graduates.   The September 2016 unemployment  rate  in  the County  is 5.9%, which  is a decrease  from 

6.2% in 2016.  Table 2 shows the Polk County workforce by job categories. 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                        5 | P a g e  

TABLE 2 

Polk County Workforce by Job Categories 

 

Total  Total 

Male White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other Female White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other

22,995 13,685 945 11,375 855 30 360 0 60 65 9,310 810 7,370 820 20 160 0 70 60
100.0% 59.5% 4.1% 49.5% 3.7% 0.1% 1.6% 0.0% 0.2% 0.3% 40.5% 3.5% 32.1% 3.6% 0.1% 0.7% 0.0% 0.3% 0.3%

Professionals
32,860 12,925 750 10,290 1,085 20 600 20 100 60 19,935 1,625 14,970 2,740 4 385 20 90 95

100.0% 39.3% 2.3% 31.3% 3.3% 0.1% 1.8% 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 60.7% 5.0% 45.6% 8.3% 0.0% 1.2% 0.1% 0.3% 0.3%
Technicians

5,555 1,765 140 1,340 175 20 75 0 20 4 3,790 365 2,805 445 0 50 25 40 60
100.0% 31.8% 2.6% 24.1% 3.2% 0.4% 1.4% 0.0% 0.4% 0.1% 68.2% 6.5% 50.5% 8.0% 0.0% 0.9% 0.5% 0.7% 1.1%

4,410 3,440 150 2,810 390 0 25 20 4 35 970 10 690 270 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 78.0% 3.4% 63.7% 8.8% 0.0% 0.6% 0.5% 0.1% 0.8% 22.0% 0.2% 15.6% 6.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Protective service: Non‐sworn

330 235 0 200 35 0 0 0 0 0 95 0 90 4 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 71.2% 0.0% 60.6% 10.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 28.8% 0.0% 27.3% 1.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

59,720 19,730 2,040 14,950 1,980 25 490 0 175 80 39,990 3,975 30,005 5,045 85 575 0 195 115
100.0% 33.0% 3.4% 25.0% 3.3% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 0.3% 0.1% 67.0% 6.7% 50.2% 8.4% 0.1% 1.0% 0.0% 0.3% 0.2%

Skilled craft
20,660 19,675 3,710 14,210 1,390 10 160 0 109 80 985 145 705 85 0 45 0 0 0

100.0% 95.2% 18.0% 68.8% 6.7% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 0.5% 0.4% 4.8% 0.7% 3.4% 0.4% 0.0% 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

68,705 40,925 10,800 22,700 6,570 65 385 55 220 135 27,780 5,610 15,315 5,895 115 600 15 145 90
100.0% 59.6% 15.7% 33.0% 9.6% 0.1% 0.6% 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 40.4% 8.1% 22.3% 8.6% 0.2% 0.9% 0.0% 0.2% 0.1%

Source:  U.S. Census  Bureau, 2006 ‐ 2010 American Community Survey. EEO Tabulation 2006‐2010 (5‐year ACS data) AIAN ‐ American Indian and Alaska  Native

Job Groups  by Sex, and Race/Ethnici ty for Works i te  Geography Civi l ian l abor force  16 years  and over NHPI  ‐ Native  Hawai ian and Other Paci fic Is lander

Two + Two or more  races

Polk County

Administrative support

Polk County

Polk County

Service/Maintenance

Polk County

Protective service: Sworn

Polk County

Polk County

Officials/Administrators

Polk County

Polk County

MALE FEMALE

Job Category
Total

Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino

 
 

 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                           6 | P a g e  

SECTION 3 

WORKFORCE ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 

 

The City’s EEOP is divided into three separate areas.  The first addresses equal employment opportunity 

elements and  includes analytical data  to assess equal employment operations  in such areas as hiring, 

discipline,  lateral  transfers,  and promotions.    The  second  section  addresses Affirmative Action  issues 

such as analysis of  the current workforce by equal employment opportunity  job category, determines 

the extent of under‐utilization of minorities and women, presents reasonable goals to correct the under‐

utilization, and establishes measurable objectives  to meet  those goals.   The  third  section  reviews  the 

City  process  and  procedures  for  recruiting,  the  application  process,  compensation  and  classification 

plan, and plan evaluation and dissemination. 

 

TABLE 3 

Opportunity Elements ‐ Fiscal Year Comparison 

Activity  FY 2014/2015  FY 2015/2016* 
% Increase or 

Decrease 

Job Opportunities  12  22  83% 

Applications Received        

Male  74  172  132% 

Female  94  134  43% 

Total  168  306  82% 

Referred for Interview  *Partial Record     

Male  6*  40  ‐ 

Female  19*  21  ‐ 

Total  25*  61  ‐ 

New Hires       

Male  7  17  143% 

Female  6  5  ‐17% 

Minority  5  11  120% 

Total  13  22  69% 

Promotion/ Transfers  *Partial Record     

Male  1 / 10  9 / 4  ‐ 

Female  0/0  2/ 0  ‐ 

Minority  0/3  3 / 1  ‐ 

Total  1 / 10  11 / 5  ‐ 

Discipline  *Partial Record     

Male  2  6  ‐ 

Female  0  1  ‐ 

Minority  1  2  ‐ 

Total  2  7  ‐ 

Separation  *Partial Record     

Male  5  18  ‐ 

Female  6  4  ‐ 

Minority  4  9  ‐ 

Total  11  22  ‐ 

 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                    7 | P a g e  

TABLE 4 

City of Lake Alfred Workforce by Job Categories 

 

Total  Total 

Male White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other Female White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other

7 4 4 3 3
100.0% 57.1% 57.1% 42.9% 42.9%

2 1 1 1 1

100.0% 50.0% 50.0% 50.0% 50.0%

6 6 4 1 1 0

100.0% 100.0% 66.7% 16.7% 16.7% 0.0%

11 10 3 6 1 1 1
100.0% 90.9% 27.3% 54.5% 9.1% 9.1% 9.1%

18 17 1 16 1 1

100.0% 94.4% 5.6% 88.9% 5.6% 5.6%

15 0 15 2 12 1

100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 13.3% 80.0% 6.7%

1 1 1 0
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0%

14 14 2 10 2 0
100.0% 100.0% 14.3% 71.4% 14.3% 0.0%

Lake Alfred

Professionals

Technicians

Protective service: Non‐swo

Skilled craft

Administrative support

Lake Alfred

Lake Alfred

Service/Maintenance

Protective service: Sworn

Lake Alfred

Lake Alfred

Officials/Administrators

Lake Alfred

Lake Alfred

Lake Alfred

MALE FEMALE

Job Category
Total

Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino

 

AIAN ‐ American Indian and Alaska  Native

NHPI  ‐ Native  Hawai ian and Other Paci fic Is lander

Two + Two or more  racesSource: Lake  Alfred Human Resources  October 2016  
 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                        8 | P a g e  

TABLE 5 

Police Department Workforce by Job Categories 

 

Total  Total 

Male White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other Female White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other

3 2 2 1 1

100.0% 66.7% 66.7% 33.3% 33.3%

7 7 3 3 1 0

100.0% 100.0% 42.9% 42.9% 14.3% 0.0%

5 0 5 5

100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Lake Alfred

Protective service:                

Sworn Officials

Lake Alfred

Protective service:                

Sworn Officers

Lake Alfred

MALE FEMALE

Job Category
Total

Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino

 
 

TABLE 6 

Law Enforcement Rank Chart 

Total  Total 

Male White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other Female White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other

1 0 1 1

100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0%

1 1 1 0

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0%

1 1 1 0

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0%

7 7 3 3 1 0

100.0% 100.0% 42.9% 42.9% 14.3% 0.0%

AIAN ‐ American Indian and Alaska  Native

NHPI  ‐ Native  Hawai ian and Other Paci fic Is lander

Two + Two or more  races

Not Hispanic or Latino

Sergent

Lieutenant

Police Chief

Patrol Officers

Source: Lake  Alfred Human Resources  October 2016

MALE FEMALE

Job Category
Total

Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino Hispanic 

or Latino

 
 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                           9 | P a g e  

Equal Opportunity 

 

As shown in Table 3, there were 10 more job postings in FY 15/16 than FY 14/15 with an 83% increase in 

the  number  of  applications  submitted  for  the  positions  advertised.    The  increase  volume  of 

opportunities led to an increase in applications by women and minorities.  This translated into increased 

minority hires, but did not have the same  impact for females.   The types of positions advertised were 

diverse  including  service workers,  summer  recreation,  firefighters, police officers, and administrative.  

However the vast majority of the female applicants only applied for six (6) positions.  These included the 

utility billing clerk, summer recreation positions, and the code enforcement officer.  A few applications 

were received for the firefighter positions with one hire.   No females applied for the seven (7) service 

worker positions posted in FY 15/16. 

 

Affirmative Action 

 

The assessed positions and workforce are classified  into seven  job groups as established for State and 

Local Governments  as part of  the US  Census data.    (1) Officials  and Managers,  (2)  Professionals,  (3) 

Technicians, (4) Protective Services: Sworn, (5) Administrative Support, (6) Skilled Craft, and (7) Service 

Maintenance.  Tables 4 and 5 show the City and Police Department workforce by job categories.   

 

The local labor market analysis (Table 10) reveals that the City’s female workforce surpasses that of the 

County  in  two  job  categories  (Officials,  and  Administrative  Support).    There  is  also  a  positive 

representation  for  Hispanic/Latinos;  males  in  both  of  the  Protective  Service  categories  and  in 

Administrative  Support  for women.    Black males  showed  a  positive  comparison  for  Technicians  and 

Service, with black females showing a positive comparison in Protective Services: Non‐sworn.  Two other 

positive comparisons are shown for men in the American Indian and the 2 or more category. 

 

TABLE 7 

City Incumbent Workforce by Job Category 

Job Categories  Females  Minorities 

  Oct. 15  Oct. 16  % Change  Oct. 15  Oct. 16  % Change 

Officials/ Administrators  3  3  0%  0  0  0% 

Professions  1  1  0%  0  0  0% 

Technicians  0  0  0%  0  2  200% 

Protective: Sworn  1  1  0%  1  4  300% 

Protective: Non‐Sworn  0  1  100%  3  1  ‐67% 

Admin. Support  14  15  7%  1  3  200% 

Skilled Craft  0  0  0%  0  0  0% 

Service Maintenance  0  0  0%  5  2  ‐60% 

Totals  19  21  10%  10  12  20% 

 

The incumbent workforce comparison (Table 7) shows very little change in the female population within 

the City.  Generally speaking, when a female left the City the position was filled by another female.  The 

one female firefighter position  is evident  in the protective services category.   The minority population 

overall remained very similar, however the changes are apparent due to the change in the distribution 

of minorities in the different job classifications.   



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                         10 | P a g e  

Police Department Analysis 

 

The  local  labor  market  analysis  (Table  11)  reveals  that  the  Police  Department’s  female  workforce 

surpasses that of the County in two job categories (Officials, and Administrative Support).  There is also 

a positive  representation of males Officers  in of  the Hispanic/Latino and American  Indian  categories.  

Table  8  also  shows  the  diversity  changes  that  occurred with  the  Officers  FY  15/16.    A  few  female 

applications were  received  for  the  police  officer  positions,  one  female  received  an  offer, which was 

declined due  to another offer.   There were no openings  for Officials or Administrative  support  in  the 

past few years. 

 

TABLE 8 

Police Department Incumbent Workforce by Job Category 

Job Categories  Females  Minorities 

  Oct. 15  Oct. 16  % Change  Oct. 15  Oct. 16  % Change 

Sworn Officials  1  1  0%  0  0  0% 

Protective: Sworn  0  0  0%  1  4  300% 

Admin. Support  5  5  0%  0  0  0% 

Totals  6  6  0%  1  4  300% 

 

Underutilization 

 

Table 9 summarizes the underutilization by job categories.  It may be very difficult for the City and Police 

Department  to  match  the  County  labor  market  in  some  categories  simply  due  to  the  number  of 

positions  in  some  categories.    For  example,  the City only  employs  two  (2) professionals  and one  (1) 

skilled craft position and there are only three (3) sworn positions in the Police Department.  

 

TABLE 9 

Underutilization by Job Categories 

Job Categories  City of Lake Alfred  Police Department 

Officials/ Administrators  Male and female minority categories  Male minority categories 

Professions  Male and female minority categories   

Technicians  Females in all groups   

Protective: Sworn  Black males and females,  

and total females 

Black males and females,  

and total females 

Protective: Non‐Sworn  Black males and total females   

Admin. Support  Black females and 

all male categories 

Minority females and 

all male categories 

Skilled Craft  Male minorities and total females   

Service Maintenance  Hispanic males and  

all female categories 

 

     

 

 



TABLE 10 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                     11 | P a g e  

City of Lake Alfred Utilization Table 

Total  Total 

Male White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other Female White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other

7 4 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 57.1% 0.0% 57.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 42.9% 0.0% 42.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
22,995 13,685 945 11,375 855 30 360 0 60 65 9,310 810 7,370 820 20 160 0 70 60

100.0% 59.5% 4.1% 49.5% 3.7% 0.1% 1.6% 0.0% 0.2% 0.3% 40.5% 3.5% 32.1% 3.6% 0.1% 0.7% 0.0% 0.3% 0.3%

Utilization ‐2.4% ‐4.1% 7.6% ‐3.7% ‐0.1% ‐1.6% 0.0% ‐0.2% ‐0.3% 2.4% ‐3.5% 10.8% ‐3.6% ‐0.1% ‐0.7% 0.0% ‐0.3% ‐0.3%

Professionals
2 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 50.0% 0.0% 50.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 50.0% 0.0% 50.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

32,860 12,925 750 10,290 1,085 20 600 20 100 60 19,935 1,625 14,970 2,740 4 385 20 90 95
100.0% 39.3% 2.3% 31.3% 3.3% 0.1% 1.8% 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 60.7% 5.0% 45.6% 8.3% 0.0% 1.2% 0.1% 0.3% 0.3%

Utilization 10.7% ‐2.3% 18.7% ‐3.3% ‐0.1% ‐1.8% ‐0.1% ‐0.2% ‐0.2% ‐10.7% ‐5.0% 4.4% ‐8.3% 0.0% ‐1.2% ‐0.1% ‐0.3% ‐0.3%

Technicians

6 6 0 4 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 66.7% 16.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 16.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

5,555 1,765 140 1,340 175 20 75 0 20 4 3,790 365 2,805 445 0 50 25 40 60

100.0% 31.8% 2.6% 24.1% 3.2% 0.4% 1.4% 0.0% 0.4% 0.1% 68.2% 6.5% 50.5% 8.0% 0.0% 0.9% 0.5% 0.7% 1.1%

Utilization 68.2% ‐2.6% 42.6% 13.5% ‐0.4% ‐1.4% 0.0% 16.3% ‐0.1% ‐68.2% ‐6.5% ‐50.5% ‐8.0% 0.0% ‐0.9% ‐0.5% ‐0.7% ‐1.1%

11 10 3 6 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 90.9% 27.3% 54.5% 0.0% 9.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 9.1% 0.0% 9.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
4,410 3,440 150 2,810 390 0 25 20 4 35 970 10 690 270 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 78.0% 3.4% 63.7% 8.8% 0.0% 0.6% 0.5% 0.1% 0.8% 22.0% 0.2% 15.6% 6.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Utilization 12.9% 23.9% ‐9.2% ‐8.8% 9.1% ‐0.6% ‐0.5% ‐0.1% ‐0.8% ‐12.9% ‐0.2% ‐6.5% ‐6.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Protective service: Non‐sworn
18 17 1 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 94.4% 5.6% 88.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 5.6% 0.0% 0.0% 5.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

330 235 0 200 35 0 0 0 0 0 95 0 90 4 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 71.2% 0.0% 60.6% 10.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 28.8% 0.0% 27.3% 1.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Utilization 23.2% 5.6% 28.3% ‐10.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% ‐23.2% 0.0% ‐27.3% 4.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 2 12 1 0 0 0 0 0
100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 13.3% 80.0% 6.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

59,720 19,730 2,040 14,950 1,980 25 490 0 175 80 39,990 3,975 30,005 5,045 85 575 0 195 115

100.0% 33.0% 3.4% 25.0% 3.3% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 0.3% 0.1% 67.0% 6.7% 50.2% 8.4% 0.1% 1.0% 0.0% 0.3% 0.2%

Utilization ‐33.0% ‐3.4% ‐25.0% ‐3.3% 0.0% ‐0.8% 0.0% ‐0.3% ‐0.1% 33.0% 6.6% 29.8% ‐1.7% ‐0.1% ‐1.0% 0.0% ‐0.3% ‐0.2%
Skilled craft

1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

20,660 19,675 3,710 14,210 1,390 10 160 0 109 80 985 145 705 85 0 45 0 0 0
100.0% 95.2% 18.0% 68.8% 6.7% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 0.5% 0.4% 4.8% 0.7% 3.4% 0.4% 0.0% 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Utilization 4.8% ‐18.0% 31.2% ‐6.7% 0.0% ‐0.8% 0.0% ‐0.5% ‐0.4% ‐4.8% ‐0.7% ‐3.4% ‐0.4% 0.0% ‐0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

14 14 2 10 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 100.0% 14.3% 71.4% 14.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

68,705 40,925 10,800 22,700 6,570 65 385 55 220 135 27,780 5,610 15,315 5,895 115 600 15 145 90

100.0% 59.6% 15.7% 33.0% 9.6% 0.1% 0.6% 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 40.4% 8.1% 22.3% 8.6% 0.2% 0.9% 0.0% 0.2% 0.1%
Utilization 40.4% ‐1.4% 38.4% 4.7% ‐0.1% ‐0.6% ‐0.1% ‐0.2% ‐0.2% ‐40.4% ‐8.1% ‐22.3% ‐8.6% ‐0.2% ‐0.9% 0.0% ‐0.2% ‐0.1%

Job Category
Total

Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino

Lake Alfred

Officials/Administrators

Service/Maintenance

Administrative support

Protective service: Sworn

Polk County

Lake Alfred

Polk County

Polk County

Lake Alfred

Polk County

Lake Alfred

Polk County

Lake Alfred

Polk County

Lake Alfred

Polk County

Lake Alfred

Polk County

Lake Alfred

MALE FEMALE

Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino

 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                                                                                                                     12 | P a g e  

TABLE 11 

Police Department Utilization Table 

 

Total  Total 

Male White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other Female White Black AIAN Asian NHPI Two + Other

3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 66.7% 0.0% 66.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 33.3% 0.0% 33.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

4,414 3,434 150 2,810 390 0 25 20 4 35 980 10 690 10 270 0 0 0 0

100.0% 77.8% 3.4% 63.7% 8.8% 0.0% 0.6% 0.5% 0.1% 0.8% 22.2% 0.2% 15.6% 0.2% 6.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Utilization ‐11.1% ‐3.4% 3.0% ‐8.8% 0.0% ‐0.6% ‐0.5% ‐0.1% ‐0.8% 11.1% ‐0.2% 17.7% ‐0.2% ‐6.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

7 7 3 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 100.0% 42.9% 42.9% 0.0% 14.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

31,555 18,245 4,785 10,360 2,480 65 190 0 205 160 13,310 3,070 7,055 2,810 65 175 0 55 80

100.0% 78.0% 3.4% 63.7% 8.8% 0.0% 0.6% 0.5% 0.1% 0.8% 22.0% 0.2% 15.6% 6.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Utilization 22.0% 39.5% ‐20.8% ‐8.8% 14.3% ‐0.6% ‐0.5% ‐0.1% ‐0.8% ‐22.0% ‐0.2% ‐15.6% ‐6.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Administrative 

support

5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0

100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

59,720 19,730 2,040 14,950 1,980 25 490 0 175 80 39,990 3,975 30,005 5,045 85 575 0 195 115

100.0% 33.0% 3.4% 25.0% 3.3% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 0.3% 0.1% 67.0% 6.7% 50.2% 8.4% 0.1% 1.0% 0.0% 0.3% 0.2%

Utilization ‐33.0% ‐3.4% ‐25.0% ‐3.3% 0.0% ‐0.8% 0.0% ‐0.3% ‐0.1% 33.0% ‐6.7% 49.8% ‐8.4% ‐0.1% ‐1.0% 0.0% ‐0.3% ‐0.2%

Source:  U.S. Census  Bureau, 2006 ‐ 2010 American Community Survey. EEO Tabulation 2006‐2010 (5‐year ACS data) AIAN ‐ American Indian and Alaska  Native

Job Groups  by Sex, and Race/Ethnici ty for Works i te  Geography Civi l ian l abor force  16 years  and over NHPI  ‐ Native  Hawai ian and Other Paci fic Is lander

Two + Two or more  racesSource: Lake  Alfred Human Resources  October 2016

Lake Alfred

Polk County

Lake Alfred

Polk County

Lake Alfred

Polk County

Protective service:                

Sworn Officials

Protective service:                

Sworn Officers

MALE FEMALE

Job Category
Total

Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino Hispanic 

or Latino

Not Hispanic or Latino

 
 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                         13 | P a g e  

SECTION 4 

GOAL, OBJECTIVES, AND STRATEGIES 

 

Goals 

 

The overall City goal  is  to  recruit, establish, and maintain a qualified workforce  representative of  the 

local labor market (Polk County).  An additional goal is to prohibit discrimination in all personnel actions 

based  on  race,  color,  religion,  creed,  national  origin,  sex,  age,  or  disability  and  to  have  a  work 

environment free of discrimination and harassment. 

 

This  goal  does  not mean  the  City will  establish  rigid  quotas,  nor  does  it  imply  that  any  unqualified 

individual will be hired or promoted into City positions.  Rather, this is a voluntary, self‐imposed method 

of  accountability  which  demonstrates  that  the  City  is  serious  about  its  commitment  to  equal 

employment opportunity. 

 

The goal of the City will be achieved when minorities and women employed by the City  in various  job 

categories mirrors the community profile and labor force availability.  Achieving this long range goal will 

take a number of years 

 

Objectives 

 

All  reasonable  efforts  shall  be  expended  to  attempt  to  achieve  a  community  profile with  respect  to 

female and minority members  in all  categories,  including  the Protective Services category.   However, 

given the small number of positions  in some of the  job categories, this may be difficult.   To attain this 

specified  goal,  the  City will  actively  recruit minorities  and women  for  positions which may  become 

vacant  in the future. Where and when necessary and possible, recruitment efforts will be modified or 

expanded to seek out qualified minority and female candidates.   

 

The City’s efforts  to  reach  the  stated goals  is  through  this EEOP,  includes a continuous procedure  for 

monitoring and reporting progress to ensure the realization of objectives stated below. 

 

 Equality  of  employment  opportunity  shall  be  provided without  regard  to  race,  color,  creed, 

religion,  sex,  national  origin,  age,  sexual  orientation, marital  status,  gender  identity,  genetic 

information, handicap or disability,  veteran  status, any other non‐merit  characteristic, or any 

other factors that cannot lawfully be considered in employing people. 

 During the course of recruiting, hiring, and training; job transfers, assignments, and promotions; 

and taking disciplinary action; all applicants and employees shall be evaluated solely upon their 

qualifications, merits, and other job‐related criteria. 

 All  advertisements  for  applicants,  recruitment,  transfers, promotions,  training,  compensation, 

benefits,  terminations, and any other materials utilized  in personnel actions shall clearly state 

that the City of Lake Alfred is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                         14 | P a g e  

 An organized, effective, and aggressive effort shall be conducted to  identify and eliminate the 

specific causes of any under representation of qualified minorities and women in the work force 

including any employment practices which have an adverse impact on these individuals. 

 Diverse  applicant  pools  shall  be  developed  through  special  recruitment  efforts  and  other 

appropriate measures to ensure sufficient numbers of these groups are included.  

 Monitoring  systems  and procedures  shall be utilized  to  assure  the  effective operation of  the 

Equal Employment Opportunity / Affirmative Action Programs. 

 Develop strategies to increase female and minority awareness of open positions. 

 

Processes and Procedures 

 

As part of  the  review  to  the City’s Equal Employment Opportunity Program,  the City shall conduct an 

assessment  of  its  employment  practices  for  the  past  two  years  regarding  recruiting,  the  application 

process, compensation and classification plan, and plan evaluation and dissemination.  The intent of this 

assessment  is  to  identify  current  practices  employment  practices,  identify  policy  changes  addressing 

personnel actions, and compare with applicable laws and regulations.  

 

The City recently prepared and trained management staff on the hiring process.   The training  included 

position posting, pre‐interview  tasks,  interview standards, and post‐interview conduct.   As part of  the 

posting  process  Human  Resources  and  the  hiring manager  review  the  job  description  to make  any 

changes or make regulatory adjustments.   Hiring managers have also been advised to select  interview 

panels with two more people and include minorities and females, when available. 

 

Position  vacancies have been  advertised  in  local papers, on  the City’s web page, with Career  Source 

Polk, and  in house at the approval of the City Manager.    In addition the City has worked at expanding 

the applicant pool by advertising with Monster, social media, and professional organizations for select 

positions.    The  results  have  led  to  increase  applications  and  more  qualified  candidates.    All 

advertisements have included the “Equal Employment Opportunity Employer” or “EEOE” statement.   

 

Applicants interested in positions with the City, must submit an Employment Application.   The City has 

updated the application to  include  the EEOE statement and made other revisions to clarify the use of 

information  collected.   The applications are  reviewed  to determine whether  the applicant meets  the 

minimum qualifications contained  in  the "Job Description."    Interview questions are developed  for all 

applicants  based  on  the  job  description  and  application  review.    Applicants  possessing  the  required 

education  and/or  experience  are  scheduled  for  an  interview.    This  applies  to  applicants  of  sworn 

positions  who  must  be  certified  as  meeting  the  minimum  requirements  as  established  by  job 

descriptions.   All  interviews are “content valid,”  i.e.,  they measure  the knowledge,  skills, and abilities 

necessary for the particular job based on the job description.  Hiring managers have been reminded not 

to ask questions or note any information related to protected classes during an interview.  At the end of 

the  interview, the candidate who was ranked the highest was offered the position.   When there were 

two equally well‐qualified applicants, the City generally offered the position to the minority or veteran. 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                         15 | P a g e  

The Lake Alfred Personnel Manual and Employee Handbook (Handbook) was updated January 19, 2016.  

Section  4  addressing  employment  polices  was  updated  regarding  the  processing  of  applicants; 

specifically  physical  examinations.    Applicant  are  subjected  to  review  prior  to  employment.    The 

elements  of  the  selection  process  are  critical  in  determining whether  an  applicant  can  perform  the 

essential job functions for the position.  These additional phases of the selection process: 

 

 Background examinations may be used to check applicants such as criminal history, driving 

record, and reference verification.  Applicants with backgrounds that do not meet minimum 

acceptable levels shall be eliminated from the selection process. 

 

 Physical examinations and drug screens are performed after a conditional employment offer 

to  determine  if  the  candidate  is  physically  able  to  perform  the  essential  duties  and 

responsibilities of the  job without risking the safety and health of himself and others. The 

physical examination shall be performed and evaluated by the City’s designated physician, 

under  standards  established  by  the  City.  In  the  event  of  a  positive  drug  test  result,  the 

candidate will not be employed and will not be reconsidered for employment with the City. 

 

Lastly, all employees have an equal opportunity to be “promoted.”   Promotional opportunities vary by 

departments.    As  shown  in  Table  12  some  department  positions  have  built‐in  opportunities  for 

promotion based on time, qualifications and merit.  These include Service Worker I to III, Billing Clerk to 

Admin Assistant or Finance Clerk, Police Officer I‐II to Official, and part‐time Firefighter to full‐time and 

Official.   Eleven promotions were processed  in 2016.   The  retirement of several  long‐term employees 

created  the opportunity  for several more employees  to promote within  the organization.    In addition 

the City created a new Operator Trainee position which allowed three Service Workers to expand their 

skillsets and receive advance training to prepare for future advancement.  The City has initiated training 

and financial incentives as described below to assist in promotion opportunities.   

 

For  the  Police  and  Fire  Departments  a  “valid”  written  examination/oral  interviews  are  utilized  for 

promotions.  The applicants are ranked, and the department head generally chooses the highest‐ranked 

employee; although  they may choose any one of  the  top  three.   For other positions, applicants work 

records  are  reviewed.    All  applicants  are  interviewed,  using  criteria  designed  to  predict  future  job 

performance.  The applicants are then ranked, and the highest‐ranking employee is generally selected. 

 

Over the past two years the City has made several advancements in compensation and benefit plans for 

the employees.   The City has established a  salary  schedule  for all positions.   Adjustments have been 

made to ensure that all employees in similar positions receive the same pay based on years of service.  

All employees are advanced  in  the  same manner  regardless of  race, color,  sex,  religion, age, national 

origin, or other factors that cannot lawfully be considered in employing people.  The salary schedule and 

position  classifications are published annually  in  the City budget.    In addition,  several  incentive plans 

have  been  added  or  updated  in  the  Handbook  in  Section  4,  including  tuition  reimbursement, 

Commercial  Driver’s  License  (CDL)  assistance,  and  education  incentive  pay.    These  programs  are 

available to all employees. 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                         16 | P a g e  

Grade (6%) 9.88 10.47 11.10 11.76 12.47 13.22 14.01 14.85 15.74 16.69 17.69 18.75 19.88 21.07 22.33 23.67 25.09 26.60 28.19 29.89

Step (2%) 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

Base 20,545 21,778 23,085 24,470 25,938 27,494 29,144 30,893 32,746 34,711 36,794 39,001 41,341 43,822 46,451 49,238 52,192 55,324 58,643 62,162

(1y)1 20,956 22,214 23,546 24,959 26,457 28,044 29,727 31,510 33,401 35,405 37,529 39,781 42,168 44,698 47,380 50,223 53,236 56,430 59,816 63,405

(2y)2 21,375 22,658 24,017 25,458 26,986 28,605 30,321 32,141 34,069 36,113 38,280 40,577 43,011 45,592 48,328 51,227 54,301 57,559 61,013 64,673

(4y)3 21,803 23,111 24,498 25,968 27,526 29,177 30,928 32,783 34,750 36,835 39,046 41,388 43,872 46,504 49,294 52,252 55,387 58,710 62,233 65,967

(6y)4 22,239 23,573 24,988 26,487 28,076 29,761 31,546 33,439 35,445 37,572 39,827 42,216 44,749 47,434 50,280 53,297 56,495 59,884 63,477 67,286

(8y)5 22,684 24,045 25,487 27,017 28,638 30,356 32,177 34,108 36,154 38,324 40,623 43,060 45,644 48,383 51,286 54,363 57,625 61,082 64,747 68,632

(10y)6 23,137 24,526 25,997 27,557 29,210 30,963 32,821 34,790 36,877 39,090 41,436 43,922 46,557 49,350 52,311 55,450 58,777 62,304 66,042 70,004

Phase >1 23,600 25,016 26,517 28,108 29,795 31,582 33,477 35,486 37,615 39,872 42,264 44,800 47,488 50,337 53,358 56,559 59,953 63,550 67,363 71,404

Phase >2 24,072 25,516 27,047 28,670 30,390 32,214 34,147 36,196 38,367 40,669 43,109 45,696 48,438 51,344 54,425 57,690 61,152 64,821 68,710 72,833

1 Service Worker I 5 SW III 8 Fire Fighter 11 Fire Captain >1 15 Police Lieutenant  Police Chief  20

Comm. Operator >1 Plant Operator P&R Director Finance Director 

Administrative Assistant Mechanic Public Works/Utilities Director 

2 Service Worker II Operator Trainee 12 Superintendent

Library Assistant 9 Police Officer 17 City Clerk

6 Comm. Coord. >1 13 Police Sergeant

Com. Dev. Director  19

4 Utility Billing Clerk 7 Code Enf. Officer 10 Police Officer II Fire Chief 

Finance Clerk Librarian 

TABLE 12 

Salary Schedule and Position Classifications – FY 16/17 

 

The City also continues  to  train  the new and  incumbent workforce.   Trainings  in  the past year  for all 

employees  included topics such as: public records request, employee benefit, retirement and pension, 

health programs and  incentives, harassment and sexual harassment.   Department specific training also 

address  safety and procedures.    In order  to prepare  the next generation of  leaders  the City has also 

provided leadership training.   

 

New and Continued Strategies 

 

The overall goal may  take years  to achieve.   Some objectives are currently being met, but  remain an 

essential  component  to  the  EEOP.    To  achieve  the  City’s  long‐term  goal,  strategies will  need  to  be 

continually applied and reviewed for effectiveness.   

 

 Provide  leadership, guidance and training for supervisory and managerial staff, to enable them 

to become more knowledgeable of human relations issues, laws, and practices. 

 Increase  contacts  and  presence  in minority  communities  by  working  with  civic  groups  and 

community organizations. 

 Routinely  review all aspects of  the  recruitment and application  system  to assure  that built‐in 

discrimination barriers do not exist. 

 Include the phrase "An Equal Opportunity Employer" or “EEOE” on all job announcements. 

 Post open competitive advertisements a minimum of  ten working days  to ensure  there  is 

sufficient time for all interested persons to apply; 

 Distribute job announcements internally, on the website, and through social media; 

 Publish  advertisements  in  Polk  County  newspapers  and  state  and  national  professional 

journals, bulletins and other publications, when appropriate 

 List available jobs with Career Source Polk, and 

 Regularly  mail  job  notices  to  community  church,  business,  education,  civic,  charitable 

organizations, minority organization and veteran groups. 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                         17 | P a g e  

 Participate  in  career  days  and  job  fairs  at  local  schools,  and  other  organizations  to  cultivate 

prospective minority members 

 Develop trainee or  intern positions and where possible, take advantage of public and privately 

sponsored internship programs. 

 Promote  female and minority upward mobility  through City sponsored employee  training and 

education programs and encourage clerical employees with administrative ability and potential 

for greater responsibility to apply for technical, professional, and trainee positions. 

 Survey new female and minority hires to determine best recruiting practices and survey exiting 

employees to determine any barriers to promotion or retention. 

 Review and update the following: 

 Job descriptions ‐ to ensure currency; accuracy and consistency 

 Qualification standards ‐ to assure job relatedness and flexibility to allow for the substitution 

of relevant experience for educational requirements or vice versa 

 Classification  and  compensation  programs  ‐  to  assure  competitiveness  and  equal  pay  for 

equal work;  to  eliminate  "dead‐end"  positions,  and  to  create  promotional  and/or  career 

progression opportunities which could include the development of training positions 

 Employment  examinations  (written,  oral,  or  otherwise)  ‐  to  ensure  validity;  uniform 

application; job relatedness and justified by business necessity 

 Personal  and  professional  development  programs  ‐  to  ensure  employees  have multiple 

opportunities  to  earn  required  certificates  and/or  degrees which  are  necessary  to move 

upward within the City's personnel system 

 Publicize  the  City's  community  and  family  oriented  events  to  attract  female  and  minority 

candidates to the area. 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                         18 | P a g e  

SECTION 5 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

Ultimate responsibility  for  implementing the Equal Employment Opportunity Plan  is vested  in  the City 

Manager;  however,  the  City  Manager  has  appointed  the  City  Clerk  as  the  Equal  Employment 

Opportunity Officer responsible for administering the program and providing periodic status reports. 

 

These responsibilities include: 

 

 Internal and external distribution of the Plan. 

 Coordination of training for staff regarding the Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative 

Action Programs. 

 Determination, by  job group, of  the percentage of qualified minorities, women, persons with 

disabilities, covered veterans and other selected populations, who are currently available in the 

designated recruitment area. 

 Record and analysis of the City’s workforce, by job group, every other year to determine areas 

of under‐utilization. 

 Establishment of goals, objectives, and a plan of action to address any underutilization. 

 Serve as  the City’s  liaison with enforcement agencies, minority organizations, and  the general 

public regarding inquiries about this Equal Employment Opportunity Program. 

 Systematic ongoing review of the City’s recruitment, selection, and promotional procedures to 

ensure adherence to the Equal Employment Opportunity Program. 

 Discussion of the policy during new employee orientation. 

 Website availability for public awareness. 

 Incorporation of an EEO clause into the Personnel Administration Policies Manual, employment 

applications, and position vacancy announcements. 

 Posting  of  the  policy  along  with  job  safety,  minimum  wage,  and  worker’s  compensation 

information. 

 Provisions for the inspection of the Equal Employment Opportunity Plan by anyone who makes 

such a request. 

 Ensure  that  advertisement  for  department  activities,  functions,  or  related  programs  are 

diversified. 

 Investigate  all  complaints  of  alleged  discrimination  or  retaliations,  and  take  appropriate 

corrective action. 

 Record  the  progress  and  efforts made  in  locating,  recruiting,  hiring,  training,  qualifying,  and 

maintaining minority and females. 

 

Plan Dissemination 

 

This Equal Opportunity Plan, including its supporting data, is a public document.  A complete copy of this 

plan shall be distributed to all staff and posted on the City network.   Human Resources will review the 



 

EEOP 2016‐2018                                                                                                                         19 | P a g e  

EEOP  with  all  new  employees  and  update  incumbents  through  the  employee  newsletter.    All 

department heads  shall be  fully advised of  their duties and  responsibilities with  respect  to  this plan.  

Since this  is the  level at which most employee selections are made, they must be aware at all times of 

the goals for their department, and all selections must be made in accordance with this plan.   

 

The EEOP will be provided to outside agencies, such as recruitment sources, vendors and Polk County 

organizations  serving minorities  and women.    External  sources  of distribution may  include  the City’s 

website, social media, and including the phrase “Equal Opportunity Employer” or “EEOE” on City forms 

and application.   



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 
 
5.)  BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
 
ISSUE: The City Commission will consider approval of the annual City board 
appointments.  All proposed appointments are reappointments of current members. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

  n/a 
 
ANALYSIS: The City maintains various boards that are both essential to and benefit of 
the City including: Planning, Adjustments, and Parks & Recreation.  The members are 
appointed by the City Commission.  All Board members serve for three (3) year terms 
and the following boards have opening or members up for renewal: 
 
Planning Board  
 
The Board oversees development compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 
the Unified Land Development Code.   The Board consists of seven (7) regular board 
members and up to two (2) alternate board members.   
 

• Karen Abdul-Hameed, renewal, regular member term to expire 2019 
 
Board of Adjustments  
 
This Board was established to authorize specific variances from certain provisions of 
the Code in cases where enforcement of the Code will result in unnecessary hardship 
for the applicant and to hear and decide upon administrative Code appeals.  This Board 
consists of five (5) regular members and up to two (2) alternate board members. 
 

• William Castle – renewal, regular member, term to expire 2019 
• Irving Spokony – renewal, alternate member, term to expire 2019 

 
Parks and Recreation Board 
 
This Board was established ovesee matters regarding recreational activities and use of 
lands designated as City parks. The Board consists of five (5) regular members and up 
to two (2) alternate board members.   
 

 Mike Jones – renewal, regular member, term to expire 2019 
 Gary Johnson – renewal, regular member, term to expire 2019 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the proposed board appointments. 
 
 
 
  



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.) ORDINANCE 1372-16: ULDC FLOODPLAIN AMENDMENT 
 
 
ISSUE: The City Commission will consider Ordinance 1372-16 to amend the Unified 
Land Development Code (ULDC) in regards to Resource Protection Standards to 
update the regulations regarding Floodplain Management on first reading. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance 1372-16  
 Staff Report 
 Planning Board Minutes 

 
ANALYSIS: In 2012, the City adopted Ordinance 1315-12, which updated the FIRM 
maps and floodplain management regulations. The regulations were prepared using a 
model floodplain ordinance developed by Florida Department of Emergency 
Management (DEM). The language in the model ordinance provided text consistent with 
newly updated flood design regulations that were established in the 2010 Florida 
Building Code (FBC) update and consistent with requirements established by the 
American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE 24) standards for flood resistant design and 
construction.  After the date of the City’s adoption, FEMA required a number of relatively 
minor changes, which are incorporated into the attached Ordinance.   
  
Section 5.01.02.03 of the current ordinance establishes the basis for flood hazard areas 
as the FIS/FIRMs and all subsequent amendments and revisions thereto by reference.  
As such, the City is not required to adopt these updated text changes. However, to 
ensure consistency with the current edition of the Florida Building Code and the ASCE 
24 standards, the DEM State Floodplain Management Office encourages the City to 
adopt these corrections and also update the date of the Flood Insurance Study and 
FIRMs.  The updated FIRM maps will be effective on December 22, 2016. 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Ordinance 1372-16 on first reading. 
 
 
  



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 1 of 11 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1372-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED AMENDING 
THE CITY’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TO REPEAL 
AND REPLACE ARTICLE 5 – RESOURCE PROTECTION 
STANDARDS, SECTION 5.01.00 DEVELOPMENT IN 
FLOODPRONE AREAS TO IDENTIFY THE EFFECTIVE DATE 
OF THE REVISED FLOOD INSURANCE STUDY AND FLOOD 
INSURANCE RATE MAP, AND TO MAKE OTHER ORDINANCE 
MODIFICATIONS TO BRING THE REGULATIONS INTO 
AGREEMENT WITH THE MOST CURRENT MODEL CODE-
COMPANION FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE FOR 
FLORIDA COMMUNITIES; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
  
 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, 
conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed to promote the 
public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency has revised and reissued the 
Flood Insurance Study for Polk County, Florida and Incorporated Municipalities, with an effective 
date of December 22, 2016; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency has identified special flood 
hazard areas within the boundaries of the City of Lake Alfred and such areas may be subject to 
periodic inundation which may result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, 
disruption of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood 
protection and relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public 
health, safety and general welfare, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that it is in the public interest to amend 
the Lake Alfred Unified Land Development Code, Article 5 Resource Protection Standards, 
Section 5.01.00 Development in Floodprone Areas to identify the effective date of the revised 
Flood Insurance Study and Flood Insurance Rate Map, and to make other ordinance modifications 
to bring the regulations into agreement with the most current Model Code-Companion Floodplain 
Management Ordinance for Florida communities. 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 166.041(c)2, Florida Statutes, the City Commission and 
the City’s Planning Board have held meetings and hearings to amend the Unified Land 
Development Code as presented; and, the meetings were advertised and held with due public 
notice, to obtain public comment; and having considered written and oral comments received 
during public hearings, find the changes necessary and appropriate to the needs of the City. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Lake Alfred 
that the Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) of the City of Lake Alfred is amended as set 
forth in the following amendments, as shown in strikethrough and underline format in Exhibit “A”. 
 
 SECTION 1.  RECITALS.  
 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 2 of 11 
 

 The foregoing whereas clauses are incorporated herein by reference and made a part 
hereof. 
 

SECTION 2.  AMENDMENTS.  
 
The Unified Land Development Code (ULDC), Article 5 – Resource Protection Standards, 

Section 5.01.00, is hereby amended as identified in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part 
hereof (Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be 
removed. )  

 
 SECTION 3.  CONFLICTS.  
 
 All ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent necessary to give this 
Ordinance full force and effect, provided however, that nothing herein shall be interpreted so as 
to repeal any existing ordinance or resolution relating to means of securing compliance with the 
City’s Code of Ordinances, unless such repeal is explicitly set forth herein. 
 

SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY.  
 
 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is, for any 

reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance. The City of Lake Alfred, Florida, hereby declares that it would have 
passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective 
of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be 
declared unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 5 . CODIFICATION.   
 
Specific authority is hereby granted to codify and incorporate this Ordinance in the existing 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Lake Alfred.  It is the intention of the City Commission that the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Lake Alfred; and that sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
and the word "ordinance" may be changed to, "section", or such other appropriate word or phrase 
in order to accomplish such intentions; and regardless of whether such inclusion in the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Lake Alfred is accomplished, sections of this Ordinance may be 
renumbered or re- lettered and the correction of typographical and/or scrivener's errors which 
do not affect the intent may be authorized by the City Manager or his or her designee, without 
need of public hearing, by filing corrected or re-codified copy of same with the City Clerk. 
 
 SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 
 This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 

 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED on first r eading at a regular meeting of the Lake Alfred City 

Commission held on the 7th day of November, 2016 
 
 

PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED on second reading at the meeting of the Lake Alfred 
City Commission duly assembled on the 21st day of November, 2016. 
 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 3 of 11 
 

 
CITY OF LAKE ALFRED 
CITY COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 

By:__________________________ 
ATTEST:           Charles O. Lake, Mayor 
 
 
By:_____________________________ 
     Ameé Bailey-Speck, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By:_____________________________ 
      Frederick J. Murphy Jr., City Attorney 
 
 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 4 of 11 
 

Ordinance 1372-16 
Exhibit “A” 

 
Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed. 
 
5.01.00 Development in Flood Prone Areas 
 
 5.01.02 Applicability  

 
5.01.02.03 Basis for establishing flood hazard areas.  The Flood Insurance Study for 
Polk County, Florida and Incorporated Areas dated September 28, 2012 December 22, 
2016, and all subsequent amendments and revisions, and the accompanying Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), and all subsequent amendments and revisions to such 
maps, are adopted by reference as a part of these regulations and shall serve as the 
minimum basis for establishing flood hazard areas. Studies and maps that establish flood 
hazard areas are on file at the Office of the City Clerk of Lake Alfred, Florida .  

 
 5.01.03 Duties and Powers of the Floodplain Administrator  

 
5.01.03.04 Determinations for existing buildings and structures Substantial 
improvement and substantial damage determinations For applications for building 
permits to improve buildings and structures, including alterations, movement, 
enlargement, replacement, repair, change of occupancy, additions, rehabilitations, 
renovations, substantial improvements, repairs of substantial damage, and any other 
improvement of or work on such buildings and structures, the Floodplain Administrator, in 
coordination with the Building Official, shall: 

1. Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the 
market value prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the building or 
structure before the start of construction of the proposed work; in the case of repair, 
the market value of the building or structure shall be the market value before the 
damage occurred and before any repairs are made;  

2. Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged 
building to its pre-damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements and 
repairs, if applicable, to the market value of the building or structure; 

3. Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial 
improvement or repair of substantial damage; and 

4. Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial 
improvement or repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood 
resistant construction requirements of the Florida Building Code and these 
regulations is required. 

 
5.01.03.08 Floodplain management records.  Regardless of any limitation on the period 
required for retention of public records, the Floodplain Administrator shall maintain and 
permanently keep and make available for public inspection all records that are necessary 
for the administration of these regulations and the flood resistant construction 
requirements of the Florida Building Code, including Flood Insurance Rate Maps; Letters 
of Map Change; records of issuance of permits and denial of permits; determinations of 
whether proposed work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial 
damage; required design certifications and documentation of elevations specified by the 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 5 of 11 
 

Florida Building Code and these regulations; notifications to adjacent communities, FEMA, 
and the state related to alterations of watercourses; assurances that the flood carrying 
capacity of altered watercourses will be maintained; documentation related to appeals and 
variances, including justification for issuance or denial; and records of enforcement actions 
taken pursuant to these regulations and the flood resistant construction requirements of 
the Florida Building Code.  These records shall be available for public inspection at Office 
of the City Clerk of Lake Alfred, Florida. 

 
 5.01.04 Permits  

 

5.01.04.07 Other permits required.  Floodplain development permits and building 
permits shall include a condition that all other applicable state or federal permits be 
obtained before commencement of the permitted development, including but not limited 
to the following: 

1. The Southwest Florida Water Management District; section 373.036, F.S.   

2. Florida Department of Health for onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems; 
section 381.0065, F.S. and Chapter 64E-6, F.A.C. 

3. Florida Department of Environmental Protection for activities subject to the Joint 
Coastal Permit; section 161.055, F.S. 

4. Florida Department of Environmental Protection for activities that affect wetlands 
and alter surface water flows, in conjunction with the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers; Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. 

5. Federal permits and approvals. 
 
 5.01.05 Site Plans and Construction Documents 
 

5.01.05.01 Information for development in flood hazard areas. The site plan or 
construction documents for any development subject to the requirements of these 
regulations shall be drawn to scale and shall include, as applicable to the proposed 
development: 

1. Delineation of flood hazard areas, floodway boundaries and flood zone(s), base flood 
elevation(s), and ground elevations if necessary for review of the proposed 
development. 

2. Where flood hazard areas, base flood elevations, or floodway data are not included 
on the FIRM or in the Flood Insurance Study, they shall be established in accordance 
with Section 5.01.05.02(2) or (3) of these regulations. 

3. Where the parcel on which the proposed development will take place will have more 
than 50 lots or is larger than 5 acres and the base flood elevations are not included on 
the FIRM or in the Flood Insurance Study, such elevations shall be established in 
accordance with Section 5.01.05.02(1) or (2)(a) of these regulations. 

4. Location of the proposed activity and proposed structures, and locations of existing 
buildings and structures. 

5. Location, extent, amount, and proposed final grades of any filling, grading, or 
excavation. 

6. Where the placement of fill is proposed, the amount, type, and source of fill material; 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 6 of 11 
 

compaction specifications; a description of the intended purpose of the fill areas; and 
evidence that the proposed fill areas are the minimum necessary to achieve the 
intended purpose.  

7. Existing and proposed alignment of any proposed alteration of a watercourse. 
 
The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to waive the submission of site plans, construction 
documents, and other data that are required by these regulations but that are not required to 
be prepared by a registered design professional if it is found that the nature of the proposed 
development is such that the review of such submissions is not necessary to ascertain 
compliance with these regulations. 
 
5.01.05.02 Information in flood hazard areas without base flood elevations 
(approximate Zone A).  Where flood hazard areas are delineated on the FIRM and base 
flood elevation data have not been provided, the Floodplain Administrator shall: 
 

1. Require the applicant to include base flood elevation data prepared in accordance with 
currently accepted engineering practices. 

 

12. Obtain, review, and provide to applicants base flood elevation and floodway data 
available from a federal or state agency or other source or require the applicant to 
obtain and use base flood elevation and floodway data available from a federal or state 
agency or other source; or 

23. Where base flood elevation data and floodway data are not available from another 
source, where the available data are deemed by the Floodplain Administrator to not 
reasonably reflect flooding conditions, or where the available data are known to be 
scientifically or technically incorrect or otherwise inadequate: 

a. Require the applicant to develop include base flood elevation data prepared in 
accordance with currently accepted engineering practices; or 

b. Specify that the base flood elevation is three (3) two (2) feet above the highest 
adjacent grade at the location of the development, provided there is no evidence 
indicating flood depths have been or may be greater than three (3) two (2) feet. 

34. Where the base flood elevation data are to be used to support a Letter of Map Change 
from FEMA, advise the applicant that the analyses shall be prepared by a Florida 
licensed engineer in a format required by FEMA, and that it shall be the responsibility 
of the applicant to satisfy the submittal requirements and pay the processing fees.  

 
5.01.05.03 Additional analyses and certifications.  As applicable to the location and nature 
of the proposed development activity, and in addition to the requirements of this section, the 
applicant shall have the following analyses signed and sealed by a Florida licensed engineer 
for submission with the site plan and construction documents:   

1. For development activities proposed to be located in a regulatory floodway, a floodway 
encroachment analysis that demonstrates that the encroachment of the proposed 
development will not cause any increase in base flood elevations; where the applicant 
proposes to undertake development activities that do increase base flood elevations, 
the applicant shall submit such analysis to FEMA as specified in Section 5.01.05.04 of 
these regulations and shall submit the Conditional Letter of Map Revision, if issued by 
FEMA, with the site plan and construction documents.  



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 7 of 11 
 

2. For development activities proposed to be located in a riverine flood hazard area for 
which base flood elevations are included in the Flood Insurance Study or on the FIRM 
and floodways have not been designated, a floodway encroachment analysis which 
hydrologic and hydraulic analyses that demonstrates that the cumulative effect of the 
proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated flood 
hazard area encroachments, will not increase the base flood elevation more than one 
(1) foot at any point within the community.  This requirement does not apply in isolated 
flood hazard areas not connected to a riverine flood hazard area or in flood hazard 
areas identified as Zone AO or Zone AH. 

3. For alteration of a watercourse, an engineering analysis prepared in accordance with 
standard engineering practices which demonstrates that the flood-carrying capacity of 
the altered or relocated portion of the watercourse will not be decreased, and 
certification that the altered watercourse shall be maintained in a manner which 
preserves the channel's flood-carrying capacity; the applicant shall submit the analysis 
to FEMA as specified in Section 5.01.05.04 of these regulations. 

 
 5.01.06 Inspections  

 
5.01.06.01 General.  Development for which a floodplain development permit or approval 
is required shall be subject to inspection.  
 

5.01.06.01.02.01 Buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the 
Florida Building Code, lowest floor inspection. Upon placement of the 
lowest floor, including basement, and prior to further vertical construction, the 
owner of a building, structure or facility exempt from the Florida Building Code, 
or the owner’s authorized agent, shall submit to the Floodplain Administrator: 

1. If a design flood elevation was used to determine the required elevation 
of the lowest floor, the certification of elevation of the lowest floor 
prepared and sealed by a Florida licensed professional surveyor; or 

2. If the elevation used to determine the required elevation of the lowest 
floor was determined in accordance with Section 5.01.05.02(23)(b) of 
these regulations, the documentation of height of the lowest floor above 
highest adjacent grade, prepared by the owner or the owner’s 
authorized agent.  

Failure to submit the certification or documentation of elevation of the lowest floor 
or to make required corrections indicated by the Floodplain Administrator’s review 
of the information shall be cause to issue a stop-work order for the project in 
accordance with Section 5.01.08.02. 

 
5.01.09 Definitions  

 
5.01.09.04 Definitions. 
 
Appeal.  A request for a review of the Floodplain Administrator’s interpretation of any 
provision of these regulations or a request for a variance.  
 
Base flood.  A flood having a 1-percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any 
given year. [Also defined in FBC,  B, Section 1612.2 202.] The base flood is 
commonly referred to as the "100-year flood" or the "1-percent-annual chance flood." 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 8 of 11 
 

 
Base flood elevation. The elevation of the base flood, including wave height, relative to 
the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD), North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) 
or other datum specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).   [Also defined in 
FBC, B, Section 1612.2 202.] 
 
Basement. The portion of a building having its floor sub grade (below ground level) on 
all sides. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2 202.] 
 
Design flood. The flood associated with the greater of the following two areas:  [Also 
defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2 202.] 

 
1. Area with a floodplain subject to a 1-percent or greater chance of flooding in 

any year; or 
 
2. Area designated as a flood hazard area on the community's flood hazard map, 

or otherwise legally designated. 
 
Design flood elevation.  The elevation of the "design flood," including wave height, 
relative to the datum specified on the community's legally designated flood hazard map. 
In areas designated as Zone AO, the design flood elevation shall be the elevation of the 
highest  existing  grade  of  the  building's  perimeter  plus  the  depth  number  (in  feet) 
specified on the flood hazard map.   In areas designated as Zone AO where the depth 
number is not specified on the map, the depth number shall be taken as being equal to 2 
feet. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2 202.] 
 
Existing building and existing structure. Any buildings and structures for which the 
"start of construction" commenced before September 24, 2003. [Also defined in FBC, B, 
Section 1612.2 202.]  
 
Flood or flooding.  A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation 
of normally dry land from: [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2 202.] 

 
  1. The overflow of inland or tidal waters. 
 
  2. The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source. 

 
Flood damage-resistant materials. Any construction material capable of withstanding 
direct and prolonged contact with floodwaters without sustaining any damage that 
requires more than cosmetic repair.[Aiso defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2 202.] 

 
Flood hazard area.  The greater of the following two areas:  [Also defined in FBC, B, 
Section 1612.2 202.] 
 
1. The area within a floodplain subject to a 1-percent or greater chance of flooding in 

any year. 
 
2. The area designated as a flood hazard area on the community's flood hazard 

map, or otherwise legally designated. 
 

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).The official map of the community on which the 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 9 of 11 
 

Federal Emergency Management  Agency  has  delineated both  special flood hazard 
areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the community. [Also defined in FBC, B, 
Section 1612.2 202.] 

 
Flood Insurance Study (FIS).  The official report provided by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency that contains the Flood Insurance Rate Map, the Flood Boundary 
and Floodway Map (if applicable), the water surface elevations of the base flood, and 
supporting technical data. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2 202.] 
 
Floodway.   The channel of a river or other riverine watercourse and the adjacent land 
areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively 
increasing the water surface elevation more than one (1) foot. [Also defined in FBC, B, 
Section 1612.2 202..] 
 
Lowest floor. The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area of a building or structure, 
including basement, but excluding any unfinished or flood-resistant enclosure, other than 
a basement, usable solely for vehicle parking, building access or limited storage provided 
that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the non-elevation 
requirements of the Florida Building Code or ASCE 24.  [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 
1612.2.202] 
 
Park trailer.  A transportable unit which has a body width not exceeding fourteen (14) feet 
and which is built on a single chassis and is designed to provide seasonal or temporary 
living quarters when connected to utilities necessary for operation of installed fixtures and 
appliances.  [Defined in 15C-1.0101, F.A.C. Section 320.01 F.S.] 
 
Recreational vehicle. A vehicle, including a park trailer, which is: [Defined in section 
320.01(b), F.S. See Section 320.01 F.S.]  
 
 1. Built on a single chassis; 
 2. Four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal 

projection; 
 3. Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light-duty truck; and 
 4. Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living 

quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. 
 
Special flood hazard area. An area in the floodplain subject to a 1 percent or greater 
chance of flooding in any given year.  Special flood hazard areas are shown on FIRMs as 
Zone A, AO, A1-A30, AE, A99, AH, V1-V30, VE or V.  [Also defined in FBC, B Section 
1612.2. 202] 
 
Start of construction. The date of issuance of permits for new construction and 
substantial improvements to existing structures, provided the actual start of construction, 
repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement is within 
180 days of the date of the issuance.  The actual start of construction means either the 
first placement of permanent construction of a building (including a manufactured home) 
on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction 
of columns.   
 
Permanent construction does not include land preparation (such as clearing, grading, or 
filling), the installation of streets or walkways, excavation for a basement, footings, piers, 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 10 of 11 
 

or foundations, the erection of temporary forms or the installation of accessory buildings 
such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main buildings.   
For a substantial improvement, the actual “start of construction” means the first alteration 
of any wall, ceiling, floor or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration 
affects the external dimensions of the building.  [Also defined in FBC, B Section 1612.2. 
202] 
 
Substantial damage. Damage of any origin sustained by a building or structure whereby 
the cost of restoring the building or structure to its before-damaged condition would equal 
or exceed 50 percent of the market value of the building or structure before the damage 
occurred.  [Also defined in FBC, B Section 1612.2. 202] 
 
Substantial improvement. Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other 
improvement of a building or structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of 
the market value of the building or structure before the improvement or repair is started.  
If the structure has incurred "substantial damage," any repairs are considered substantial 
improvement regardless of the actual repair work performed.  The term does not, however, 
include either:  [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2. 202] 

1. Any project for improvement of a building required to correct existing health, 
sanitary, or safety code violations identified by the building official and that are the 
minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions. 

2. Any alteration of a historic structure provided the alteration will not preclude the 
structure's continued designation as a historic structure.  

 
5.01.10 Flood Resistant Development  

 
5.01.10.02 Subdivisions  

 
5.01.10.02.02 Subdivision plats. Where any portion of proposed subdivisions, 
including manufactured home parks and subdivisions, lies within a flood hazard 
area, the following shall be required: 

1. Delineation of flood hazard areas, floodway boundaries and flood zones, 
and design flood elevations, as appropriate, shall be shown on preliminary 
plats and final plats; 

2. Where the subdivision has more than 50 lots or is larger than 5 acres and 
base flood elevations are not included on the FIRM, the base flood 
elevations determined in accordance with Section 5.01.05.02(1) or (2)(a) 
of these regulations;  

3. Compliance with the site improvement and utilities requirements of Section 
5.01.10.03 of these regulations; and 

4. Each lot must include a site suitable for construction of a structure in 
conformity with the standards of these floodplain management regulations. 

 
5.01.10.04 Manufactured Homes  

 
5.01.10.04.01 General.  All manufactured homes installed in flood hazard areas 
shall be installed by an installer that is licensed pursuant to section 320.8249, F.S., 

and shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 15C-1, F.A.C. and the 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1372-16  Page 11 of 11 
 

requirements of these regulations.   
 
5.01.10.04.02 Foundations. All new manufactured homes and replacement 
manufactured homes installed in flood hazard areas shall be installed on 
permanent, reinforced foundations that are designed in accordance with the 
foundation requirements of the Florida Building Code Residential Section R322.2 
and these regulations. Foundations for manufactured homes subject to Section 
5.01.10.04.04.02 of this ordinance are permitted to be reinforced piers or other 
foundation elements of at least equivalent strength. 
 
5.01.10.04.05 Enclosures. Fully eEnclosed areas below elevated manufactured 
homes shall comply with the requirements of the Florida Building Code, Residential 
Section R322.2 for such enclosed areas. 
 
5.01.10.04.06 Utility equipment.  Utility equipment that serves manufactured 
homes, including electric, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning 
equipment and other service facilities, shall comply with the requirements of the 
Florida Building Code, Residential Section R322.2. 

 
5.01.10.07 Other Development  

 
5.01.10.07.01 General requirements for other development. All development, 
including man-made changes to improved or unimproved real estate for which 
specific provisions are not specified in these regulations or the Florida Building 
Code, shall: 

1. Be located and constructed to minimize flood damage; 

2. Meet the limitations of Section 5.01.10.03.04 of these regulations if located 
in a regulated floodway; 

3. Be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting 
from hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions 
of the design flood;  

4. Be constructed of flood damage-resistant materials; and 

5. Have mechanical, plumbing, and electrical systems above the design flood 
elevation or meet the requirements of ASCE 24, except that minimum 
electric service required to address life safety and electric code 
requirements is permitted below the design flood elevation provided it 
conforms to the provisions of the electrical part of building code for wet 
locations. 

 
5.01.10.07.04 Roads and watercourse crossings in regulated floodways. Roads and 
watercourse crossings, including roads, bridges, culverts, low-water crossings and 
similar means for vehicles or pedestrians to travel from one side of a watercourse to the 
other side, that encroach into regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Section 
5.01.10.03.04 of these regulations.  Alteration of a watercourse that is part of a road or 
watercourse crossing shall meet the requirements of Section 5.01.05.03(3) of these 
regulations. 



 

 
 

CITY OF LAKE ALFRED 
 AMENDMENT TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 STAFF REPORT & PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

 
    
TO:   City of Lake Alfred City Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Marisa M. Barmby, AICP, Senior Planner  
 Central Florida Regional Planning Council 
 
AGENDA DATE:  November 7, 2016 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:   Consider approval of Ordinance 1372-16 for a City-initiated text 

amendment to the Unified Land Development Code of the City of Lake 
Alfred, Florida; specifically, to change the text of applicable sections 
including Article 5, Resource Protection Standards, to update the 
regulations regarding Floodplain Management to ensure they are fully 
consistent with the National Flood Insurance Program requirements by the 
effective date of the revised Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) and to 
adopt new flood hazard maps. 

 
BACKGROUND:   
 
In 2012, the City of Lake Alfred adopted Ordinance 1315-12, which adopted the updated FIRM maps for 
the eastern side of Polk County (effective date September 28, 2012) and updated the City’s floodplain 
management regulations established in cooperation with the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) and the Florida Department of Emergency Management (DEM).  The regulations were prepared 
using a model floodplain ordinance developed by DEM, originally released in April 2012.  The language 
in the model ordinance provided text consistent with newly updated flood design regulations that were 
established in the 2010 Florida Building Code (FBC) update and consistent with requirements 
established by the American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE 24) standards for flood resistant design 
and construction. 
 
The language adopted in Ordinance 1315-12 was based on the DEM model ordinance available at that 
time.  It was not until sometime in 2013 that the FEMA Regional Office formally approved the model 
ordinance.  Between the date of the City’s adoption and the formal approval, FEMA required a number of 
relatively minor changes, which are incorporated into the attached Ordinance.   
  
Section 5.01.02.03 of the current ordinance establishes the basis for flood hazard areas as the 
FIS/FIRMs and all subsequent amendments and revisions thereto by reference.  As such, the City is not 
required to adopt these updated text changes. However, to ensure consistency with the current edition of 
the Florida Building Code and the ASCE 24 standards, the DEM State Floodplain Management Office 
encourages the City to adopt these corrections and also update the date of the Flood Insurance Study 
and FIRMs.  The updated FIRM maps will be effective on December 22, 2016. 
 
 
PROPOSED CHANGES: 
 
The proposed amendments are provided in the attached ordinance.  Text that is underlined is text to be 
added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed.   



City of Lake Alfred 
Amendment to Unified Land Development Code (Floodplain Amendments) 
Staff Report 
November 7, 2016 

Page 2 

 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 
At their October 26, 2016 meeting, the Planning Board voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
amendments to the floodplain language and adoption of the updated FIRM maps. 
 
HEARING DATES:  

 October 26, 2016: Planning Board Meeting (Public Hearing) 
 November 7, 2016: City Commission Meeting (First Reading) 
 November 21, 2016 City Commission Meeting (Adoption Hearing) 

 
MOTION OPTIONS:   
 
 1. Move approval of Ordinance 1372-16 for amendments he proposed amendments to the 

floodplain language and adoption of the updated FIRM maps. 
 
 2. Move approval of Ordinance 1372-16 with changes for amendments he proposed 

amendments to the floodplain language and adoption of the updated FIRM maps. 
 
 3. Move denial of Ordinance 1372-16 with changes for amendments he proposed amendments to 

the floodplain language and adoption of the updated FIRM maps. 
 
 4. Continue the item until a date certain. 

 
 

 
Attachments: 
 Ordinance 1372-16 



1 | P a g e  

The following is an excerpt from the Lake Alfred Planning Board meeting draft 
minutes from October 26, 2016 
 
/s/Mamie Drane      Date:  November 3, 2016 
Administrative Assistant 
Community Development 

 
1) PUBLIC HEARING: FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 

TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
Chair Hults announced the next item on the agenda which was the public hearing for the 
Floodplain Management Land Development Code Text Amendment. He turned the meeting 
over to staff to present the issue. 
 
Marissa Barmby, Central Florida Regional Planning Council explained this was a text 
amendment  to the Land Development Code relating to floodplain management and adopting 
the December 22, 2016 Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM). In 2012, the City adopted the 
Ordinance 1315-12 based on a model ordinance that Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) provided. The maps from FEMA were effective at the time for the eastern part of the 
county only the 2016 maps include the rest of the county. FEMA recently requested local 
municipalities to update floodplain ordinances to match the revised state model ordinance from 
2014. Adopting this keeps the City of Lake Alfred active in the National Flood Insurance 
Program.  
 
Chair Hults opened the public hearing and asked if anyone would like to comment. No one 
came forward. Chair Hults closed the public hearing 
 
Board Member Biggar made a motion that the Planning Board recommend approval with the 
changes of a proposed amendment to the City Commission to adopt the updated FIRM maps 
and update the City's floodplain management regulations to ensure they are fully consistent with 
the National Flood Insurance Program requirements by the effective date of the revised Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps. Motion was seconded by Board Member Noone.  Motion passed by 
unanimous vote. 
 
 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 
 

2.) ORDINANCE 1373-16: COMP PLAN AMENDMENT TO ADD MIXED USE 
 
 
ISSUE: The City of Lake Alfred will consider Ordinance 1373-16 to add the “Mixed Use” 
Future Land Use category to the Comprehensive Plan on first reading. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance 1373-16  
 Staff Report 
 Planning Board Minutes 

 
ANALYSIS:  The Future Land Use Element of the City of Lake Alfred Comprehensive 
Plan currently provides for a variety of residential, commercial and other land uses.  
Mixed Use will allow for developments that are comprised of multiple or mixed uses 
which require specific or selected land use districts.  This type of flexible land use 
category, outside of the downtown area, is not set forth by the City’s existing Future 
Land Use designations. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Ordinance 1373-16 on first reading. 
 
 
  



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 1 of 12 

ORDINANCE NO. 1373-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE 2030 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, 
FLORIDA, SAID AMENDMENT BEING KNOWN AS 
AMENDMENT “16-01ESR”; SPECIFICALLY, AMENDING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT TO ADD A NEW FUTURE 
LAND USE CATEGORY TITLED MIXED USE; AND 
TRANSMITTING SAID AMENDMENT TO THE DEPARTMENT 
OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 163.3167 (1), Florida Statutes, empowers local governments to 

adopt and amend comprehensive plans, or elements or portions thereof, to guide their future 
development and growth; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, the Planning Board, serving 

as the Local Planning Agency designated by the City, and the City Commission has held 
meetings and hearings on the amendment to the Comprehensive Plan and made a part hereof; 
and, the meetings were advertised and held with due public notice, to obtain public comment; 
and having considered written and oral comments received during public hearings, find the 
amendment complete and appropriate to the needs of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, in exercise of its authority the City Commission has determined it necessary 

to adopt this Amendment 16-01ESR to the Future Land Use Element of the Lake Alfred 
Comprehensive Plan, which text is marked as Exhibit "A" and is attached and made a part 
hereof, to ensure that the Plan is in full compliance with the Laws of the State of Florida; to 
preserve and enhance present advantages; encourage the most appropriate use of land, water, 
and resources consistent with the public interest; and deal effectively with future problems that 
may result from the use and development of land within the City of Lake Alfred; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Expedited State Review procedures required by 

Section 163.3184 (3), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Alfred transmitted the proposed 
amendment and supporting data and analysis to the applicable review agencies. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the City Commission of the City of Lake 

Alfred, Florida, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT.  The Future Land Use 
Element of the City of Lake Alfred 2030 Comprehensive Plan is hereby amended as noted in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance.  
 

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase 
of this Ordinance is, for any reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City of Lake Alfred, Florida hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or 
phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, 
clauses and phrases be declared unconstitutional. 

 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 2 of 12 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and resolutions in 
conflict or inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  The effective date of this plan amendment, if the 
amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 31 days after the state land planning agency 
notifies the local government that the plan amendment package is complete.  If timely 
challenged, this amendment shall become effective on the date the state land planning agency 
or the Administration Commission enters a final order determining this adopted amendment to 
be in compliance.  No development orders, development permits, or land uses dependent on 
this amendment may be issued or commence before it has become effective.  If a final order of 
noncompliance is issued by the Administration Commission, this amendment may nevertheless 
be made effective by adoption of a resolution affirming its effective status, a copy of which 
resolution shall be sent to the state land planning agency. 

 
 INTRODUCED AND PASSED on first reading at the regular meeting of the City of Lake 
Alfred City Commission held this 7th day of November, 2016 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading at the Regular meeting of the City of Lake 
Alfred City Commission held this     day of    , 2017. 
 
       CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
 
       By:       
        Charles O. Lake, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Ameé Bailey-Speck, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
      
Frederick J. Murphy, Jr., City Attorney 
 
  



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 3 of 12 

Ordinance 1373-16 
Exhibit “A” 

 
Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be 
removed. 
 
References to 9J-5 of the Florida Administrative Code are proposed to be removed as this 
was repealed in July 2011.  Please note that Objective 1.1 and its subsequent policies (policy 
1.1.1 through 1.1.12) are provided for reference and context. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.1: FUTURE LAND USE CLASSIFICATIONS AND URBAN GROWTH 
 

THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED WILL ENSURE THAT GROWTH WILL BE 

DIRECTED TO APPROPRIATE AREAS AS DEPICTED ON THE FUTURE 

LAND USE MAP SERIES IN ORDER TO DISCOURAGE URBAN SPRAWL 

AND REDUCE GREEN HOUSE GAS EMISSIONS WHILE ENCOURAGING 

ENERGY EFFICIENCY.  THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF ITS LAND 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, THE CITY WILL ALSO ENSURE THAT 

NEW DEVELOPMENT IS: CONSISTENT WITH SOUND PLANNING 

PRACTICES; SENSITIVE TO THE NATURAL LIMITATIONS OF THE 

SPECIFIC SITES TO SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT; CONSISTENT WITH THE 

ABILITY OF THE CITY TO MEET ITS ESTABLISHED LEVEL OF SERVICE 

STANDARDS; COMPATIBLE WITH THE PROTECTION OF NATURAL 

RESOURCES; AND COMPLEMENTARY TO THE EXISTING SOCIAL AND 

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT OF LAKE ALFRED.   [9J-5.006(3)(B)1,4,8] 
 

Measurable Target:  Land use changes classified and mapped according 
to the adopted classifications; CMS up to date; 
development located near City services. 

 
Policy 1.1.1: Through the application of its Land Development Regulations and the 

Future Land Use Map Series, the City will encourage and direct 
development to areas where public facilities and services are available or 
are projected to be available.  [9J-5.006(3)(c)3] 

 
Policy 1.1.2: The City will continue to maintain a concurrency management system to 

ensure that before development orders are issued, public facilities and 
services necessary to maintain established level of service standards are 
available or are committed to be available concurrent with the impacts of 
the development.  The level of service standards are established within the 
elements of the City of Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan, including the 
level of service standards listed within the following elements: 
[9J-5.006(3)(c)3] 

 
a.   Infrastructure Element 
 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 4 of 12 

b.  Transportation Element 
c.   Capital Improvements Element 
 
d.   Public School Facilities Element 

 
Policy 1.1.3: Environmentally sensitive lands shall be defined as high aquifer recharge 

areas, public supply potable water wellfield protection areas, wetlands, 
floodplains, areas of critical state concern as defined by Chapter 380, F.S.; 
Natural Resources of Regional Significance, as delineated in the Strategic 
Regional Policy Plan of the Central Florida Regional Planning Council; 
and natural resources identified by State and Federal agencies.  These 
areas shall be protected through the application of the City's zoning and 
site plan review regulations, which shall regulate the density and intensity 
of use, and shall incorporate techniques such as cluster development to 
protect these resources. Residential densities in areas of 100-Year 
floodplains shall not exceed 1 dwelling per 5 acres.  [9J-5.006(3)(c)6] 

 
Policy 1.1.4: The City will approve the location of new development on the basis of the 

suitability of the land to support such uses without adversely affecting 
natural resources, potable water wellhead protection areas, and 
environmentally sensitive land, using proper site plan review procedures 
and appropriate mitigation measures.  [9J-5.006(3)(c)6] 

 
Policy 1.1.5: The City shall depict generalized land uses on the Future Land Use Map 

and Map Series.  The City has determined it appropriate to depict 
educational uses, public buildings and grounds and other public facilities 
as one land use category on the Future Land Use Map.  The City will 
depict the following natural resources or conditions on the Future Land 
Use Map or Map Series: 1) existing and planned public potable water 
wells and wellhead protection areas; 2) rivers, lakes and floodplains; 3) 
wetlands; and, 4) minerals and soils.  The City has determined that an 
additional classification, that of Preservation, is appropriate and is hereby 
added to the Future Land Use Map. [9J-5.006(4)(a), (b), (d), (e)] 

  
The following Future Land Use classifications are established: 

 
I.  Residential 

 
a)  Rural-Residential/Agriculture 
b)  Very Low Density Residential  
c)  Low Density Residential  
d)  Medium Density Residential 

 
II. Commercial and Employment Centers 
 

a)  Neighborhood Convenience Center 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 5 of 12 

b)  Specialty Center 
c)  Downtown Mixed Use 
d) Mixed Use 
de)  Commercial 
ef)  Industrial 

 
III.  Other 
 

a)  Public Buildings and Grounds  
b)  Recreation and Open Space  
c)  Conservation  
d)  Preservation 

 
Policy 1.1.6: The primary function of the Rural-Residential/Agricultural classification 

is to permit agricultural activities, rural density residential development, and 
to also serve as a reserve for future urban development.  Development 
criteria: Agricultural uses and rural residential development at a density of 
one (1) unit per ten (10) acres (1 du/10 ac). 

 
Policy 1.1.7: The primary function of the Very Low Density Residential classification is 

to accommodate very low density residential development consisting 
primarily of single family detached dwellings; and to allow for agricultural 
uses on property without a dwelling unit, and to allow agricultural uses 
accessory to residential uses.  This Low Density residential designation shall 
meet Lake Alfred's housing needs for the lower density housing, promote 
efficient use of infrastructure, protect existing single family neighborhoods 
and promote compatible land uses.  This classification shall permit densities 
up to three (3) units per acre, depending on the development suitability of 
the site, and availability of public facilities and services.  The density for any 
use in this district shall not exceed one unit per 10 acres (1 du/ 10 ac) where 
paved roads, municipal water and sanitary sewer service are not available. 

  
 Ordinance 1276-10:  Sites 2 and 3 of the 2010 EAR-Based Amendments 

shall be limited to one dwelling unit per 10 acres until such time as the 
Capital Improvements Element and 5-Year Schedule of Capital 
Improvements are revised to provide for central water and wastewater 
services and paved roads to these areas of the City.  At such time, this 
policy shall be amended to provide for a density greater than 1 dwelling 
unit per 10 acres and consistent with the Very Low Density Residential 
Future Land Use designation. (Ordinance 1276-10, October 18, 2010 
adoption) 

 
Policy 1.1.8: The primary function of the Low Density Residential classification is to 

accommodate low density residential development consisting primarily of 
single family detached dwellings.  This Low Density residential designation 
shall meet Lake Alfred's housing needs for the lower density housing, 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 6 of 12 

promote efficient use of infrastructure, protect existing single family 
neighborhoods and promote compatible land uses.  This classification shall 
permit densities up to six (6) units per acre, depending on the development 
suitability of the site, and availability of public facilities and services. 

 
Policy 1.1.9: The primary function of the Medium Density Residential classification is 

to accommodate higher density residential uses, typically consisting of 
townhouses, duplexes, or mobile home parks.  This Medium Density 
residential designation shall meet Lake Alfred's housing needs for the higher 
ranges of residential densities, promote efficient use of existing infrastructure 
and promote affordable housing.  Densities in this classification may range 
up to a maximum of twelve units (12) per net acre, depending on the 
development suitability of the site, and availability of public facilities and 
services.   

 
Policy 1.1.10:   The primary function of the Neighborhood Convenience Center 

classification is to provide for low impact, low intensity commercial, office 
and institutional uses such as convenience stores, gas stations, offices, 
restaurants, and drug stores to serve the residents of the City including the 
Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern.  Neighborhood Convenience 
Centers shall not exceed 10 acres in size and shall not be located closer than 
1 mile from another Neighborhood Convenience Center or City Commercial 
Future Land Use.  Neighborhood Convenience Centers shall be located at 
the intersections of arterials and/or collector roads and must be served by 
central water and wastewater services. 

  
    If located within the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern, the floor 

area ratio in the Neighborhood Commercial Center shall not exceed 0.25 
without special approval as a Planned Unit Development.  If located outside 
of the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern, the floor area ratio shall 
not exceed 0.35 without special approval as a Planned Unit Development.  
Neighborhood Convenience Center shall not exceed a 0.50 floor area ratio 
with approval as a Planned Unit Development if located outside of the Green 
Swamp Area of Critical State Concern and shall not exceed a 0.35 floor area 
ratio with approval as a Planned Unit Development if located within the 
Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern. 

 
    Planned Unit Development approvals for the Neighborhood Convenience 

Center shall require: 
 

1) The site to be reviewed for environmental suitability and  evidence to 
show that environmental impacts have been avoided; 
 

2) Central potable water and wastewater are provided to the site; 
 

3) There is adequate roadway capacity to sustain the development; and  



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 7 of 12 

 
4) Capital improvements required to support the development are 

committed within the Five Year Schedule of Capital Improvements. 
 

Ordinance 1276-10:  The 10+/- acres (Site 1 of the 2010 EAR-Based FLU 
Amendments) shall be limited to 10,000 square feet of development; and 
shall be subject to other applicable Land Development Regulations in the 
City.  Wetland buffers shall be provided on the site consistent with the 
requirements of the Conservation Element and the Land Development 
Regulations. (Ordinance 1276-10, October 18, 2010 adoption) 
  

Policy 1.1.11:   The primary function of the Specialty Center classification is to provide for 
residential, commercial, office, and employment center uses to serve the City 
including the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern and surrounding 
areas.  No outdoor storage shall be allowed in this Future Land Use 
classification.  Residential uses shall not exceed a gross density of 3 dwelling 
units per acre but may have a higher net density if developed through the 
City’s Conservation Development Program.  A minimum of 30 percent open 
space shall be provided within a Specialty Center.  Specialty Centers shall be 
located at the intersections of arterials and/or major collector roads and must 
be served by central water and wastewater services.  If located within the 
Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern, the floor area ratio for 
Specialty Center shall not exceed 0.75. If located outside of the Green 
Swamp Area of Critical State Concern, the floor area ratio in the Specialty 
Center shall not exceed 1.00.   

 
Policy 1.1.12:   The primary function of the Downtown Mixed Use classification is to 

provide for a gradual transition during the planning horizon from residential 
and commercial uses to a mix of interconnected residential, commercial, 
office, institutional, and civic uses within the City’s Downtown.  The 
Downtown Mixed Use classification shall encourage pedestrian friendly and 
transit oriented design especially within the “core area” between the 
northbound and southbound sides of the US 17/92 one-way pair split.  The 
Downtown Mixed Use classification shall be served by central water and 
wastewater services.  Residential uses shall be consistent with the densities 
allowed in the Low Density and Medium Density Future Land Uses.  
Residential densities shall not exceed a gross density of 12 dwelling units per 
acre.  Floor area ratios for non-residential uses shall not exceed 2.5.  Through 
the City’s Land Development Regulations, the City shall establish a master 
plan for the Downtown Mixed Use area including but not limited to public 
parking areas, pedestrian access; architectural standards; and signage. 

  
    As the Downtown Mixed Use area of Downtown Lake Alfred redevelops, 

the following percentage distribution of land uses shall be implemented: 
 

(a)   Residential 15 to 35% 
 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 8 of 12 

(b)   Commercial 40 to 65% 
 
(c)   Office 10 to 40% 
 
(d)   Public/Civic (Institutional) 10 to 20% 
 
(e)   Public parks and open space 5 to 10% 

 
 
Policy 1.1.13:   The intent of Mixed Use (MU) Future Land Use classification is to 

support economic development by providing a specific, defined location 
where multiple opportunities may occur for working, shopping, 
entertainment, lodging and living.  This Future Land Use may only be 
applied outside of the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern. 

 
Mixed Use areas will have their own identity and are focused around 
unique land uses. Being unique they each require different development 
approaches and strategies to achieve the best possible build-out. A mix of 
land uses, both non-residential and residential should be contained in these 
areas. Adequate pedestrian connections between non-residential and 
residential development should be provided. Even though these areas have 
a specific land use focus, steps should be taken to ensure a mixture of uses 
that result in a live-work-play environment.  

 
This category shall apply to developments that are not singular in their 
uses but comprised of multiple or mixed uses which require specific or 
selected land uses in order to implement them. Fundamental elements 
within the Mixed Use category should be present such as compact 
development, mixed uses, provision for multiple modes of transportation 
and responsiveness to the environmental and cultural attributes of the 
development site or community.   
 
Non-residential mixed use development may not exceed the floor area 
ratio of 0.50 and the impervious surface ratio of 0.70.  Residential 
including single family and multi-family shall not exceed 12 dwelling 
units per acre. 

 
 
Policy 1.1.1314:   The primary function of the Commercial classification is to meet the City's 

need for retail goods and services, and shall promote efficient use of 
infrastructure.  The City shall direct future commercial development to areas 
which are well integrated into the transportation network and surrounding 
land uses.  Residential uses are permissible within this category, and shall 
not exceed a gross density of 12 dwelling units per acre, provided that they 
are compatible with surrounding land uses, are connected to central potable 
water and wastewater, and are appropriately integrated, such as apartment 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 9 of 12 

complexes and residential units above commercial storefronts.  The floor 
area ratio in the Commercial classification shall not exceed 2.5.  

Policy 1.1.1415: The primary function of the Industrial classification shall be to 
accommodate the facilities necessary for the processing, fabrication, 
manufacturing, and distribution of goods.  Industrial areas shall be 
compatible with adjacent land uses, promote a variety of employment 
opportunities and facilitate a diversified economic base, and promote 
efficient use of public facilities and services.  New industry shall be located 
in areas with existing industrial land uses and amenities.  Floor area ratios for 
industrial structures in this category shall not exceed 1.5. 

 
Ordinance 1246-09:  The 177.73 +/- acres located in Sections 26 and 27, 
Township 27 South, Range 26 East; generally located at the eastern edge of 
the city limits, south of Lake Lowry, North of U.S. Highway 17/92, and 
north and south of the CSX rail line, shall be designated “Industrial” on the 
Future Land Use Map; and identified by reference to Ordinance 1246-09 on 
the Future Land Use Map, shall be limited to 2.5 million square feet of 
development; and shall be subject to other applicable land development 
regulations within the City (Ordinance 1246-09, May 18, 2009, adoption) 
 
Ordinance 1276-10:  The 21 +/- acres (Site 6 of the 2010 EAR-based FLU 
Amendments) shall be limited to 500,000 square feet of development; and 
shall be subject to other applicable land development regulations within 
the City.  Wetland buffers shall be provided on the site consistent with the 
requirements of the Conservation Element and the Land Development 
Regulations (Ordinance 1276-10, October 18, 2010 adoption).  

 
Policy 1.1.1516: The primary function of the Public Buildings and Grounds classification is 

to provide areas for existing or future government owned buildings or 
grounds.  Floor area ratios for structures in this category shall not exceed 2.0.  

 
Policy 1.1.1617: The primary function of the Recreation and Open Space classification is to 

indicate areas of existing or future government and/or privately owned parks 
and open space areas.  The Floor Area Ratio is 0.01 public parks. 

 
Policy 1.1.1718: The primary function of the Conservation designation is to protect natural 

resources, lake water quality and groundwater quality.  The conservation 
designation includes land within wetlands and the 100 year floodplain; 
however, wetlands and floodplains may also be designated Preservation.  
Residential, commercial and industrial land uses are not permissible on lands 
designated Conservation.  Recreational land uses, such as boat docks, trails, 
parks, and public beaches are permissible, provided that as little of the land 
as possible is disturbed during construction; and provided that the activity 
will not degrade or harm the natural resource.  A residence for a park ranger 
or caretaker is permissible at one unit per twenty acres.  The Floor Area 
Ratio is 0.001 for public conservation areas.  



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 10 of 12 

 
Policy 1.1.1819: The primary function of the Preservation designation is to protect and 

preserve natural resources in their native or natural state.  Preservation land 
uses principally include floodplains and wetlands with associated lakes and 
swamps, and low land habitat with native plant communities, both wetland 
and upland.  No development is allowed on lands designated Preservation. 
When access is granted, only minimum site disturbance to establish access 
by natural trail-ways shall be allowed, with no paving or structures allowed. 
Under special circumstances, access may be granted to Preservation areas by 
construction of unpaved roadways and boat ramps. Special circumstances 
may include roadways that remain dry year round, or roadways and boat 
ramps that can be stabilized against periodic flooding.  

 
Policy 1.1.1920: The City will keep an annually updated list of all hazardous wastes and uses 

within 500 feet of every wellhead. The list of hazardous wastes and uses that 
will be tracked within the 500 foot protection zone shall be identified in the 
City’s Unified Land Development Code.  Wellheads and wellhead protection 
areas shall be mapped on the Future Land Use Map.  Specifically, the map 
shall show the location of each well within the City, including all wells not 
currently within the City limits but part of the City’s water system, and 
identify the 500 foot protection zone around each well.  Wellhead protection 
areas shall be identified in order to prohibit the establishment of new uses 
from locating within the identified zone of protection that may be a potential 
source of pollution to the potable water system.  The City of Lake Alfred 
will utilize, as it becomes available, the most current data available from the 
water management district or any other government agency to identify the 
cone of influence around each well, in order to afford the most protection to 
the potable water supply.  Upon receipt and evaluation of such data, the City 
shall use the data to update the FLUM series with respect to the wellhead 
protection areas.  The City will prohibit existing uses within the protection 
zone that use or create hazardous materials (such use is known as a 
nonconforming use) from being reestablished once the use has ceased.  
Regulations and the procedures for administration of nonconforming uses 
are adopted within the Unified Land Development Code of the City of Lake 
Alfred. [9J-5.006(3)(c)6] 

 
Policy 1.1.2021: The City will cooperate with SWFWMD in designating areas of aquifer 

recharge to the Floridan Aquifer.  Once identified and designated, such areas 
shall be shown as Conservation on the Future Land Use Map, where no 
development shall be allowed, in accordance with the Conservation Future 
Land Use Classification.  

 
Policy 1.1.2122: Public schools are allowed in all land use classifications except the City of 

Lake Alfred’s Future Land Use classification of Conservation.  When 
annexing undeveloped land, the City shall classify sufficient land proximate 
to residential development to meet the projected needs for schools in 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 11 of 12 

coordination with the Polk County School Board, and may establish 
differing criteria for schools of different type or size.  The City hereby 
classifies lands contiguous to existing school sites within all land use 
categories except the City’s Conservation classification for future expansion 
of public schools.  Further, the City hereby encourages the collocation of 
public facilities such as parks, libraries, and community centers, with 
schools, when planning and reviewing a proposed site for new or expanded 
facilities, and shall adopt criteria for collocation in the Unified Land 
Development Code. [163.3177(6)(a), F.S.] 

 
Policy 1.1.2223: The City shall support the use of lands for agricultural purposes by allowing 

such uses within the City limits.  Such uses shall be classified Very Low 
Density Future Land Use classification. [187.201 (23), F.S.] 

 
Policy 1.1.2324: The City shall undertake a visioning process, from time to time, of the future 

physical appearance and qualities of the city, as a component of this 
Comprehensive Plan. Upon doing do, the City shall review the 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Regulations and capital 
improvement program to ensure that these instruments will help to move the 
city toward its vision.  When undertaking a visioning process, the process 
shall be a collaborative planning process with meaningful public 
participation; and shall be adopted by the City Commission upon 
completion.  [163.3167(11), F.S.] 

 
Policy 1.1.2425: The City Commission shall require the development of a Selected Area 

Plan (SAP) for any contiguous property in single or multiple ownership 
that is annexed.  A SAP may be developed for any size of land area where 
the location, configuration, potential density, intensities and mix of land 
uses, and incidence and/or location of natural and historical/archeological 
resources warrants detailed planning.  Any property in single ownership 
planned for 750 or more residential units, or exceeds 50% of the DRI 
thresholds for nonresidential uses established for Polk County, shall 
require a SAP.  Where a potential project is or may become a 
Development of Regional Impact (DRI), a SAP shall be prepared to 
amend the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Policy 1.1.2526: The City shall encourage the establishment of permanent residential units on 

the second and third floors of historic downtown buildings and infill 
buildings, in order to increase the property value and tax base of the 
traditional downtown core. 

 
Policy 1.1.2627: The City shall incentivize mixed land uses and higher density and 

intensities within the County Transit Corridors and Centers Overlay to 
promote energy efficient land use patterns and the reduction of 
infrastructure costs, vehicle miles traveled, and greenhouse gas emissions. 

 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1373-16                           Page 12 of 12 

Policy 1.1.2728: In support of the 2035 Polk County Mobility Plan, the City shall require 
new development and redevelopment to conform with the following 
criteria: 

 
a. Provide access to transit facilities; 
 
b. Connect to centralized potable water and wastewater systems; 
 
c. Incorporate design features that promote green building principles; 
 
d. Integrate pedestrian-oriented features, including sidewalks, trail, or 

walkways into and between all development including pedestrian 
shelters or awnings, thereby connecting developments; 

 
e. Provide accesses to civic space, parks, green areas, and open space 

and other amenities; 
 
f. Be supported by public safety (fire, EMS, law enforcement); and  
 
g. Have access to public schools. 

 
Policy 1.1.2829: The City shall, through its Downtown Mixed Use, Mixed Use, and non-

residential Future Land Use categories, promote infill, mixed-use, and 
higher density development, and provide incentives to support the creation 
of affordable housing in mixed-use zones.  

 
Policy 1.1.2930: The City shall use the following incentives to encourage vertical mixed-

use development: 
 

1.  Reduced and shared parking standards under specified conditions; 
 
2.  Minimum and/or incentivized FARs; 
 
3.  Expedited review; and 
 
4.  Alternative urban infill code compliance standards. 

 
 

 



Page 1 of 2 
AGENDA ITEM – Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment                                         November 7, 2016 

 
CITY OF LAKE ALFRED 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT 
STAFF REPORT AND PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

NOVEMBER 7, 2016 
 

                                                                                                          
TO:   CITY OF LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION   
  
PREPARED BY:  CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 
 
AGENDA DATE: NOVEMBER 7, 2016 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: PUBLIC HEARING ORDINANCE 1373-16:  City-initiated 

request to amend the Future Land Use Element of the City of 
Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan to add the “Mixed Use” 
Future Land Use designation. 

 
 

 
STAFF REPORT: 

The Future Land Use Element of the City of Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan currently provides 
for the following Future land Use designations: 

I.  Residential 
a)  Rural-Residential/Agriculture 
b)  Very Low Density Residential  
c)  Low Density Residential  
d)  Medium Density Residential 

 
II. Commercial and Employment Centers 

a)  Neighborhood Convenience Center 
b)  Specialty Center 
c)  Downtown Mixed Use 
d)  Commercial 
e)  Industrial 

 
 

III.  Other 
a)  Public Buildings and Grounds  
b)  Recreation and Open Space  
c)  Conservation  
d)  Preservation 

 
Staff has determined that a new Future Land Use designation of “Mixed Use” should be added to 



Page 2 of 2 
AGENDA ITEM – Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment                                         November 7, 2016 

the Comprehensive Plan.  Mixed Use will allow for developments that are comprised of multiple 
or mixed uses which require specific or selected land use districts.  This type of flexible land use 
category, outside of the downtown area, is not set forth by the City’s existing Future Land Use 
designations. 

The proposed text to be added to Policy 1.1.5 and as Policy 1.1.13 of the Future Land Use 
Element is provided in the attached Ordinance.  All subsequent policies will be renumbered.  
References to 9J-5 of the Florida Administrative Code are proposed to be removed as this was 
repealed in July 2011. 

 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 
At their October 26, 2016 meeting, the Planning Board voted to recommend approval of the 
creation of the new Mixed Use Future Land Use district to the City Commission. 
 
MOTION OPTIONS:  
 
Options for motions are listed below. 
 

1. Move approval of Ordinance 1373-16 for the creation of the proposed Mixed Use Future 
Land Use District. 
 

2. Move approval with changes of Ordinance 1373-16 or the creation of the proposed 
Mixed Use Future Land Use District. 
 

3. Move denial of Ordinance 1373-16 for the creation of the proposed Mixed Use Future 
Land Use District. 
 

4. Move continuation of this item until a date certain. 
 

 
Attachments: 
 Ordinance 1373-16 
 
 
 
 
 



1 | P a g e  

The following is an excerpt from the Lake Alfred Planning Board meeting draft 
minutes from October 26, 2016 
 
/s/Mamie Drane      Date:  November 3, 2016 
Administrative Assistant 
Community Development 
 
2) PUBLIC HEARING: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT 

TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

Ms. Barmby explained this item, includes a City-initiated text amendment to the Future Land 
Use Element of the Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan to add the "Mixed Use" Future Land Use 
designation. This type of flexible land use category, outside of the downtown and Green Swamp 
area, is not set forth by the City’s existing Future Land Use designations. Mixed Use will allow 
for developments that are comprised of multiple or mixed uses which require specific or 
selected land use districts. 
 
Board Member Biggar asked if this was similar to the amendment made for the Downtown 
area.  Ms. Barmby said it was similar but with different guidelines for the specific areas. 
 
Chair Hults opened the public hearing and asked if anyone would like to comment. No one 
came forward. 
 
Chair Hults closed the public hearing 
  
Board Member Noone made a motion that the Planning Board recommends approval to the 
City Commission for A City-Initiated text amendment to the Future Land Use Element of the City 
of Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan to add a new Future Land Use category titled Mixed Use. 
Vice Chair Hoffman seconded the motion.  Motion passed by unanimous vote 

 
 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 
 

3.) ORDINANCE 1374-16: FUTURE LAND USE FOR GAPWAY GROVES 
 

4.) ORDINANCE 1375-16: ZONING PUD FOR GAPWAY GROVES 
 
 
ISSUE: The City Commission will consider Ordinance 1374-16 and 1375-16 to amend 
the Future Land Use designation and Zoning on property owned by Gapway Groves 
Corporation on first reading. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance 1374-16  
 Ordinance 1375-16 
 Staff Report 
 Planning Board Minutes 

 
ANALYSIS:  Gapway Groves Corporation has requested to amend the Future Land 
Use designation and zoning on 91.5 acres.  The property, known as the Adams Estate, 
is located adjacent to the southwestern shore of Lake Alfred, north of Lake Alfred Road 
and east of Adams Barn Road (near the Fort Cummings sign just past the railroad 
tracks on Pierce Road).from  
 
The Future Land Use request is to change approximately 81.1 acres from “Low Density 
Residential (LDR) to Mixed Use (MU) while retaining the Conservation (CON) land use 
on approximately 10.4 acres of land for the total approximate 91.51 acres.  
 
The subsequent Zoning request is to change the 81.1 acres from Single Family 
Dwelling District (R1-A) to Planned Unit Development-Mixed Use (PUD-MU) while 
retaining the Conservation (CON) zoning on the approximately 10.4 acres of land for the 
total approximate 91.5 acres.  
 
The applicant’s intended goal is to create a special events facility utilizing the existing  
structures (dating back to the 1940s) on site, and provide additional facilities on-site for 
reconfiguration as a facility for weddings, conferences, and similar special events on 
approximately 27 acres (Phase I; 2017-2021). The remainder of the site will be used for 
the eventual development of the property for residential with accessory resort related 
commercial uses (Phases II and III; 2027).   
 
Gapway Groves Corporation intends to maintain ownership of the property after 
development and will maintain common open space and facilities, including the existing 
entrance road. The Lake Alfred Planning Board has recommended approval of the 
proposed future land use and zoning designations. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Approval of Ordinance 1374-16 on first reading. 
Approval of Ordinance 1375-16 on first reading with conditions.  



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1374-16                                                                                                        Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. 1374-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE 2030 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, 
FLORIDA, SAID AMENDMENT BEING KNOWN AS 
"AMENDMENT 16-02ESR"; SPECIFICALLY, CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE CLASSIFICATION FROM LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL (LDR) TO MIXED USE (MU) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 81.1 ACRES WHILE RETAINING THE 
CONSERVATION (CON) FUTURE LAND USE ON 
APPROXIMATELY 10.4 ACRES FOR THE TOTAL 
APPROXIMATE 91.51 ACRES OF LAND; AND TRANSMITTING 
SAID AMENDMENT TO THE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC 
OPPORTUNITY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (General Location: 
Property is referred to as the Adams Estate, located adjacent 
to the southwestern shore of Lake Alfred, north of Old Lake 
Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road, further described 
as parcels: 262731-000000-023010 and 262731-000000-
032010) 

 
WHEREAS, Section 163.3167 (1), Florida Statutes, empowers local governments to 

adopt and amend comprehensive plans, or elements or portions thereof, to guide their future 
development and growth; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Gapway Groves Corporation LLC has submitted a request for a Mixed Use 

land use designation on their property, referred to as Adams Estate, for future mixed use 
development purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, the Planning Board, serving 

as the Local Planning Agency designated by the City, and the City Commission has held 
meetings and hearings on the amendment to the Comprehensive Plan and made a part hereof; 
and, the meetings were advertised and held with due public notice, to obtain public comment; 
and having considered written and oral comments received during public hearings, find the 
amendment complete and appropriate to the needs of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, in exercise of its authority the City Commission has determined it necessary 

to adopt this Amendment 16-02ESR to the Comprehensive Plan, which map is marked as 
Exhibit "B" and is attached and made a part hereof, to ensure that the Plan is in full compliance 
with the Laws of the State of Florida; to preserve and enhance present advantages; encourage 
the most appropriate use of land, water, and resources consistent with the public interest; and 
deal effectively with future problems that may result from the use and development of land 
within the City of Lake Alfred; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Expedited State Review procedures required by 

Section 163.3184 (3), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Alfred transmitted the proposed 
amendment and supporting data and analysis to the applicable review agencies. 

 
 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1374-16                           Page 2 of 5 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the City Commission of the City of Lake 
Alfred, Florida, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT.   
 
The Future Land Use Map of the City of Lake Alfred 2030 Comprehensive Plan is 

hereby amended by re-designating the area described in Exhibit “A” from Low Density 
Residential (LDR ) to Mixed Use (MU) Future Land Use on approximately 81.1 acres while 
retaining Conservation (CON) Future Land Use on approximately 10.4 acres of land, for an 
approximately 91.51 total acres of land, known as the Adams Estate, said property being further 
depicted and identified in Exhibit “B”  attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance.  
 

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY.   
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is, for any 

reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance. The City of Lake Alfred, Florida hereby declares that it would have 
passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of 
the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be 
declared unconstitutional. 

 
SECTION 3. CONFLICTS.   
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances and resolutions in conflict or inconsistent with the 

provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent necessary to give this ordinance 
full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 
The effective date of this plan amendment, if the amendment is not timely challenged, 

shall be 31 days after the state land planning agency notifies the local government that the plan 
amendment package is complete.  If timely challenged, this amendment shall become effective 
on the date the state land planning agency or the Administration Commission enters a final 
order determining this adopted amendment to be in compliance.  No development orders, 
development permits, or land uses dependent on this amendment may be issued or commence 
before it has become effective.  If a final order of noncompliance is issued by the Administration 
Commission, this amendment may nevertheless be made effective by adoption of a resolution 
affirming its effective status, a copy of which resolution shall be sent to the state land planning 
agency. 
 
 
 INTRODUCED AND PASSED on first reading at the regular meeting of the City of Lake 
Alfred City Commission held this 7th day of November, 2016 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading at the Regular meeting of the City of Lake 
Alfred City Commission held this     day of    , 2017. 
 
 
 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1374-16                           Page 3 of 5 
 

       CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
 
       By:       
        Charles O. Lake, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Ameé Bailey-Speck, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
      
Frederick J. Murphy, Jr., City Attorney 



Ordinance 1374-16 
Exhibit “A” 

 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1374-16                                                                                                        Page 4 of 5 

Legal Description 
 

 
Parcel 1:  262731-000000-023010  
NW1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 27S, RANGE 26E N OF RR & N1/2 OF SW1/4 
OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 27S, RANGE 26E LESS BEG 1159 FT SWLY OF INTER ACL 
RR & E LINE SEC CONT SWLY 529 FT N 26 DEG 40 MIN W 200 FT TO LAKE NELY ALONG 
LAKE TO POINT N 01 DEG 45 MIN W OF BEG S 01 DEG 45 MIN E TO BEG & LESS THAT 
PART LYING SWLY OF LAKE ALFRED RD & LESS THAT PART LYING W OF ADAMS BARN 
RD & LESS WATERS OF LK ALFRED & LESS MAINT R/W FOR LAKE ALFRED RD PER MB 
19 PG 47 
 
AND 
 
 
Parcel 2:  262731-000000-032010 
S1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 27S, RANGE 26E E OF SUB & SW1/4 OF 
NE1/4 OF OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 27S, RANGE 26E LESS WATERS OF LAKE ALFRED 
& LESS THAT PART LYING WITHIN FOLL: BEG SW COR OF WATER RIDGE SUB PH II PB 
137 PG 46 S89-42-22E ALONG N LINE OF S1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 450 FT S33-53-08W 
478.39 FT N89-42-22 W 185 FT N0-14-52E 398.5 FT TO POB 
 
  



Ordinance 1374-16 
Exhibit “B” 

 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1374-16                                                                                                        Page 5 of 5 

 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1375-16                           Page 1 of 8 

ORDINANCE NO. 1375-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA, ASSIGNING PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT – MIXED USE (PUD-MU) ZONING DISTRICT 
TO APPROXIMATELY 81.1 ACRES WHILE RETAINING THE 
CONSERVATION (CON) ZONING ON APPROXIMATELY 10.4 
ACRES FOR THE TOTAL APPROXIMATE 91.51 ACRES OF 
LAND; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (General Location: ADJACENT TO THE 
SOUTHWESTERN SHORE OF LAKE ALFRED, NORTH OF 
LAKE ALFRED ROAD AND EAST OF ADAMS BARN ROAD, 
FURTHER DESCRIBED AS PARCELS:  262731-000000-023010 
AND 262731-000000-032010, OWNED BY GAPWAY GROVE 
CORPORATION AND REFERRED TO AS ADAMS ESTATE) 
 

 
WHEREAS, Gapway Grove Corporation has submitted a request to change the zoning 

district on their property, referred to as the Adams Estate, to allow for mixed use development; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the property constitutes less than five percent (5%) of the municipally zoned 

area of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lake Alfred Planning Board and City Commission have held meetings 

and hearings on the zoning request and, the meetings were advertised and held with due public 
notice, to obtain public comment; and having considered written and oral comments received 
during public hearings, find the zoning request to be complete and appropriate to the needs of 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the requested zoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Element of the 

Lake Alfred 2030 Comprehensive Plan; and 
  
WHEREAS, in exercise of its authority, the City Commission of the City of Lake Alfred 

has determined it necessary to amend the Official Zoning Map to change the City zoning 
classification assigned to these properties. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the City Commission of the City of Lake 

Alfred, Florida, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT – MIXED USE (PUD-MU) ZONING 
DISTRICT.  The Official Zoning Map of the City of Lake Alfred is hereby amended by re-
designating the property described in Exhibit “A” from R-1A to Planned Unit Development - 
Mixed Use (PUD-MU) zoning district on approximately 81.1 acres while retaining the 
Conservation (CON) Zoning District on approximately 10.4 acres of land, for an approximately 
91.51 total acres of land, known as the Adams Estate, said property being further depicted and 
identified in Exhibit “B”  attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance.  

 
SECTION 2. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT – MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN. 

The Master Development Plan (MDP) for this Planned Unit Development attached hereto as 
Exhibit “C” is approved in accordance with Article 7.04.01 of the Unified Land Development 
Code of the City of Lake Alfred for the total property known as the Adams Estate PUD, including 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1375-16                           Page 2 of 8 

additional special conditions all of which are attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and made a part 
hereof.   
 

SECTION 3. MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN SPECIAL CONDITIONS. In 
accordance with Section 7.04.03 of the Unified Land Development Code of the City of Lake 
Alfred, the Master Development Plan attached in Exhibit “C” and the special conditions attached 
in Exhibit “D” hereto shall govern further public review and development of the property as 
described in Exhibit “A”. 
 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase 
of this Ordinance is, for any reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City of Lake Alfred, Florida hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or 
phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, 
clauses and phrases be declared unconstitutional. 

 
SECTION 4. CONFLICTS.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and resolutions in 

conflict or inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE.  Pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, this 
ordinance shall be effective on the effective date of Ordinance 1374-16. 
 
 INTRODUCED AND PASSED on first reading at the regular meeting of the City of Lake 
Alfred City Commission held this 7th day of November, 2016 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading at the Regular meeting of the City of Lake 
Alfred City Commission held this     day of    , 2017. 
 
       CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
 
       By:       
        Charles O. Lake, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Ameé Bailey-Speck, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
      
Frederick J. Murphy, Jr., City Attorney 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1375-16                           Page 3 of 8 

Ordinance 1375-16 
Exhibit “A”  

 
Legal Description 

 
 
 
Parcel 1:  262731-000000-023010  
NW1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 27S, RANGE 26E N OF RR & N1/2 OF SW1/4 
OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 27S, RANGE 26E LESS BEG 1159 FT SWLY OF INTER ACL 
RR & E LINE SEC CONT SWLY 529 FT N 26 DEG 40 MIN W 200 FT TO LAKE NELY ALONG 
LAKE TO POINT N 01 DEG 45 MIN W OF BEG S 01 DEG 45 MIN E TO BEG & LESS THAT 
PART LYING SWLY OF LAKE ALFRED RD & LESS THAT PART LYING W OF ADAMS BARN 
RD & LESS WATERS OF LK ALFRED & LESS MAINT R/W FOR LAKE ALFRED RD PER MB 
19 PG 47 
 
AND 
 
 
Parcel 2:  262731-000000-032010 
S1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 27S, RANGE 26E E OF SUB & SW1/4 OF 
NE1/4 OF OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 27S, RANGE 26E LESS WATERS OF LAKE ALFRED 
& LESS THAT PART LYING WITHIN FOLL: BEG SW COR OF WATER RIDGE SUB PH II PB 
137 PG 46 S89-42-22E ALONG N LINE OF S1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 450 FT S33-53-08W 
478.39 FT N89-42-22 W 185 FT N0-14-52E 398.5 FT TO POB 
 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1375-16                                     Page 4 of 8 

 
Ordinance 1375-16 

Exhibit “B”  
 
 
 
 

  



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1375-16                           Page 5 of 8 

Ordinance 1375-16 
Exhibit “C”  

Master Development Plan 
 
 
 
  



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1375-16                           Page 6 of 8 

Ordinance 1375-16 
Exhibit “C”  

Master Development Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1375-16                           Page 7 of 8 

Ordinance 1375-16 
Exhibit “D” 

Development Conditions 
 

1. The Phase I Planned Unit Development approval shall be for a special event facility for 
weddings, conferences, and similar special events including 26 cottages.  Outdoor 
amplified music may be played between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on any day of the 
week. 
 

2. A detailed traffic study for Phases lA and IB shall be completed by the applicant prior to 
final site plan approval. 
 

3. The development is required to connect to City of Lake Alfred water and wastewater 
utilities. 
 

4. The Master Development Plan included herein together with the conditions of approval 
shall be considered the "Binding Site Plan."  In addition to the requirements of Section 
7.04.04, any modifications to access points, structures within 50 feet of the boundary, or 
intensification of uses within 100 feet of the boundary shall constitute a Major 
Modification to this approval for Phase I. 
 

5. Events attracting more than 300 people are prohibited without special event approval by 
the City.  There shall be a minimum of two (2) hours between events to limit the 
potential off-site traffic congestion along Adams Barn Road and Lake Alfred Road. 
 

6. Parking within the public right-of-way shall be prohibited. The uses and parking shall be 
contained within the 27 acre Phase I boundary shown on the Master Development Plan. 
 

7. There shall be no permanent alcohol or retail sales except in accordance with the Land 
Development Code and Comprehensive Plan requirements, including but not limited to 
obtaining the proper land use designation.  With an approved Florida Division of 
Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco alcohol license, this PUD approval permits the sale 
and/or service of alcohol for on-site consumption ancillary to and in conjunction with the 
approved activities permitted to operate on this property. 
 

8. Prior to site plan approval, the applicant shall complete a jurisdictional wetlands 
determination (JD) by the SWFWMD consistent with Policy 1.8.2 of the Future Land 
Use Element.  The JD will be used as the basis for determining the location of the 
wetlands protection and transitional zones.  A preliminary environmental impact 
assessment shall also be conducted indicating any native vegetative species and 
wildlife habitat such as gopher tortoises, etc. 
 

9. The applicant will obtain all necessary permits required related to wetland and 
floodplain development. 
 

10. The location of the dock as illustrated on the Master Development Plan may be 
relocated to a more northern point upon submittal of a recorded easement agreement 
with the neighboring property owner. 
 

11. To proceed to Phases II and Ill of the development, the applicant will be required to 
submit a detailed traffic study showing the impacts of the development, and mitigation. 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1375-16                           Page 8 of 8 

12. The cottages included in Phase lA (12 cottages) are restricted to temporary rental use 
in conjunction with the special event facility use and therefore will not generate any 
impacts on the Polk County School Board.  Per the Polk County School Board, these 12 
cottages are exempt from school impact fees.  If these 12 cottages ever convert to 
single-family homes, the impact fees would be due at that time.  The 14 cottages in 
Phase IB, are subject to school concurrency requirements prior to site plan 
approval/construction plan approval. 
 

13. Before Phase I can be utilized as a special events venue, the applicant shall prepare an 
event management plan consistent with major event management techniques for the 
City of Lake Alfred staff to review, approve, and keep on file. Should this plan need to 
be changed or modified for any reason, the City of Lake Alfred shall review and approve 
any changes or modifications in writing prior to any changes or modifications being 
commenced or enacted. 

 
 

1. Additional condition relating to wetland transitional zones to be added if the Commission 
determines the applicant provided sufficient evidence that a smaller transitional zone can 
protect the functions of the wetland. The condition will include the required wetland 
transitional zone (minimum 30 feet). 

 



Page 1 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

 
CITY OF LAKE ALFRED 

 ADAMS ESTATES FUTURE LAND USE AND ZONING AMENDMENT 
 STAFF REPORT & PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

NOVEMBER 7, 2016 
    
TO:   City of Lake Alfred City Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Marisa M. Barmby, AICP, Senior Planner  
 Central Florida Regional Planning Council 
 
AGENDA DATE:  November 7, 2016 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:   Two separate items for Consideration (2 votes): 
 

1. PUBLIC HEARING – FUTURE LAND USE:  
Ordinance 1374-16:   
A request by Gapway Groves Corporation, to amend 
the Future Land Use designation from “Low Density 
Residential (LDR) to Mixed Use (MU) on approximately 
81.1 acres while retaining the Conservation (CON) 
Future Land Use on approximately 10.4 acres of land 
for the total approximate 91.51 acres of land, known as 
the Adams Estate, located adjacent to the southwestern 
shore of Lake Alfred, north of lake Alfred Road and east 
of Adams Barn Road, further described as parcels:  
262731-000000-023010 and 262731-000000-032010. 

 
2. FIRST READING - ZONING: Ordinance 1375-16 

A request by Gapway Groves Corporation, to amend 
the Zoning designation Single Family Dwelling District 
(R1-A) to Planned Unit Development-Mixed Use (PUD-
MU) on approximately 81.1 acres while retaining the 
Conservation (CON) zoning on approximately 10.4 
acres of land for the total approximate 91.51 acres of 
land, known as the Adams Estate, located adjacent to 
the southwestern shores of Lake Alfred, north of lake 
Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road, further 
described as parcels:  262731-000000-023010 and 
262731-000000-032010. 

BACKGROUND:   
 
Gapway Groves, Inc. (applicant) requests a Future Land Use map amendment and an 
Official Zoning Map amendment on the approximately 91.51 acres of land, located 
adjacent to the southwestern shore of Lake Alfred, north of Lake Alfred Road and east 
of Adams Barn Road, further described as parcels:  262731-000000-023010 and 



Page 2 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

262731-000000-032010 to create a special events facility.  This facility will utilize the 
existing structures on site, plus add additional facilities on-site for reconfiguration as a 
facility for weddings, conferences, and similar special events.  The remainder of the site 
will be used for the eventual development of the property for residential with accessory 
resort related commercial uses.  The request is to amend the Future Land Use of the 
property from Low Density Residential (LDR) and Conservation (CON) Future Land Use 
to Mixed Use (MU) and Conservation (CON) Future Land Use and the property’s zoning 
from Single Family Dwelling District (R1-A)  and Conservation (CON) to Planned Unit 
Development-Mixed Use (PUD-MU) and Conservation (CON).  There is a companion 
Future Land Use Text amendment related to the creation of the Mixed Use Future Land 
Use district. 
 

 
. 
 
This agenda report includes an analysis of the two requests, which are related.  Each 
request requires its own individual public hearing, motion, and vote by the City 
Commission.  This process is outlined in the Motion Options portion of this report.  
 
 
 
FUTURE LAND USE REQUEST 
 
The applicant requests a Future Land Use Map amendment from Low Density 
Residential (LDR) to Mixed Use (MU) for approximately 81.1 of the 91.5 acres with the 
remaining 10.4 acres of land retaining its existing Conservation Future Land Use.  A 



Page 3 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

companion text amendment to the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 
Plan of the City of Lake Alfred creates the Mixed Use Future Land Use district and 
includes the following description for its purpose and the Future Land Use Element 
includes the following description for the purpose of the Conservation District: 
 

Policy 1.1.8: The primary function of the Low Density Residential 
classification is to accommodate low density residential 
development consisting primarily of single family detached 
dwellings.  This Low Density residential designation shall meet 
Lake Alfred's housing needs for the lower density housing, 
promote efficient use of infrastructure, protect existing single 
family neighborhoods and promote compatible land uses.  This 
classification shall permit densities up to six (6) units per acre, 
depending on the development suitability of the site, and 
availability of public facilities and services. 

 
Proposed New  

Policy 1.1.13: The intent of Mixed Use (MU) Future Land Use classification 
is to support economic development by providing a specific, 
defined location where multiple opportunities may occur for 
working, shopping, entertainment, lodging and living.  This 
Future Land Use may only be applied outside of the Green 
Swamp Area of Critical State Concern. 

 
 Non-residential mixed use development may not exceed the floor 

area ratio of 0.50 and the impervious surface ratio of 0.70.  
Residential including single family and multi-family shall not 
exceed 12 dwelling units per acre. 

 
Policy 1.1.18: The primary function of the Conservation designation is to 

protect natural resources, lake water quality and groundwater 
quality.  The conservation designation includes land within 
wetlands and the 100 year floodplain; however, wetlands and 
floodplains may also be designated Preservation.  Residential, 
commercial and industrial land uses are not permissible on lands 
designated Conservation.  Recreational land uses, such as boat 
docks, trails, parks, and public beaches are permissible, 
provided that as little of the land as possible is disturbed during 
construction; and provided that the activity will not degrade or 
harm the natural resource.  A residence for a park ranger or 
caretaker is permissible at one unit per twenty acres.  The Floor 
Area Ratio is 0.001 for public conservation areas. 

 
 
 
ZONING REQUEST 
 
The applicant requests a Zoning Map amendment from Single Family Dwelling District 
(R1-A) to Planned Unit Development-Mixed Use (PUD-MU) for approximately 81.1 of 
the 91.5 acres with the remaining 10.4 acres of land retaining its existing Conservation 



Page 4 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

Zoning District.  The Land Development Regulations include the following description 
for the purpose of the PUD-MU and Conservation districts:   
 

 
Policy 2.04.02.06(B): R-1A and R-1A-C  Single Family Dwelling:  The 

purpose of this district is to provide areas for a higher 
density, less restrictive residential development, 
along with the necessary and incidental accessory 
uses, and uses characteristic and accepted with, but 
not detrimental to, the principal uses. 

 
Policy 2.04.02.20(B): CN  Conservation:  The purpose of the Conservation 

district is to protect natural resources so that 
wetlands, floodplains, lake water quality and 
groundwater quality are not degraded.  The 
conservation district includes land within wetlands 
and the 100-year floodplain; however, wetlands and 
floodplains may also be classified as Preservation.  
Residential, commercial and industrial land uses are 
not permissible on land classified as Conservation.  
Limited disturbance of the land is permissible to 
construct and provide recreation areas, such as boat 
docks, trails, parks, public beaches and access to 
recreation areas; and to allow for the construction of 
public utilities such as lift stations and wells. 

 
Policy 2.04.02.20(B): Planned Unit Development – Mixed Use (PUD-

MU):  The Planned Unit Development Mixed Use 
district (PUD-MU) is enacted to provide for and 
encourage a compatible mix of uses, rather than a 
separation of uses, in accordance with the Lake 
Alfred Comprehensive Plan.  Planned Unit 
Development Mixed Use districts are defined for 
purposes of these regulations as planned 
development districts for the establishment of 
complimentary groupings of residential, commercial, 
office, industrial, or other uses.  

 
  It is the intent of these regulations to provide for development of such districts at 

appropriate locations, in accord with the goals, objectives, policies, and locational 
criteria of the Comprehensive Plan, and in accord with the requirements herein.  
It is further intended that PUD-MU development shall be in complexes with 
carefully located buildings, parking and service areas, open space and use 
mixtures which are scaled and balanced to reduce general traffic congestion, by 
providing interdependent uses and uses which are compatible with adjacent and 
surrounding land uses. Uses must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
permitted uses, locational criteria, project size, intensity and other criteria.  

 
 



Page 5 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 
The property associated with both applications is located adjacent to the southwestern 
shore of Lake Alfred, north of Lake Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road 
(Attached Aerial Map).  The subject property is in citrus and pastureland with two single 
family homes built in the 1920s and a pool built in the 1950s and a shed built in the 
1990s.  The surrounding area includes Lake Alfred to the east, submerged lands to the 
north, citrus lands to the east, and the CSX railroad to the south.  There is a multi-family 
development on unincorporated land on the southeastern corner of the property.  The 
land to the northwest of the property is currently vacant, but is platted 0.4-acre lots.  The 
land north of the property on the other side of the swampy protrusion of Lake Alfred is 
the platted Water Ridge Subdivision, Phase II with ¼ to ½ acre lots.  The majority of the 
lots are currently vacant.  To the southwest of the property, on the other side of Lake 
Alfred Road and the CSX railroad, there is a mobile home park and the Agricultural and 
Labor Program, Inc headquarters (Attached Current Future Land Use Map and current 
Zoning Map.)   
 
 
 

Northwest: 
FLU:  City of Auburndale 
Low Density Residential 
(LDR) 
 
ZON:  City of Auburndale 
Single Family Residential 
(RS-1) 
 

North: 
FLU: CON and Lake Alfred 
(Water) 
 
ZON:  Polk A/RR 

Northeast: 
Lake Alfred (Water) 

West: 
FLU:  City of Auburndale 
Low Density Residential 
(LDR) and Neighborhood 
Activity Center (NAC) 
 
ZON: City of Auburndale 
Open Use Agricultural 
(OUA)  

Subject Parcel 
Current FLU:   LDR, & CON 
Requested FLU: MU & CON 
 
Current ZON:  R-1A and CON 
Requested ZON: PUD-MU and 
CON 
 

East: 
FLU: CON, Lake Alfred 
(Water), and Polk County 
A/RR 
 
ZON: CON, Water (Lake 
Alfred), and Polk A/RR 
 

Southwest: 
FLU:  Polk A/RR 
 
ZON:  Polk A/RR 
 

South: 
FLU: Unassigned, CSX 
railroad, and Polk A/RR 
 
ZON: Polk A/RR & Unassigned
 

Southeast: 
FLU: Polk A/RR and CSX 
railroad 
 
ZON:  Polk A/RR 
 

 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: 
 
The applicant would like to create a special events facility utilizing the existing  
structures (dating back to the 1940s) on site, and provide additional facilities on-site for 
reconfiguration as a facility for weddings, conferences, and similar special events on 



Page 6 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

approximately 27 acres (Phase I).  The remainder of the site will be used for the 
eventual development of the property for residential with accessory resort related 
commercial uses (Phases II and III).   
 
Included in the special events area will be the following facilities: 

 Estate House (existing) - The Estate House will be used as a ready (event 
preparation) area and for additional event services as needed. 

 Event Lawn - Located next to the Estate House and overlooking Lake Alfred, this 
area will include a deck, and be designed to have tents set up as needed. 

 Parking Area - Approximately 100 spaces are proposed. 
 Boathouse (existing)- To be used for meetings, wedding preparation area, 

storage, etc. 
 Wedding Garden - This site will be used for wedding ceremonies, with an 

expected maximum capacity of up to 250 seats. 
 The Cottages - Twelve (12) cottages are proposed for Phase IA and 14 cottages 

are proposed for Phase IB.  The estimated 1,500 square foot cottages will 
contain between 2 to 3 bedrooms per unit with full kitchen facilities and two 
parking spaces per unit. There is an anticipated maximum capacity of up to 8 
persons per unit. 

 Pre-Post Ceremony Area. 
 Dock. 

 
The phasing schedule for the project sets forth the special events portion of the site 
(Phase IA) to be open in time for the 2017 wedding season (May-June timeframe).  
Phase IB is anticipated for 2021, the Phase II residential component and Phase III 
commercial components are anticipated for development by 2027.   
 
The Gapway Groves Corporation intends to maintain ownership of the property after 
development and will maintain common open space and facilities, including the existing 
entrance road. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
COMPATIBILITY: 
 
The Future Land Use amendment is consistent with the City of Lake Alfred Future 
Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan (see companion Future Land Use text 
Amendment) and the zoning amendment is consistent with the existing Conservation 
Future Land Use designation and the proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use 
designation Amendment.   
 
The proposal for a commercial component to the property is compatible with the 
adopted Neighborhood Activity Center Future Land Use for the neighboring property in 
Auburndale located at the intersection of Lake Alfred Road and Adams Barn Road.  The 
CSX railroad location to the south of the property limits the development of adjacent 
residential. 



Page 7 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

 
The proposed Master Development Plan offers a design that is non-intrusive to 
neighboring properties that have existing or designated residential uses.  The proposed 
PUD-MU Conditions help to alleviate potential off-site impacts (such as noise and traffic 
congestion) that may be created due to the proposed use.  It is assumed that proposed 
weddings and other events which have music will have the greatest potential for 
adverse off-site impacts to neighboring properties with regards to noise generation.  The 
proposed location for events (labeled “Special Event/Retreat Facility” on the Master 
Development Plan) is located over 1,000 feet away from the nearest developed 
residential multi-family structures to the east and more than 1,000 feet from the nearest 
platted vacant single-family residential lots to the north.  The proposed distance 
separation, along with compliance with the City’s Noise requirements (LDR Section 
3.06.02.03) is believed to be a sufficient measure to mitigate the potential of offsite 
impacts due to noise. 
 
Table 1 outlines the development plan analysis.  While the Mixed Use Future Land Use 
district permits a maximum of 12 dwelling units per acre and a non-residential 
component up to 0.5 FAR, the analysis is completed based on the project specific 
limitations as included in the proposed Planned Unit Development. 

Table 1: 
Development Plan Analysis 

Scenario 
Land Use 

Designation/Zoning 

Maximum 
Allowed Density 

/ Intensity 
Acres 

Maximum 
Allowable 

Development 

Existing 

LDR   6 du / acre  81.1  486.6 units 

CON  N/A  10.4  0 units 

Total     91.5  486.6 du 

All Proposed 
Phases  

PUD‐MU Residential 
(cottage) Phase I 

9 du/acre*  18.00  26 cottages  

PUD‐MU Residential 
(homes) Phase II 

9 du/acre*  50.44  454 du 

PUD‐MU 
Commercial 
Phase III 

113,256 sf*  12.62  113,256 sf 

Conservation  N/A  10.40  0 units 

Total Proposed    91.46 
480 du and 
113,256 sf 

commercial* 

* Limited through Planned Unit Development 
PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES ANALYSIS: 
 
The proposed project is not anticipated to degrade the Level-of-Service (LOS) standard 
of infrastructure and public service facilities within the surrounding area. 
 



Page 8 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

Potable Water  
 
The site does not currently access potable water.  The existing structures on the site 
currently use on-site potable water wells.  City of Lake Alfred potable water lines exist in 
the Adams Barn Road right-of-way. The applicant will be required to extend a water 
service line onto the property to serve both existing and future development as part of 
the development of Phase I.  The City of Lake Alfred will provide potable water services 
for the property and its development.  The analysis focuses on the maximums as limited 
through the planned unit development. 
 
The maximum development potential for the property generates an anticipated 191,038 
GPD, which includes 172,800 GPD (360 GPD * 480 du) for residential, 16,988 GPD 
(113,256 SF * 0.15 GPD/DSF) for commercial, and 1,250 GPS (250 seats * 5 
GPD/seat) special events with the MU Future Land Use Amendment as limited through 
the PUD.  The change from LDR to MU for the property generates an increase of 
approximately 15,862 GPD.  The City has capacity to serve the Future Land Use 
amendment for this property.  The developer will be responsible for connecting to the 
City’s potable water system.   
 
Sanitary Sewer 
 
The site does not currently access sanitary sewer.  The existing structures on the site 
currently use septic systems.  City of Lake Alfred sanitary sewer lines exist in the 
Adams Barn Road right-of-way.  The applicant will be required to extend a sanitary 
sewer service line onto the property to serve both existing and future development as 
part of the development of Phase I.  The City of Lake Alfred will provide sanitary sewer 
services for the property and its development.   
 
The maximum development potential for the property generates an anticipated 143,278 
GPD (75% of anticipated water flow) with the MU Future Land Use Amendment as 
limited through the PUD.  The change from LDR to MU for the property generates an 
increase of approximately 11,896.5 GPD.  The City has capacity to serve the Future 
Land Use amendment for this property.  The developer will be responsible for 
connecting to the City’s sanitary sewer system. 
 
Solid Waste 
 
Lake Alfred transfers solid waste collected in the City to the Polk County Landfill.  As the 
operators of the landfill, the County plans for capacity for all municipalities in the county, 
as well as unincorporated areas.  Polk County determined that there is sufficient landfill 
space for the county, including Dundee, to dispose of household garbage for 
approximately 65 years.   
 
Traffic/Transportation  
 



Page 9 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

The property is accessed by Lake Alfred Road on the south.  Phase I will be accessed 
via the existing driveway entrance off Lake Aflred Road.  Access off Adams Barn Road 
on the west will be evaluated for Phases II and III in the future.  Both Lake Alfred Road 
and Adams Barn Road are County-maintained urban collectors with a current level-of-
service of B.   
 
The Central Florida Regional Planning Council completed a review of the information 
provided by the applicant, as well as an internal transportation analysis of the impacted 
roadway segments.  This review indicates that there is sufficient capacity to 
accommodate the proposed development levels of the Future Land Use amendment 
and the zoning amendment for Phase I.  As the project continues through to site 
development plan approval stages for Phase I, a detailed traffic analysis will be required 
to determine operating conditions, queuing, and storage lane requirements.  In addition, 
the Master Development Plan will have to be modified (major modification) in the Future 
to address Phase II and Phase III. 
 
This proposal is to change the land use on the subject parcel from City of Lake Alfred 
Low Density Residential (LDR) to City of Lake Alfred Planned Unit Development – 
Mixed Use (PUD-MU) on 81.1 Acres.  The property also includes 10.4 Acres of 
Conservation land use that are not subject to any land use change.   The requested 
Mixed Use land use category allows residential uses at densities of up to 12 units per 
acre.   
 
This development is being proposed by the applicant in phases, and following 
discussion addresses Phase 1 of the development, and a then a total of all phases of 
development proposal.  To proceed to Phases 2 and 3 of the development, the 
applicant will be required to submit a detailed traffic study showing the impacts of the 
development, and mitigation. 
 
Phase 1 
 
According to the existing City of Lake Alfred FLU designations, the maximum 
development that can occur on the parcel subject to this amendment would result in 
4,652 net external daily trips and 491 net external PM peak hour trips.  According to the 
proposed City of Lake Alfred Mixed Use FLU designation, and the level of development 
requested in this PUD-MU by the applicant, the maximum intensity of development of 
the proposed Phase 1 that could occur on this parcel would result in a reduction of 
3,802 net external daily trips and 430 net external PM peak hour trips as shown in Table 
2.  
 
 

Table 2: 
Requested Trip Generation – Phase 1 

Scenario  Land Use Designation 
Maximum 

Allowed Density / 
Intensity 

ITE 
Land 
Use 
Code 

Size of Development 

Daily 
Trips 

PM 
Peak 
Trips 

PM 
Peak 
In 

PM 
Peak 
Out Acres 

Maximum 
Allowable 

Development 



Page 10 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

Existing 

LDR   81.1  210  81.1  486.6 units  4,652  491   309  182  

CON  10.4  N/A  10.4  0 units  0  0  0   0 

Total Currently Adopted  4,652  491   309  182  

Phase 1 
Proposed 

MU PUD Residential 
(Cottage) 

104 rooms  310  18  104 rooms  850  61  33   29  

Conservation  N/A  N/A  10.4  0 units  0  0  0  0 

Total Proposed  850  61  33  29 

  Change in Trips  ‐3,802  ‐430  ‐276  ‐153 

Trip Generation Rates from the 8th Edition lTE Trip Generation Report 
 

All Phases 

According to the existing City of Lake Alfred Future Land Use designations, the 
maximum development that can occur on the parcel subject to this amendment would 
result in 4,652 net external daily trips and 491 net external PM peak hour trips.  
According to the proposed City of Lake Alfred Mixed Use (MU) Future Land Use 
designation, and the level of development requested in the PUD-MU by the applicant, 
all phases of development of this parcel would result in an increase of 6,444 net 
external daily trips and 492 net external PM peak hour trips.  
 

Table 3: 
Requested Trip Generation – All Phases 

Scenario  Land Use Designation 
Maximum 

Allowed Density / 
Intensity 

ITE 
Land 
Use 
Code  

Size of Development 

Daily 
Trips 

PM 
Peak 
Trips 

PM 
Peak 
In 

PM 
Peak 
out Acres 

Maximum 
Allowable 

Development 

Existing 

LDR   6 du / acre  210  81.1  486.6 units  4,652  491   309  182  

CON  N/A  N/A  10.4  0 units  0  0  0   0 

Total Currently Adopted  4,652  491   309  182  

All 
Proposed 
Phases  

MU PUD Residential 
(cottage) 

104 rooms  310  18  104   850  61  33   29  

MU PUD Residential 
(homes) 

454 units  210  50.44  454  4,345  459  289  170 

MU PUD Commercial 
(shopping) 

137,431 sq ft  820  12.62  137,431  5,901  463  227  236 

Conservation  N/A  N/A  10.4  0 units  0  0  0  0 

Total Proposed  11,096  983  549  435 

Change in Trips  6,444  492   240   253 

Trip Generation Rates from the 8th Edition lTE Trip Generation Report 
 
Police and Fire 
 
The Lake Alfred Fire Department and the Lake Alfred Police Department facilities are 
located approximately 1.8 miles away from the site. 



Page 11 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

 
Recreation 
 
The City currently meets the level of service requirement of 5.5 acres per 1,000 
residents as established in the Comprehensive Plan.  However, the Applicant will be 
required to provide recreational opportunities per the Land Development Code.  Phases 
II and III of the project will be required to provide recreation and open space as outlined 
in the PUD requirements of Article 2.   
 
School Impacts: 
 
The applicant agrees to restrict the 12 cottages in Phase IA to temporary rental use in 
conjunction with the special event facility use.  The 14 cottages in Phase IB and the 
residential component of Phase II and III will be required to address School 
Concurrency requirements.  Utilizing Polk County School Board student generation 
rates, the applicant determined the proposed residential development would generate 
the following students: 
 
 

Table 4: 
School Impact Analysis 

Scenario  School Level 
Student 

Generation Rate 
Units 

Students 
(Rounded) 

Existing FLU 

Elementary  0.196  486  95 

Middle School  0.094  486  46 

High School  0.132  486  64 

Total     486 units  205 students 

Proposed 
FLU*  

Elementary  0.196  454*  89 

Middle School  0.094  454*  43 

High School  0.132  454*  60 

Total     454 units  192 students 

Difference 

Elementary    ‐32  ‐6 

Middle School    ‐32  ‐3 

High School    ‐32  ‐4 

Total     ‐32 units  ‐14 students 

* Limited through Planned Unit Development 
 
The Polk County School Board reviewed the application for impacts on the surrounding 
school system in conjunction with the other development applications in the area under 
consideration at the time of this hearing.  Based on the non-binding concurrency review 
(Table 5), if the applicant were to apply for a binding concurrency determination at this 



Page 12 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

time, there would be a finding of adequate capacity. The zoned elementary and middle 
school are out of capacity but there are adjacent schools with space. 
 

Table 5: 
Polk County School Board Non‐Binding Concurrency Review 

 
Lake Alfred 
Elementary 

Walter 
Caldwell 
Elementary 
(adjacent) 

Lake Alfred‐
Addair 
Middle 

Denison 
Middle 
School 
(adjacent) 

Auburndale 
Senior 

Current 
Enrollment 

593  625  606  819  1,569 

Concurrency 
Capacity 

666  847  962  1,060  2,356 

Planned 
Expansion 

None  None  None  None  None 

Reserved 
Capacity 

107  0  349  61  80 

Projected 5 
Year Capacity 

666  847  962  1,060  2,356 

# Single 
Family Units 
in Project  

468 

Student 
Generation 
By Project 

92  92  44  44  62 

Capacity 
Available 

No  Yes  No  Yes  Yes 

 
 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND IMPACTS 
 
Lake Shore Protection 
 



Page 13 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

The property is located on the southwestern shores of Lake Alfred.  Section 5.04.00 of 
the Land Development Code outlines the requirements for lake protection.  A Shoreline 
Protection Zone extends from the water’s edge to a point 50 feet landward of the 
Ordinary High Water Line.  The Shoreline Protection Zone limits the activities that can 
occur within that boundary and requires that all development be set back 50 feet from 
the Ordinary High Water Line.  Within the Shoreline Protection Zone, a minimum of 50 
percent of the natural vegetation must be retained, maintained, and protected.  If no 
natural vegetation exists, buffers shall be planted and maintained to maturity to achieve  
a  minimum  cover  of  forty  (40)  percent  of  the  site  within  the  Shoreline  Protection  
Zone.     
 
Surface Water: 
 
The subject property is relatively flat but slopes slightly from a high point at the center of 
the southern border of the property to the east/northeast and west/northwest, with 
contour elevations between approximately 130 feet and 180 feet. 
 
Wetlands/Floodplains: 
 
Portions of the subject site include wetlands and are located in an “AE” flood zone.  The 
maps on the following pages illustrate the locations of the wetlands and flood zones.  
The first map is from the City’s adopted wetlands map from the Future Land Use 
Element.  It illustrates that small portions of the northern and eastern boundaries of the 
property include wetlands.  The second map is the Wetlands and Floodplains map 
generated via the Polk County mapping too, which illustrates the location of wetlands 
and floodplains on an aerial image.  These floodplain lines are based on the 2012 FIRM 
maps.  New FIRM maps will become effective December 22, 2016.  The maps of FEMA 
panels 12105C0335G and 12105C0355G illustrate the floodplain boundaries effective 
December 22, 2016 related to the property on an aerial image.     
 
 



Page 14 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

 
 Lake Alfred Wetlands Map from Future Land Use Element 



Page 15 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

 
  Wetlands and Floodplain Map from Polk County GIS Mapper 



Page 16 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Western side of property adjacent 
to Adams Barn Road from FEMA 
FIRM Map Effective December 22, 
2016 (FIRM Panel 12105C0335G) 

Eastern side of property adjacent to 
Lake Alfred from FEMA FIRM 
Map Effective December 22, 2016 
(FIRM Panel 12105C0335G) 



Page 17 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

Based on the illustrations above, the proposed development shown in Phase I on the 
Master Development Plan may or may not impact the floodplains.  The applicant will be 
required to obtain a jurisdictional wetland determination by the Southwest Florida Water 
Management District (SWFWMD) to determine the location of the wetland lines.  As the 
project moves through site plan review, the exact location of the proposed cottages may 
be moved to ensure they are not constructed within the AE flood zone (100 year 
floodplain) and or wetland protection and transitional boundary areas as required 
through the Land Development Code.   
 
Required Buffers 
 
Section 5.03.03(B) requires a wetland transitional zone of 200 feet from the wetland 
protection zone (jurisdictional determination boundary).  The transitional zone is an area 
having a direct ground- or surface water influence and functions as a buffer between 
wetlands and development.  The City Commission can reduce the wetland transitional 
zone to a minimum of 30 feet if the applicant provides sufficient evidence that a smaller 
transitional zone can protect the functions of the wetland.     
 
The applicant is requesting the City Commission reduce the wetland transitional zone 
from 200 feet to 30 feet.  The applicant’s reason for the reduced transitional zone is as 
follows: 

 
Existing Development - The site is currently developed, with structures 
(including the existing pool, pool house, and portions of the estate house) 
already located within what would be the 200-foot zone.  Additionally, the 
remainder of the site has been cleared, and is currently in use for citrus 
production.  Because the site has already been cleared of natural vegetation, 
with any corresponding impacts to wetlands may have already occurred, it is 
not necessary to impose this additional standard for impacts that have already 
occurred. 
 
Future Development - Any future development of the site will be required to 
comply with the applicable wetland-protection requirements of both the City of 
Lake Alfred and the Southwest Water Management District (SWFWMD).  As 
part of the required SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit for this project, 
stormwater retention areas will be required to treat runoff prior to any discharge 
into Lake Alfred.  These facilities will not only treat the runoff from the newly 
developed portions of the site, but also any runoff from the existing citrus 
groves already located on the site.  Therefore, because of the requirement for 
stormwater treatment (for both existing and proposed development) will result 
in better protection of the wetlands, the greater Wetland Transitional Zone is 
not necessary. 
 
Site Design- The site layout of the project is such that most (generally 2/3rds) 
of the shoreline area will not have any development nearby.  While some 
development is proposed closer to the wetland areas on the western portion of 
Phase I, this new development will have stormwater treatment facilities in place 
to protect the wetland functions. Additionally, the City's requirements for more 
stringent wetland buffers (25-40 feet, as opposed to the typical SWFWMD 



Page 18 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

requirement of 15-25 feet), plus compliance with the 50-foot wide Shoreline 
Protection Zone requirements, will also ensure adequate protection of the 
wetlands. 
 
Soil Characteristics - A majority of the site contains Candler Fine Sand, or 
Tavares Fine Sand.  As outlined in the Soil Survey of Polk County Florida, 
published by the United States Department of Agriculture Soil and 
Conservation Service, These are both well-drained soils with rapid permeability 
that are found on uplands.  Due to the outstanding drainage characteristics of 
these soils, there should not be any adverse impacts on the shoreline 
wetlands.  Given the limited amount of wetlands directly located on the site, it is 
expected that there will not be any significant impacts to wetlands. 
 
Because both existing and proposed development will have stormwater 
management facilities in place to treat stormwater runoff, combined with the 
good soil characteristics, site layout (designed to orient development away 
from most of the wetland/shoreline areas) and the physical separation between 
the subject parcels and the wetland areas, adjusting the width of the Wetland 
Transitional Zone to a minimum of 30 feet will promote flexibility in site 
development while still ensuring adequate protection of the wetlands. 
 
The modified Wetland Transitional Zone will comply with the applicable wetland 
requirements found in Objective 1.8- Protection of Natural Resources (and 
subsequent policies) of the Future Land Use Element, and Objective 2 - 
Protection And Conservation Of Wetlands (and subsequent policies) of the 
Conservation Element of the City of Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan.  The 
request will also comply with the applicable requirements of Chapter 5, Section 
5.03 (Wetland Protection) of the City's Land Development Regulations, due to 
the site layout and placement of stormwater retention facilities. 

 
Section 5.03.06(B) requires natural  vegetative  buffer  areas  be  retained  between  all  
development  and  all  wetlands  where  such  buffer  areas  exist.  The  minimum  width  
of  the  buffer  shall  be  twenty-five  (25)  feet  and  the  average  of  all  wetland  buffers  
shall  be  forty  (40)  feet.    No structures shall be located in such areas. Impervious 
surfaces shall be limited to roads or walking trails providing access to a body of water.  
Where a natural buffer area does not exist, an equivalent buffer shall be created.   
 
Section 5.04.04 requires a minimum of 50 percent of the natural vegetation within the 
Shoreline Protection Zone, be retained, maintained, and protected.  If no natural 
vegetation exists, buffers shall be  planted and maintained to maturity to achieve a  
minimum  cover  of  forty  (40)  percent  of  the  site  within  the  Shoreline  Protection  
Zone.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 19 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS: 
 
The following conditions are proposed for incorporation into the ordinance adopting the 
Planned Unit Development. 
 

1. The Phase I Planned Unit Development approval shall be for a special event 
facility for weddings, conferences, and similar special events including 26 
cottages.  Outdoor amplified music may be played between 7:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m. on any day of the week. 

 
2. A detailed traffic study for Phases IA and IB shall be completed by the applicant 

prior to final site plan approval. 
 
3. The development is required to connect to City of Lake Alfred water and 

wastewater utilities. 
 

4. The Master Development Plan included herein together with the conditions of 
approval shall be considered the "Binding Site Plan."  In addition to the 
requirements of Section 7.04.04, any modifications to access points, structures 
within 50 feet of the boundary, or intensification of uses within 100 feet of the 
boundary shall constitute a Major Modification to this approval for Phase I. 

 
5. Events attracting more than 300 people are prohibited without special event 

approval by the City.  There shall be a minimum of two (2) hours between 
events to limit the potential off-site traffic congestion along Adams Barn Road 
and Lake Alfred Road. 

 
6. Parking within the public right-of-way shall be prohibited.  The uses and parking 

shall be contained within the 27 acre Phase I boundary shown on the Master 
Development Plan. 

 
7. There shall be no permanent alcohol or retail sales except in accordance with 

the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan requirements, including 
but not limited to obtaining the proper land use designation.  With an approved 
Florida Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco alcohol license, this PUD 
approval permits the sale and/or service of alcohol for on-site consumption 
ancillary to and in conjunction with the approved activities permitted to operate 
on this property. 

 
8. Prior to site plan approval, the applicant shall complete a jurisdictional wetlands 

determination (JD) by the SWFWMD consistent with Policy 1.8.2 of the Future 
Land Use Element.  The JD will be used as the basis for determining the 
location of the wetlands protection and transitional zones.  A preliminary 
environmental impact assessment shall also be conducted indicating any native 
vegetative species and wildlife habitat such as gopher tortoises, etc. 

 



Page 20 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

9. The applicant will obtain all necessary permits required related to wetland and 
floodplain development. 

 
10. The location of the dock as illustrated on the Master Development Plan may be 

relocated to a more northern point upon submittal of a recorded easement 
agreement with the neighboring property owner.  

 
11. To proceed to Phases II and III of the development, the applicant will be 

required to submit a detailed traffic study showing the impacts of the 
development, and mitigation. 

 
12. The cottages included in Phase IA (12 cottages) are restricted to temporary 

rental use in conjunction with the special event facility use and therefore will not 
generate any impacts on the Polk County School Board.  Per the Polk County 
School Board, these 12 cottages are exempt from impact fees.  If these 12 
cottages ever convert to single-family homes, the impact fees would be due at 
that time.  The 14 cottages in Phase IB, are subject to school concurrency 
requirements prior to site plan approval/construction plan approval. 

 
13. Before Phase I can be utilized as a special events venue, the applicant shall 

prepare an event management plan consistent with major event management 
techniques for the City of Lake Alfred staff to review, approve, and keep on file.  
Should this plan need to be changed or modified for any reason, the City of 
Lake Alfred shall review and approve any changes or modifications in writing 
prior to any changes or modifications being commenced or enacted.   

 
 ** Additional condition relating to wetland transitional zones to be added if the 

Commission determines the applicant provided sufficient evidence that a 
smaller transitional zone can protect the functions of the wetland. The condition 
will include the required wetland transitional zone (minimum 30 feet). 

 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
At their October 26, 2016 meeting, the Planning Board voted to recommend approval of 
the Future Land Use Map amendment and the Zoning Amendment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 21 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

PUBLIC HEARING: FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT (first reading): 
 
MOTION OPTIONS:   
 

1. I move approval on first reading of Ordinance 1374-16 to amend the Future 
Land Use designation from “Low Density Residential (LDR) to Mixed Use (MU) 
on approximately 81.1 acres while retaining the Conservation (CON) Future Land 
Use on approximately 10.4 acres of land for the total approximate 91.51 acres of 
land, known as the Adams Estate, located adjacent to the southwestern shore of 
Lake Alfred, north of lake Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road, further 
described as parcels:  262731-000000-023010 and 262731-000000-032010. 

 
2. I move denial of Ordinance 1374-16 to amend the Future Land Use designation 

from “Low Density Residential (LDR) to Mixed Use (MU) on approximately 81.1 
acres while retaining the Conservation (CON) Future Land Use on approximately 
10.4 acres of land for the total approximate 91.51 acres of land, known as the 
Adams Estate, located adjacent to the southwestern shore of Lake Alfred, north 
of lake Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road, further described as parcels:  
262731-000000-023010 and 262731-000000-032010. 
 

3. I move continuation of this item until a date certain. 
 
 
FIRST READING: ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
 
MOTION OPTIONS:  
 

1. I move approval of Ordinance 1375-16 with conditions of the amendment of 
the Official Zoning Map to amend the Zoning designation of Single Family 
Dwelling District (R1-A) to Planned Unit Development-Mixed Use (PUD-MU) on 
approximately 81.1 acres while retaining the Conservation (CON) zoning on 
approximately 10.4 acres of land for the total approximate 91.51 acres of land, 
known as the Adams Estate, located adjacent to the southwestern shores of 
Lake Alfred, north of lake Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road, further 
described as parcels:  262731-000000-023010 and 262731-000000-032010. 
 

2. I move approval of Ordinance 1375-16 with conditions with changes of the 
amendment of the Official Zoning Map to amend the Zoning designation of Single 
Family Dwelling District (R1-A) to Planned Unit Development-Mixed Use (PUD-
MU) on approximately 81.1 acres while retaining the Conservation (CON) zoning 
on approximately 10.4 acres of land for the total approximate 91.51 acres of land, 
known as the Adams Estate, located adjacent to the southwestern shores of 
Lake Alfred, north of lake Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road, further 
described as parcels:  262731-000000-023010 and 262731-000000-032010. 

 
 



Page 22 of 22 
AGENDA ITEM – Adams Estate (Gapway Groves) FLU and Zoning Amendments November 7, 2016 

3. I move denial of Ordinance 1375-16 with conditions of the amendment of the 
Official Zoning Map to amend the Zoning designation of Single Family Dwelling 
District (R1-A) to Planned Unit Development-Mixed Use (PUD-MU) on 
approximately 81.1 acres while retaining the Conservation (CON) zoning on 
approximately 10.4 acres of land for the total approximate 91.51 acres of land, 
known as the Adams Estate, located adjacent to the southwestern shores of 
Lake Alfred, north of lake Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road, further 
described as parcels:  262731-000000-023010 and 262731-000000-032010. 

 
4. I move continuation of this item until a date certain. 

 

 
Attachments: 

Ordinance 1374-16 
Ordinance 1375-16 
Aerial Photo 
Current Future Land Use Map 
Proposed Future Land Use Map 
Current Zoning Map 
Proposed Zoning Map 
Master Development Plan proposed 
Applications 

 



1 | P a g e  

The following is an excerpt from the Lake Alfred Planning Board meeting draft 
minutes from October 26, 2016 
 
/s/Mamie Drane      Date:  November 3, 2016 
Administrative Assistant 
Community Development 

 
Business Items 4 and 5 were presented and discussed together as each item concerns the 
same property and project by Gapway Groves. 

 
4) PUBLIC HEARING: FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT FOR GAPWAY 

GROVES CORPORATION PROPERTY** 
A request by Gapway Groves Corporation, to amend the Future Land Use designation 
for property located in the City of Lake Alfred from Low Density Residential (LDR) and 
Conservation (CON) to Mixed Use (MU) and Conservation (CON) on approximately 
±91.51 acres of land, located adjacent to the southwestern shore of Lake Alfred, north of 
Lake Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road, further described as parcels:  262731-
000000-023010 and 262731-000000-032010. 
 

5) PUBLIC HEARING: ZONING MAP AMENDMENT FOR GAPWAY GROVES 
CORPORATION PROPERTY** 
A request by Gapway Groves Corporation, to amend the Zoning designation for property 
located in the City of Lake Alfred from Single Family Dwelling District (R1-A) and 
Conservation (CON) to Planned Unit Development-Mixed Use (MU) and Conservation 
(CON) on approximately ±91.51 acres of land, located adjacent to the southwestern 
shore of Lake Alfred, north of Lake Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road, further 
described as parcels:  262731-000000-023010 and 262731-000000-032010. 
 

Mark Bennett, Ridge Professionals Group, introduced himself and the consulting team for the 
project. He gave an overview of the project, which will include a special events center & retreat 
facility to be used primarily for weddings, conferences and similar types of special events at the 
existing Adams family estate home located on the property. The site is currently surrounded by 
orange groves and is on the shores of Lake Alfred. The scenery is ideal for the proposed use. 
The owners will limit the maximum event size to 250 persons, with some possibly up to 300, 
however an average would be 150 persons. There are many benefits to a project in Lake Alfred, 
namely being an economic development opportunity for existing businesses to now have an 
influx of visitors to the area. Also, the owners feel strongly that this project will preserve the 
character of the land and existing structures. Also, he stated the proposed conditions to 
development are acceptable to the owners and will help to mitigate possible issues and 
concerns. 
 
Ms. Barmby reviewed the staff’s analysis of this project, covering both the Future Land Use 
request as well as the Zoning Planned Unit Development request. The property associated with 
both applications is located adjacent to the southwestern shore of Lake Alfred, north of Lake 
Alfred Road and east of Adams Barn Road.  The subject property is in citrus and pastureland 
with two single family homes built in the 1920s and a pool built in the 1950s and a shed built in 
the 1990s.  The surrounding area includes Lake Alfred to the east, submerged lands to the 
north, citrus lands to the east, and the CSX railroad to the south.  There is a multi-family 
development on unincorporated land on the southeastern corner of the property.  The land to 
the northwest of the property is currently vacant, but is platted 0.4-acre lots.  The land north of 
the property on the other side of the swampy protrusion of Lake Alfred is the platted Water 



2 | P a g e  

Ridge Subdivision, Phase II with ¼ to ½ acre lots.  The majority of the lots are currently vacant.  
To the southwest of the property, on the other side of Lake Alfred Road and the CSX railroad, 
there is a mobile home park and the Agricultural and Labor Program, Inc headquarters.  
 
The applicant would like to create a special events facility utilizing the existing  structures 
(dating back to the 1940s) on site, and provide additional facilities on-site for reconfiguration as 
a facility for weddings, conferences, and similar special events on approximately 27 acres 
(Phase I).  The remainder of the site will be used for the eventual development of the property 
for residential with accessory resort related commercial uses (Phases II and III).   
Included in the special events area will be the following facilities: 

 Estate House (existing) - The Estate House will be used as a ready (event preparation) 
area and for additional event services as needed. 

 Event Lawn - Located next to the Estate House and overlooking Lake Alfred, this area 
will include a deck, and be designed to have tents set up as needed. 

 Parking Area - Approximately 100 spaces are proposed. 
 Boathouse (existing) - To be used for meetings, wedding preparation area, storage, etc. 
 Wedding Garden - This site will be used for wedding ceremonies, with an expected 

maximum capacity of up to 250 seats. 
 The Cottages - Twelve (12) cottages are proposed for Phase IA and 14 cottages are 

proposed for Phase IB.  The estimated 1,500 square foot cottages will contain between 
2 to 3 bedrooms per unit with full kitchen facilities and two parking spaces per unit. 
There is an anticipated maximum capacity of up to 8 persons per unit. 

 Pre-Post Ceremony Area. 
 Dock. 

 
The Gapway Groves Corporation intends to maintain ownership of the property after 
development and will maintain common open space and facilities, including the existing 
entrance road. 
 
The Future Land Use amendment is consistent with the City of Lake Alfred Future Land Use 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan (see companion Future Land Use text Amendment) and 
the zoning amendment is consistent with the existing Conservation Future Land Use 
designation and the proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use designation Amendment.   
 
The proposal for a commercial component to the property is compatible with the adopted 
Neighborhood Activity Center Future Land Use for the neighboring property in Auburndale 
located at the intersection of Lake Alfred Road and Adams Barn Road. The CSX railroad 
location to the south of the property limits the development of adjacent residential. 
 
The proposed Master Development Plan offers a design that is non-intrusive to neighboring 
properties that have existing or designated residential uses.  The proposed PUD-MU Conditions 
help to alleviate potential off-site impacts (such as noise and traffic congestion) that may be 
created due to the proposed use.  It is assumed that proposed weddings and other events 
which have music will have the greatest potential for adverse off-site impacts to neighboring 
properties with regards to noise generation.  The proposed location for events (labeled “Special 
Event/Retreat Facility” on the Master Development Plan) is located over 1,000 feet away from 
the nearest developed residential multi-family structures to the east and more than 1,000 feet 
from the nearest platted vacant single-family residential lots to the north.  The proposed 
distance separation, along with compliance with the City’s Noise requirements (LDR Section 



3 | P a g e  

3.06.02.03) is believed to be a sufficient measure to mitigate the potential of offsite impacts due 
to noise. 
 
In coordination with City staff and the applicant, there were several development conditions 
proposed that address potential impacts and concerns that are inherent in this type projects. 
The City staff and applicant are in agreement on the following proposed development conditions 
to be adopted with the final PUD-MU zoning designation and Master Development Plan: 
 

1. The Phase I Planned Unit Development approval shall be for a special event facility for 
weddings, conferences, and similar special events including 26 cottages.  Outdoor 
amplified music may be played between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on any day of the 
week. 
 

2. A detailed traffic study for Phases lA and IB shall be completed by the applicant prior to 
final site plan approval. 
 

3. The development is required to connect to City of Lake Alfred water and wastewater 
utilities. 
 

4. The Master Development Plan included herein together with the conditions of approval 
shall be considered the "Binding Site Plan."  In addition to the requirements of Section 
7.04.04, any modifications to access points, structures within 50 feet of the boundary, or 
intensification of uses within 100 feet of the boundary shall constitute a Major 
Modification to this approval for Phase I. 
 

5. Events attracting more than 300 people are prohibited without special event approval by 
the City.  There shall be a minimum of two (2) hours between events to limit the 
potential off-site traffic congestion along Adams Barn Road and Lake Alfred Road. 
 

6. Parking within the public right-of-way shall be prohibited. The uses and parking shall be 
contained within the 27 acre Phase I boundary shown on the Master Development Plan. 
 

7. There shall be no permanent alcohol or retail sales except in accordance with the Land 
Development Code and Comprehensive Plan requirements, including but not limited to 
obtaining the proper land use designation.  With an approved Florida Division of 
Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco alcohol license, this PUD approval permits the sale 
and/or service of alcohol for on-site consumption ancillary to and in conjunction with the 
approved activities permitted to operate on this property. 
 

8. Prior to site plan approval, the applicant shall complete a jurisdictional wetlands 
determination (JD) by the SWFWMD consistent with Policy 1.8.2 of the Future Land 
Use Element.  The JD will be used as the basis for determining the location of the 
wetlands protection and transitional zones.  A preliminary environmental impact 
assessment shall also be conducted indicating any native vegetative species and 
wildlife habitat such as gopher tortoises, etc. 
 

9. The applicant will obtain all necessary permits required related to wetland and 
floodplain development. 
 



4 | P a g e  

10. The location of the dock as illustrated on the Master Development Plan may be 
relocated to a more northern point upon submittal of a recorded easement agreement 
with the neighboring property owner. 
 

11. To proceed to Phases II and Ill of the development, the applicant will be required to 
submit a detailed traffic study showing the impacts of the development, and mitigation. 
 

12. The cottages included in Phase lA (12 cottages) are restricted to temporary rental use 
in conjunction with the special event facility use and therefore will not generate any 
impacts on the Polk County School Board.  Per the Polk County School Board, these 12 
cottages are exempt from school impact fees.  If these 12 cottages ever convert to 
single-family homes, the impact fees would be due at that time.  The 14 cottages in 
Phase IB, are subject to school concurrency requirements prior to site plan 
approval/construction plan approval. 
 

13. Before Phase I can be utilized as a special events venue, the applicant shall prepare an 
event management plan consistent with major event management techniques for the 
City of Lake Alfred staff to review, approve, and keep on file. Should this plan need to 
be changed or modified for any reason, the City of Lake Alfred shall review and approve 
any changes or modifications in writing prior to any changes or modifications being 
commenced or enacted. 
 

14.  The applicant is requesting an additional condition relating to wetland transitional zones 
to be added if the Commission determines the applicant provided sufficient evidence 
that a smaller transitional zone can protect the functions of the wetland. The condition 
will include the required wetland transitional zone (minimum 30 feet). 
 

Chair Hults opened the public hearing on the Future Land Use request and asked if anyone 
would like to comment. No one came forward. 
Chair Hults closed the public hearing 
 
Vice Chair Hoffman made the motion for the Planning Board recommend approval of a change 
in Future Land Use classification from Low Density Residential and Conservation to Mixed Use 
and Conservation on the property described; Board Member Noone seconded the motion.  
Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
Chair Hults asked about how wide the road is leading to the house. Ms. Barmby stated part of 
the proposal is the widening of the road. Board Member Biggar asked if there were only going to 
be one entrance and exit.  Mr. Bennett answered only one.  Ms. Biggar was concerned about 
the resort road opening on to Lake Alfred Road on a curve and that would be dangerous to 
drivers. Ms. Barmby indicated the proposed conditions to the PUD designation will require a 
detailed traffic study that may indicate additional road improvements will be needed for the 
future Phases II and III. Polk County has jurisdiction over both Old Lake Alfred Road and Adams 
Barn Road, which their analysis of Phase I does not require any road improvements at this time. 
 
Chair Hults opened the public hearing on the Zoning request and asked if anyone would like to 
comment. No one came forward. 
Chair Hults closed the public hearing 
 
Board Member Biggar then made the motion that the Planning Board recommends approval 
with changes of a change in zoning from R1-A and Conservation to PUD-MU and CON with the 



5 | P a g e  

proposed conditions discussed this evening. Motion was seconded by Board Member Noone. 
Motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

 

 
 

5.) ORDINANCE 1376-16: FY 2015/2016 FINAL BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 
 

ISSUE: The City Commission will consider Ordinance 1376-16 for the fiscal year 
2015/2016 final budget amendment on first reading. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance 1376-16  
 
 
ANALYSIS: As a part of the closeout process of the previous fiscal year of 2015/2016 
the City is required to submit an amended budget that includes any changes made from 
the original budget. These changes can include unanticipated projects, expenses, or 
revenues that were not included; or changes to existing line items that did not meet 
exact revenue or expenditure projections. The proposed budget adjustment accounts 
for these changes with the net changes in fund balance for each fund presented below: 
 

 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Ordinance 1376-16 on first reading. 
  



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1376-16                              Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1376-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, 
FLORIDA AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY FOR 
THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2015 
AND  ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2016; AMENDING THE 
APPROPRIATIONS, ALLOCATIONS OF REVENUE AND 
EXPENDITURES OF THE CITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2015-2016; PROVIDING FOR THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
CORRECTION OF SCRIVENER’S ERRORS, 
CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2.12 of the Charter of the City of Lake Alfred and the 
general laws of the State of Florida, an amended budget of estimated revenues and 
expenditures and complete financial plan of all City funds and activities for Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 has been prepared and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission is of the opinion that all items of anticipated revenues 
and expenditures for said fiscal year are reasonable and proper for the administration of the 
affairs of and the proper conduct of the business of the City of Lake Alfred; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after further review, the City Commission desires to amend said budget as 
set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the People of the City of Lake Alfred, Florida, 
as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1:  AMENDMENT That there is hereby adopted an amended budget for 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 for the City of Lake Alfred, Florida, for the period beginning October 1, 
2015 and ending September 30, 2016, as set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 SECTION 2: BUDGET That a complete copy of the entire budget for Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 consisting of estimated revenues and expenditures, as amended, is available for 
inspection in the office of the City Clerk, and a copy of the same is attached to this ordinance as 
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 SECTION 3:  SCRIVENER’S ERROR Any scrivener’s error created as a result of 
the passage of this ordinance may be corrected by the City Manager, without further legislative 
action, so long as the intent of this ordinance is preserved, by filing a revised copy thereof with 
the City Clerk’s office with the terms “Manager Revised” and the revision version number in the 
style of the ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 4:  CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with any 
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION 5:  SEVERABILITY. If any section or portion of a section of this 
ordinance proves not valid, unlawful or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or 
impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or part of this ordinance. 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1376-16                              Page 2 of 2 
 

SECTION 6:  EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall become effective immediately 
upon final passage. 

 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED ON FIRST READING the 7th day of November, 2016. 

 
PASSED AND ENACTED ON SECOND READING, with a quorum present and voting, 

by the City Commission of Lake Alfred, Florida this 21st day of November, 2016. 
  
 
 
      CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA 
      CITY COMMISSION 
 
 

________________________________ 
      Charles O. Lake, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Amee Bailey-Speck  
City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Frederick J. Murphy, Jr., City Attorney 
 
 



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

Original Final Original Final

Revenues 4,201,704         4,765,377 Revenues 55,000   59,848   

Expenditures 4,196,789         4,690,145 Expenditures 40,890   33,954   

Contingency 4,915                 75,232       Contingency 14,110   25,894   

Revenues 2,186,000         2,414,255 Revenues 20,165   26,111   

Expenditures 2,165,185         2,386,602 Expenditures 20,165   973        

Contingency 20,815               27,653       Contingency ‐          25,138   

CITY OF LAKE ALFRED
FY 2015/2016 BUDGET

SUMMARY

CRA

General Fund

Enterprise Fund

Stormwater



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

CITY OF LAKE ALFRED ‐ END OF YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

TAXES

001.000.0.311.110 Ad Valorem Taxes ‐ (M) 1,026,238          1,042,256                 16,018           

001.000.0.312.300 9th Cent Gas Tax ‐ (M) 20,000               24,924                       4,924             

CRA Fund 20,165               ‐                              (20,165)          

001.000.0.312.410 Local Option Gas Tax ‐ (M/S) 132,149             138,437                     6,288             

001.000.0.312.420 5th Cent Gas Tax ‐ (M/S) 82,622               87,566                       4,944             

001.000.0.312.520 Casualty Insurance Tax ‐(A) 31,535               34,665                       3,130             

001.000.0.314.100 Electric Service Tax ‐ (M) 295,000             361,834                     66,834           

001.000.0.314.300 Water Service Tax ‐ (M) 48,000               57,052                       9,052             

001.000.0.312.510 Insurance Premium Tax ‐ (A) 21,000               27,740                       6,740             

001.000.0.314.800 Propane Service Tax ‐ (M) 13,000               10,151                       (2,849)            

001.000.0.315.000 Local Comm Tax ‐ (M/S) 122,075             125,893                     3,818             

001.000.0.335.180 Half‐Cent Sales Tax ‐ (M/S) 301,101             316,422                     15,321           

TOTAL TAXES 2,112,885          2,226,940                

LICENSES AND PERMITS

Business Tax 12,000               10,266                       (1,734)            

001.000.0.321.110 Code Enforcement Assessments ‐                      3,576                          3,576             

001.000.0.321.100 Remittance Fee 1,000                  14,862                       13,862           

001.000.0.322.025 Education Fee 1,000                  1,708                          708                 

001.000.0.322.200 Alarm Permit 125                     350                             225                 

001.000.0.322.100 Building Inspections 600                     280                             (320)               

001.000.0.349.322 Archive Fee 1,000                  1,708                          708                 

001.000.0.322.300 Liens ‐ Violation of Ordinance 10,000               6,819                          (3,181)            

001.000.0.354.000 Lien Searches 2,000                  4,640                          2,640             

001.000.0.354.100 Building Permits 85,000               241,695                     156,695         

001.000.0.322.000 TOTAL LICENSES AND PERMITS 112,725             285,904                    

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

State Revenue Sharing ‐(M/S) 130,347             138,417                     8,070             

001.000.0.335.120 8th Cent Motor Fuel Tax ‐ (M/S 58,927               56,592                       (2,335)            

001.000.0.335.122 Mobile Home Licenses ‐ (M) 15,000               16,971                       1,971             

001.000.0.335.140 Alcohol Beverage Lic ‐ (Q) 3,000                  2,029                          (971)               

001.000.0.335.150 Grant ‐ Police ‐ JAGC ‐                      9,152                          9,152             

001.000.0.334.220 Grant ‐ Police ‐ JAGD ‐                      1,000                          1,000             

001.000.0.331.200 Right of Way Maint ‐ (Q) 30,000               24,211                       (5,789)            

001.000.0.334.260 Street Lights Maint ‐(A) 21,000               21,900                       900                 

001.000.0.334.952 Grant ‐                      31,937                       31,937           

001.000.0.331.540 SRO Supplement ‐(Q) 102,000             103,956                     1,956             

001.000.0.337.210 Library Cooperative ‐(Q/A) 25,000               28,362                       3,362             

001.000.0.338.350 Mutual Fire ‐ (Q/A) 60,000               60,000                       ‐                 

001.000.0.342.340 TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 445,274             494,527                    



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

FRANCHISE FEES

Electric FF ‐ (M) 320,000             370,969                     50,969           

001.000.0.323.100 Gas FF ‐ (M) 25,000               29,083                       4,083             

001.000.0.323.400 Solid Waste FF ‐ (M) 20,000               22,152                       2,152             

001.000.0.323.700 TOTAL FRANCHISE FEES 365,000             422,204                    

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Zoning Fees 2,500                  2,667                          167                 

001.000.0.341.200 Library Printing 3,000                  6,284                          3,284             

001.000.0.341.041 Cemetery Sales 10,000               12,325                       2,325             

001.000.0.343.800 Summer Rec Program 20,000               16,803                       (3,197)            

001.000.0.347.208 MISC SERVICES 1,450                  1,249                          (201)               

001.000.0.341.040 TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES 36,950               39,328                      

SANITATION

Sanitation ‐ (M) 320,000             389,735                     69,735           

001.000.0.343.300 Recycling 48,000               52,880                       4,880             

001.000.0.343.400 Extra Trash Pickup 1,500                  1,651                          151                 

001.000.0.343.301 Fuel Adjustment Fee 97,000               62,860                       (34,140)          

001.000.0.343.307 Garbage Late Fees 14,000               14,666                       666                 

001.000.0.343.306 Sanitation Reserve Fund 50,000               50,456                       456                 

001.000.0.343.901 Equipment Reserve Fund 20,000               18,349                       (1,651)            

001.000.0.343.902 TOTAL SANITATION 550,500             590,597                    

FINES AND FORFEITURES

Police Fines ‐ (M) 12,000               6,121                          (5,879)            

001.000.0.351.000 Police Education 1,000                  779                             (221)               

001.000.0.351.100 Forfeiture (Confiscated) ‐                      400                             400                 

001.000.0.351.200 Police Detail 3,000                  4,541                          1,541             

001.000.0.351.300 Library Fines 1,500                  1,597                          97                   

001.000.0.352.000 Restitution 1,500                  704                             (796)               

001.000.0.349.400 TOTAL FINES AND FORFEITURES 19,000               14,142                      

RENTALS

Rental ‐ Highlands 3,000                  4,397                          1,397             

001.000.0.362.030 Rental ‐ Mackay Estates 25,000               34,896                       9,896             

001.000.0.362.032 Rental ‐ Cancellation Fee 3,000                  1,650                          (1,350)            

001.000.0.362.033 Rental ‐ Lions Park 1,000                  1,243                          243                 

001.000.0.362.034 Rental ‐ Tower 100,000             95,737                       (4,263)            

001.000.0.362.038 Rental ‐ Ball Field 300                     ‐                              (300)               

001.000.0.362.035 TOTAL RENTAL 132,300             137,923                    



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

INTEREST EARNED

Interest Income 9,000                  14,257                       5,257             

001.000.0.361.000 TOTAL INTEREST EARNED 9,000                  14,257                      

MISCELLANEOUS

Sale of Surplus Property 2,000                  282                             (1,718)            

001.000.0.365.000 Motor Fuel Tax Refund ‐ (M) 5,000                  5,769                          769                 

001.000.0.319.100 Police Department Donations ‐                      1,061                          1,061             

001.000.0.366.100 Recreation Donations 1,000                  407                             (593)               

001.000.0.366.400 Auxillary Donations ‐                      652                             652                 

001.000.0.366.521 Miscellaneous Income 7,000                  2,758                          (4,242)            

001.000.0.369.000 Storage 1,000                  1,200                          200                 

001.000.0.369.100 Grillin & Chillin 10,000               12,009                       2,009             

001.000.0.369.200 Insurance Proceeds 12,000               18,673                       6,673             

001.000.0.369.300 Event Reimbursement 1,200                  ‐                              (1,200)            

001.000.0.369.400 Ridge League Receipts 1,500                  5,755                          4,255             

001.000.0.369.500 Veteran's Memorial ‐                      409                             409                 

001.000.0.369.600 Centennial Merchandise ‐                      500                             500                 

001.000.0.369.700 TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 40,700               49,475                      

TRANSFERS

Equipment Reserve 45,000               45,000                       ‐                 

001.000.0.381.375 Interfund Transfer 214,449             264,449                     50,000           

001.000.0.381.402 Cost Allocation 117,921             117,921                     ‐                 

001.000.0.381.403 Sanitation Equipment Reserve ‐                      32,060                       32,060           

Sanitation Vehilce  Reserve ‐                      19,520                       19,520           

SW ‐ Cost Allocation ‐                      11,130                       11,130           

001.000.0.381.524 TOTAL TRANSFERS 377,370             490,080                    

TOTAL ALL REVENUES 4,201,704          4,765,377                



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

General Employees Retirement 170,500             173,325                     2,825             

001.510.0.422.000 Public Safety Retirement 55,650               61,125                       5,475             

001.510.0.422.100 Group Health Insurance 318,108             283,997                     (34,111)          

001.510.0.423.000 HRA Deductible Reimbursement 30,000               30,000                       ‐                 

001.510.0.423.100 PENSION OFFSET 40,925               40,925                       ‐                 

001.510.0.423.200 Workers Comp Insurance 63,485               63,485                       ‐                 

001.510.0.424.000 Unemployment Compensation 1,000                  2,965                          1,965             

001.510.0.425.000 Accounting & Auditing 46,300               43,850                       (2,450)            

001.510.0.432.000 Cell Tower Consultant 5,000                  ‐                              (5,000)            

001.510.0.434.100 EMPLOYEE HOLIDAY BENEFIT 4,000                  6,225                          2,225             

001.510.0.440.200 Ridge League Dinner 1,000                  3,987                          2,987             

001.510.0.440.201 EMPLOYEE QUARTERLY MEETINGS 1,500                  1,791                          291                 

001.510.0.440.300 Tuition Assistance 6,000                  4,417                          (1,583)            

001.510.0.440.400 Property & Liability 120,000             121,940                     1,940             

001.510.0.445.000 Insurance Claims 2,000                  2,500                          500                 

001.510.0.449.000 IT ‐ Software & Hardware 21,000               36,309                       15,309           

001.510.0.452.300 Buildings ‐ Land Purchases ‐                      171,068                     171,068         

001.510.0.462.000 Centennial ‐                      8,729                          8,729             

001.510.0.464.200 LEAVE BUYBACK 15,000               22,719                       7,719             

001.510.0.480.100 PAYROLL OFFSET 5,000                  5,000                          ‐                 

001.510.0.480.102 GENERAL FUND RESERVE (HOLIDAY) 20,000               ‐                              (20,000)          

001.510.0.510.978 Fire Engine Reserve 50,000               50,000                       ‐                 

001.510.0.510.979 PROPERTY & LIABILITY CONTRA (112,572)            (111,622)                    950                 

001.510.0.510.991 WORKER COMP CONTRA (63,485)              (63,485)                      ‐                 

001.510.0.510.992 HEALTH INSURANCE ‐ CONTRA (318,108)            (283,700)                    34,408           

001.510.0.510.993 PUBLC SAFETY RETIREMENT ‐ CONT (55,650)              (61,125)                      (5,475)            

001.510.0.510.994 GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ‐ (170,500)            (173,325)                    (2,825)            

001.510.0.510.995 Sanitation Vehicle Reserve 50,000               ‐                              (50,000)          

001.510.0.510.996 Sanitation Equipment Reserve 20,000               ‐                              (20,000)          

001.510.0.510.997 Local Option Gas Tax Reserve 82,622               87,566                       4,944             

001.510.0.510.998 Building Dept Reserve ‐                      96,930                       96,930           

Contingencies 4,915                  75,232                       70,317           

001.510.0.510.999 W.H.A.T. & RIDGE ART 9,000                  7,000                          (2,000)            

001.510.0.531.000 TOTAL GEN GOVERNMENT 422,690             707,828                    

CITY ATTORNEY

Legal 64,000               51,995                       (12,005)          

001.514.0.431.400 TOTAL ATTORNEY 64,000               51,995                      



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

CITY COMMISSION

Salaries & Wages 13,200               13,200                       ‐                 

001.511.0.411.000 FICA Expense 1,010                  1,010                          ‐                 

001.511.0.421.000 Workers Comp Insurance 226                     93                               (133)               

001.511.0.424.000 Training & Travel 13,000               10,899                       (2,101)            

001.511.0.440.300 Electric 5,500                  6,031                          531                 

001.511.0.443.200 Property & Liability 21,060               20,869                       (191)               

001.511.0.445.000 Office Supplies 500                     ‐                              (500)               

001.511.0.451.000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 1,000                  1,057                          57                   

001.511.0.452.000 Uniforms & Shoes 800                     444                             (356)               

001.511.0.452.940 Subscriptions & Memberships 1,500                  1,425                          (75)                 

001.511.0.454.000 TOTAL CITY COMM 57,796               55,028                      

CITY ADMINISTRATION

Salaries & Wages 159,067             184,705                     25,638           

001.512.1.412.000 FICA Expense 18,394               17,068                       (1,326)            

001.512.1.421.000 Retirement 35,251               44,369                       9,118             

001.512.1.422.000 Life & Health Insurance 20,158               17,118                       (3,040)            

001.512.1.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 399                     1,376                          977                 

001.512.1.424.000 Recording Escrow 500                     ‐                              (500)               

001.512.1.431.200 Contractual Services 7,500                  13,497                       5,997             

001.512.1.434.000 Municipal Code Corp 3,000                  2,857                          (143)               

001.512.1.434.600 Training & Travel 4,000                  5,545                          1,545             

001.512.1.440.300 Expense Allowance 5,000                  4,964                          (36)                 

001.512.1.440.500 Communications 2,600                  2,192                          (408)               

001.512.1.441.000 Electric 2,000                  1,259                          (741)               

001.512.1.443.200 R & M ‐ Auto 500                     592                             92                   

001.512.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Copier 3,500                  1,826                          (1,674)            

001.512.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Software 2,000                  2,480                          480                 

001.512.1.446.348 Legal Advertisement 7,000                  9,022                          2,022             

001.512.1.449.000 Office Supplies 1,000                  437                             (563)               

001.512.1.451.000 Operating Supplies 3,000                  1,333                          (1,667)            

001.512.1.452.000 Fuel 500                     203                             (297)               

001.512.1.452.700 Subscriptions & Memberships 1,900                  1,587                          (313)               

001.512.1.454.000 CITY ADMINISTRATION TOTAL 277,269             312,430                    



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

FINANCE

Salaries & Wages 92,097               93,616                       1,519             

001.513.0.412.000 Overtime 100                     858                             758                 

001.513.0.414.000 FICA Expense 7,053                  6,843                          (210)               

001.513.0.421.000 Retirement 8,975                  9,124                          149                 

001.513.0.422.000 Life & Health Insurance 11,258               10,796                       (462)               

001.513.0.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 91                       580                             489                 

001.513.0.424.000 Employee Exams 50                       ‐                              (50)                 

001.513.0.431.500 Bank Service Charges 500                     238                             (262)               

001.513.0.433.000 Bank Reconciliation Adjustment ‐                      3,682                          3,682             

001.513.0.433.100 Training & Travel 2,000                  2,078                          78                   

001.513.0.440.300 Communications 2,000                  2,895                          895                 

001.513.0.441.000 Electric 2,000                  1,320                          (680)               

001.513.0.443.200 R & M Services 500                     686                             186                 

001.513.0.446.000 R & M ‐ Software 8,500                  7,980                          (520)               

001.513.0.446.348 Office Supplies 1,000                  1,133                          133                 

001.513.0.451.000 Operating Supplies 2,000                  1,248                          (752)               

001.513.0.452.000 Uniforms & Shoes 800                     298                             (502)               

001.513.0.452.940 Subscriptions & Memberships 195                     230                             35                   

001.513.0.454.000 TOTAL FINANCE 139,119             143,605                    



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

POLICE DEPT

Salaries & Wages 581,210             498,062                     (83,148)          

001.521.1.412.000 Overtime Pay 5,000                  16,960                       11,960           

001.521.1.414.000 FICA Expense 44,845               39,671                       (5,174)            

001.521.1.421.000 City Retirement Contribution 51,585               54,825                       3,240             

001.521.1.422.000 State Retirement Contribution 31,535               34,665                       3,130             

001.521.1.422.100 Life & Health Insurance 90,061               67,259                       (22,802)          

001.521.1.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 14,355               16,010                       1,655             

001.521.1.424.000 Employee Exams 1,000                  4,402                          3,402             

001.521.1.431.500 Training & Travel 4,000                  5,736                          1,736             

001.521.1.440.300 Communications 9,300                  8,316                          (984)               

001.521.1.441.000 Electric 10,000               10,370                       370                 

001.521.1.443.200 Property & Liability 5,640                  5,515                          (125)               

001.521.1.445.000 Special Risk Ins. 550                     521                             (29)                 

001.521.1.445.500 R & M Services 6,000                  3,807                          (2,193)            

001.521.1.446.000 R & M ‐ Auto 11,000               15,190                       4,190             

001.521.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Copier 2,700                  2,211                          (489)               

001.521.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Radios 3,500                  5,331                          1,831             

001.521.1.446.200 R & M ‐ IT Contract 3,000                  2,550                          (450)               

001.521.1.446.700 Contractual Services 2,500                  5,977                          3,477             

001.521.1.449.000 Office Supplies 1,000                  839                             (161)               

001.521.1.451.000 Operating Supplies 3,000                  3,036                          36                   

001.521.1.452.000 K‐9 Expenses 1,000                  642                             (358)               

001.521.1.452.012 Computer Replacement 2,500                  4,000                          1,500             

001.521.1.452.100 Fuel 25,000               17,051                       (7,949)            

001.521.1.452.700 Uniforms & Shoes 4,000                  3,591                          (409)               

001.521.1.452.940 Subscriptions & Memberships 300                     720                             420                 

001.521.1.454.000 Capital ‐ Vehicle 30,000               39,615                       9,615             

001.521.1.464.100 Capital ‐ Grant Equipment ‐                      12,411                       12,411           

001.521.1.464.200 TOTAL POLICE DEPT 944,581             879,283                    



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

FIRE DEPT

Salaries & Wages 316,520             285,589                     (30,931)          

001.522.1.412.000 Part Time Wages 30,000               41,430                       11,430           

001.522.1.413.000 Overtime Pay 2,000                  3,129                          1,129             

001.522.1.414.000 FICA Expense 26,662               25,079                       (1,583)            

001.522.1.421.000 CITY RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION 26,500               29,107                       2,607             

001.522.1.422.000 STATE CONTRIBUTION 21,000               27,682                       6,682             

001.522.1.422.100 Life & Health Insurance 39,402               40,459                       1,057             

001.522.1.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 16,150               15,297                       (853)               

001.522.1.424.000 Employee Exams 3,000                  2,070                          (930)               

001.522.1.431.500 Training & Travel 3,000                  2,533                          (467)               

001.522.1.440.300 Communications 2,700                  3,594                          894                 

001.522.1.441.000 Electric 8,000                  8,300                          300                 

001.522.1.443.200 Property & Liability 6,480                  6,412                          (68)                 

001.522.1.445.000 Special Risk Ins. 550                     521                             (29)                 

001.522.1.445.500 R & M Services 3,000                  6,239                          3,239             

001.522.1.446.000 R & M ‐ Auto 15,000               11,323                       (3,677)            

001.522.1.446.100 R & M ‐ SCBA 1,500                  1,157                          (343)               

001.522.1.446.110 R & M ‐ Radio 3,000                  3,000                          ‐                 

001.522.1.446.200 R & M ‐ Software 1,500                  765                             (735)               

001.522.1.446.348 Office Supplies 500                     458                             (42)                 

001.522.1.451.000 Operating Supplies 2,500                  2,659                          159                 

001.522.1.452.000 Fire Prevention Progam 1,000                  866                             (134)               

001.522.1.452.140 Fuel 6,000                  3,178                          (2,822)            

001.522.1.452.700 Diesel 4,000                  972                             (3,028)            

001.522.1.452.800 Uniforms & Shoes 4,000                  2,661                          (1,339)            

001.522.1.452.940 Bunker Gear ‐ Replacements ‐                      4,998                          4,998             

001.522.1.452.941 Subscriptions & Memberships 400                     195                             (205)               

001.522.1.454.000 TOTAL FIRE DEPT 544,364             529,673                    



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Salaries & Wages 124,076               123,182                      (894)                 

001.524.1.412.000 Overtime Pay 200                     457                             257                 

001.524.1.414.000 FICA Expense 9,507                  9,625                          118                 

001.524.1.421.000 Retirement 8,975                  9,124                          149                 

001.524.1.422.000 Life & Health Insurance 11,258               11,262                       4                     

001.524.1.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 607                     2,637                          2,030             

001.524.1.424.000 Professional Services 5,000                  21,689                       16,689           

001.524.1.431.000 CFRPC Contract 15,000               15,000                       ‐                 

001.524.1.431.100 Way Finding Sign Program ‐                      24,931                       24,931           

001.524.1.431.200 CRA /Expenses 20,165               ‐                              (20,165)          

Moved to own page Employee Exams 100                     102                             2                     

001.524.1.431.500 Contractual Service ‐ Magistra 4,000                  1,329                          (2,671)            

001.524.1.434.660 Training & Travel 2,000                  1,014                          (986)               

001.524.1.440.300 Communications 3,000                  3,262                          262                 

001.524.1.441.000 Electric 12,000               12,148                       148                 

001.524.1.443.200 Property & Liability 1,176                  1,243                          67                   

001.524.1.445.000 R & M Services 500                     207                             (293)               

001.524.1.446.000 R & M ‐ Auto 500                     560                             60                   

001.524.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Copier 6,500                  5,772                          (728)               

001.524.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Code Enforcement Mowin ‐                      4,620                          4,620             

001.524.1.446.220 R & M ‐ Software 1,400                  945                             (455)               

001.524.1.446.348 Office Supplies 500                     348                             (152)               

001.524.1.451.000 Operating Supplies 1,500                  726                             (774)               

001.524.1.452.000 Fuel 1,000                  508                             (492)               

001.524.1.452.700 Subscriptions & Memberships 200                     724                             524                 

001.524.1.454.000 TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 229,164             251,415                    



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN

Salaries & Wages 37,178               43,913                       6,735             

001.540.1.412.000 FICA Expense 2,844                  3,318                          474                 

001.540.1.421.000 Retirement 8,970                  4,559                          (4,411)            

001.540.1.422.000 Life & Health Insurance 5,629                  5,686                          57                   

001.540.1.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 2,024                  4,616                          2,592             

001.540.1.424.000 Employee Exams 300                     ‐                              (300)               

001.540.1.431.500 Training & Travel 1,000                  821                             (179)               

001.540.1.440.300 Communications 4,000                  3,931                          (69)                 

001.540.1.441.000 Electric 1,500                  1,501                          1                     

001.540.1.443.200 Property & Liability 1,092                  1,057                          (35)                 

001.540.1.445.000 R & M Services 500                     ‐                              (500)               

001.540.1.446.000 R & M ‐ Copier 1,000                  1,162                          162                 

001.540.1.446.120 Office Supplies 500                     985                             485                 

001.540.1.451.000 Operating Supplies 500                     957                             457                 

001.540.1.452.000 Uniforms & Shoes 5,000                  6,860                          1,860             

001.540.1.452.940 Subscriptions & Memberships 200                     63                               (137)               

001.540.1.454.000 Stormwater Cost Allocation (11,130)              ‐                              11,130           

TOTAL PW ADMIN 61,107               79,429                      

BUILDING MAINT

Engineering 5,000                  ‐                              (5,000)            

001.519.1.431.300 Communications 1,400                  1,565                          165                 

001.519.1.441.000 Electric 500                     493                             (7)                    

001.519.1.443.200 Property & Liability 3,456                  3,409                          (47)                 

001.519.1.445.000 R & M Services 15,000               35,589                       20,589           

001.519.1.446.000 R & M Projects 30,000               64,546                       34,546           

001.519.1.446.100 Land Swap with IFAS ‐                      35,493                       35,493           

001.519.1.446.300 Lighting Claim ‐ GF ‐                      7,265                          7,265             

001.519.1.446.400 Operating Supplies 15,000               12,851                       (2,149)            

001.519.1.452.000 TOTAL BLDG MAINT 70,356               161,211                    



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

SANITATION

Salaries & Wages 79,149               79,914                       765                 

001.534.1.412.000 Overtime Pay 7,000                  2,831                          (4,169)            

001.534.1.414.000 FICA Expense 6,590                  6,351                          (239)               

001.534.1.421.000 Retirement 13,460               13,683                       223                 

001.534.1.422.000 Life & Health Insurance 16,887               14,565                       (2,322)            

001.534.1.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 5,400                  7,725                          2,325             

001.534.1.424.000 Employee Exams 500                     396                             (104)               

001.534.1.431.500 Recycling ‐                      7,623                          7,623             

001.534.1.434.200 Property & Liability 6,768                  6,641                          (127)               

001.534.1.445.000 R & M Services 1,000                  1,217                          217                 

001.534.1.446.000 R & M ‐ Auto 35,000               58,184                       23,184           

001.534.1.446.100 Disposal Fees ‐ Polk County 70,000               80,970                       10,970           

001.534.1.449.110 Disposal Fees ‐ Brush 23,000               25,567                       2,567             

001.534.1.449.150 Operating Supplies 1,000                  448                             (552)               

001.534.1.452.000 Diesel 55,000               28,617                       (26,383)          

001.534.1.452.800 Capital ‐ Equipment ‐                      50,405                       50,405           

001.534.1.464.100 Capital‐ Vehicle ‐                      69,975                       69,975           

001.534.1.464.200 TOTAL SANITATION 320,754             455,112                    



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

ROADS AND STEETS

Salaries & Wages 120,658             107,695                     (12,963)          

001.541.1.412.000 Overtime Pay 5,000                  3,943                          (1,057)            

001.541.1.414.000 FICA Expense 9,613                  8,475                          (1,138)            

001.541.1.421.000 Retirement 22,435               22,806                       371                 

001.541.1.422.000 Life & Health Insurance 28,144               23,509                       (4,635)            

001.541.1.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 10,120               9,584                          (536)               

001.541.1.424.000 Engineering 1,000                  953                             (47)                 

001.541.1.431.300 Employee Exams 400                     684                             284                 

001.541.1.431.500 INMATE SQUAD: 1 DAY 12,000               13,834                       1,834             

001.541.1.434.000 Electric 56,000               58,559                       2,559             

001.541.1.443.200 Rental Equipment 1,000                  ‐                              (1,000)            

001.541.1.444.100 Property & Liability 1,776                  1,678                          (98)                 

001.541.1.445.000 R & M Services 10,000               3,036                          (6,964)            

001.541.1.446.000 R & M ‐ Traffic Signs 4,000                  4,078                          78                   

001.541.1.446.020 R & M ‐ Traffic Signals ‐                      4,674                          4,674             

001.541.1.446.080 R & M ‐ Auto 12,000               12,447                       447                 

001.541.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Street Sweeper Contract 8,000                  6,471                          (1,529)            

001.541.1.446.200 R & M ‐ Street Lights 3,000                  17,038                       14,038           

001.541.1.446.280 R & M ‐ Tree Maint 3,000                  1,925                          (1,075)            

001.541.1.446.290 R & M ‐ Cemeteries 4,000                  4,172                          172                 

001.541.1.446.500 R & M ‐ Right of Way 10,000               7,324                          (2,676)            

001.541.1.446.600 EQUIPMENT 5,000                  3,317                          (1,683)            

001.541.1.446.700 Operating Supplies 7,000                  6,137                          (863)               

001.541.1.452.000 Fuel 18,000               10,464                       (7,536)            

001.541.1.452.700 Diesel Charges 3,000                  2,290                          (710)               

001.541.1.452.800 Uniforms & Shoes ‐                      900                             900                 

001.541.1.452.940 Road & Sidewalk Repair 12,000               26,476                       14,476           

001.541.1.453.000 Capital ‐ Machinery & Equipment 90,000               100,653                     10,653           

001.541.1.464.000 TOTAL STREETS 457,146             463,122                    



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

CENTRAL GARAGE & MOTOR POOL

Salaries & Wages 31,710               31,789                       79                   

001.589.1.412.000 Overtime Pay 300                     631                             331                 

001.589.1.414.000 FICA Expense 2,449                  2,465                          16                   

001.589.1.421.000 Retirement 4,485                  4,559                          74                   

001.589.1.422.000 Life & Health Insurance 5,629                  5,642                          13                   

001.589.1.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 965                     960                             (5)                    

001.589.1.424.000 Employee Exams 100                     84                               (16)                 

001.589.1.431.000 Communications 500                     215                             (285)               

001.589.1.441.000 Electric 3,000                  3,467                          467                 

001.589.1.443.200 Property & Liability 12,216               11,966                       (250)               

001.589.1.445.000 R & M Services 500                     328                             (172)               

001.589.1.446.000 R & M ‐ Auto 500                     268                             (232)               

001.589.1.446.100 Operating Supplies 6,000                  14,589                       8,589             

001.589.1.452.000 IT ‐ Software & Hardware 100                     ‐                              (100)               

001.589.1.452.300 Fuel 100                     51                               (49)                 

001.589.1.452.700 Supplies ‐ Diesel 64,200               34,005                       (30,195)          

001.589.1.452.800 Supplies ‐ Gas & Oil 85,300               56,657                       (28,643)          

001.589.1.452.900 Subscriptions & Memberships 1,500                  ‐                              (1,500)            

001.589.1.454.000 Reimbursement ‐ Labor (15,000)              (8,702)                        6,298             

001.589.1.458.900 Reimbursement ‐ Fuel (85,300)              (52,565)                      32,735           

001.589.1.458.901 Reimbursement ‐ Diesel (64,200)              (32,963)                      31,237           

001.589.1.458.902 Capital ‐ Machinery & Equipmen 6,000                  3,389                          (2,611)            

001.589.1.464.200 TOTAL CGMP 61,054               76,835                      



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

PARKS

Salaries & Wages 149,518             145,417                     (4,101)            

001.572.1.412.000 Overtime Pay 1,000                  2,124                          1,124             

001.572.1.414.000 FICA Expense 11,515               11,222                       (293)               

001.572.1.421.000 Retirement 22,435               22,807                       372                 

001.572.1.422.000 Life & Health Insurance 28,144               25,357                       (2,787)            

001.572.1.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 4,000                  3,927                          (73)                 

001.572.1.424.000 Employee Exams 300                     821                             521                 

001.572.1.431.500 Contractual Services ‐                      3,080                          3,080             

001.572.1.434.000 Training & Travel 1,000                  129                             (871)               

001.572.1.440.300 Communications 3,000                  2,082                          (918)               

001.572.1.441.000 Cell Phone 600                     297                             (303)               

001.572.1.441.100 Electric 7,000                  8,245                          1,245             

001.572.1.443.200 Rental Equipment 500                     363                             (137)               

001.572.1.444.100 Property & Liability 2,952                  2,906                          (46)                 

001.572.1.445.000 R & M Services 12,000               16,401                       4,401             

001.572.1.446.000 R & M ‐ Auto 3,000                  4,689                          1,689             

001.572.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Copier 3,000                  3,018                          18                   

001.572.1.446.120 R & M ‐ DOCKS 20,000               12,112                       (7,888)            

001.572.1.446.130 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 15,000               20,200                       5,200             

001.572.1.448.000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500                     225                             (275)               

001.572.1.451.000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 15,000               16,144                       1,144             

001.572.1.452.000 SUMMER RECREATION EXPENSE 7,000                  9,083                          2,083             

001.572.1.452.100 Fuel 9,000                  4,806                          (4,194)            

001.572.1.452.700 Diesel 500                     305                             (195)               

001.572.1.452.800 Uniforms & Shoes 1,000                  1,975                          975                 

001.572.1.452.940 Capital ‐ Equipment 8,000                  12,326                       4,326             

001.572.1.464.100 Capital ‐ Improvements 30,000               29,875                       (125)               

001.572.1.464.200 Veteran's Memorial ‐                      1,132                          1,132             

001.572.1.464.300 TOTAL PARKS 355,964             361,068                    

MACKAY ESTATES

Communications 600                     600                             ‐                 

001.572.2.441.000 Electric 6,000                  6,625                          625                 

001.572.2.443.200 Property & Liability 6,576                  6,552                          (24)                 

001.572.2.445.000 R & M Services 6,000                  3,048                          (2,952)            

001.572.2.446.000 Contractual Maint Services 4,500                  4,500                          ‐                 

001.572.2.449.000 Operating Supplies 4,000                  5,714                          1,714             

001.572.2.452.000 Capital ‐ Building Improvement 30,000               64,577                       34,577           

001.572.2.464.100 TOTAL MACKAY ESTATES 57,676               91,616                      



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

LIBRARY

Salaries & Wages 80,597               81,088                       491                 

001.571.1.413.000 FICA Expense 6,166                  6,197                          31                   

001.571.1.421.000 Retirement 4,485                  4,559                          74                   

001.571.1.422.000 Life & Health Insurance 5,629                  5,641                          12                   

001.571.1.423.000 Workers Comp Insurance 180                     414                             234                 

001.571.1.424.000 Employee Exams 200                     ‐                              (200)               

001.571.1.431.500 Training & Travel 500                     99                               (401)               

001.571.1.440.300 Communications 5,480                  3,734                          (1,746)            

001.571.1.441.000 Electric 7,000                  9,442                          2,442             

001.571.1.443.200 Property & Liability 1,428                  1,531                          103                 

001.571.1.445.000 R & M Services 500                     3,815                          3,315             

001.571.1.446.000 R & M ‐ Copier 3,000                  2,913                          (87)                 

001.571.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Software 1,500                  788                             (712)               

001.571.1.446.438 R & M ‐ Books 15,000               15,854                       854                 

001.571.1.446.660 Office Supplies 1,000                  1,485                          485                 

001.571.1.451.000 Operating Supplies 3,000                  2,555                          (445)               

001.571.1.452.000 Youth Programs 2,000                  2,766                          766                 

001.571.1.452.160 Subscriptions & Memberships 1,000                  1,931                          931                 

001.571.1.454.000 Capital ‐ Computers ‐                      915                             915                 

001.571.1.464.100 TOTAL LIBRARY 138,665             145,727                    

TOTAL GEN FUND EXPENDITURE 4,201,705          4,765,377                 563,672         



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

CRA

ORIGINAL  CURRENT

101.000.0.311.210 Tax Increment ‐ County 9,580           12,438         

101.000.0.311.211 Tax Increment ‐ City 10,585         13,670         

101.000.0.361.000 Interest ‐                3                   

20,165         26,111         

101.515.1.432.000 Audit 600               ‐               

101.515.1.440.300 Travel & Training 565               973              

101.515.1.446.00 R & M Services/Projects 19,000         ‐               

20,165         973              

CRA Fund 25,138$       



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

UTILITY BILLING RECEIPTS

401.000.0.343.302 Water Revenue 610,000               644,540                34,540        

401.000.0.343.303 Water Adjustments ‐                        (5,686)                   (5,686)         

401.000.0.343.308 Temp Water Service 2,000                    2,350                     350              

401.000.0.343.305 Irrigation 130,000               174,939                44,939        

401.000.0.343.500 Sewer Revenue 1,250,000            1,326,790             76,790        

401.000.0.343.503 Sewer Adjustment ‐                        (1,084)                   (1,084)         

401.000.0.343.550 Tap Fees 8,000                    11,550                  3,550           

401.000.0.343.304 Turn On Fee 22,000                 22,040                  40                

401.000.0.365.000 Scrap Metal 2,000                    509                        (1,491)         

401.000.0.369.000 Non Payment Fees 35,000                 28,250                  (6,750)         

401.000.0.369.200 Hay Proceeds 1,000                    ‐                         (1,000)         

401.000.0.343.314 Water Meter Fee 40,000                 78,500                  38,500        

401.000.0.343.310 NSF Check Fee 1,500                    1,225                     (275)             

401.000.0.343.306 Late Fees 51,000                 48,478                  (2,522)         

401.000.0.343.312 Turn Off Fee 16,000                 18,970                  2,970           

401.000.0.343.317 Service Work Orders 500                       2,295                     1,795           

401.000.0.343.311 Bad Debt Collections 2,000                    3,560                     1,560           

401.000.0.361.000 Interest ‐ Bank 15,000                 26,539                  11,539        

401.000.0.361.100 Interest ‐ Investmen ‐                        ‐                         ‐               

401.000.0.369.300 Insurance Proceeds ‐                        30,425                  30,425        

401.000.0.349.110 Cash Over/Short ‐                        65                          65                

TOTAL UTILITY REVENUE 2,186,000            2,414,255            



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

DEBT SERVICE

401.000.0.517.716 Loan F‐EF Refinanced 238,445               238,443               

401.000.0.517.719 Wastewater Loan 7190 315,645               315,646               

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 554,090               554,089               

WATER OPERATIONS

401.533.2.412.000 Salaries & Wages 10,377                 8,616                     (1,761)         

401.533.2.421.000 FICA Expense 794                       621                        (173)             

401.533.2.424.000 Workers Comp Insuran 1,290                    1,561                     271              

401.533.2.431.300 Engineering 10,000                 2,400                     (7,600)         

401.533.2.434.000 Contractual Services 5,000                    4,735                     (265)             

401.533.2.434.100 Engineering‐ Water M 14,000                 15,130                  1,130           

401.533.2.440.100 Land Leases 2,000                    2,341                     341              

401.533.2.440.300 Training & Travel 1,000                    526                        (474)             

401.533.2.443.200 Electric 40,000                 43,169                  3,169           

401.533.2.445.000 Property & Liability 8,424                    8,474                     50                

401.533.2.446.000 R & M Services 25,000                 24,369                  (631)             

401.533.2.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 500                       ‐                         (500)             

401.533.2.446.200 R & M ‐ Water Tower 500                       ‐                         (500)             

401.533.2.452.000 Operating Supplies 1,500                    1,648                     148              

401.533.2.452.600 Chemicals 45,000                 50,378                  5,378           

401.533.2.452.700 Fuel 3,000                    ‐                         (3,000)         

401.533.2.454.000 Subscriptions & Memb 600                       560                        (40)               

401.533.2.463.800 Water Improvements ‐ ‐                        5,250                     5,250           

401.533.2.464.200 Capital ‐ Machinery 68,000                 62,151                  (5,849)         

TOTAL WATER OPS 236,985               231,929               



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

401.535.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 90,548                 92,874                  2,326           

401.535.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 4,000                    1,469                     (2,531)         

401.535.1.421.000 FICA Expense 7,233                    7,222                     (11)               

401.535.1.422.000 Retirement 13,460                 13,683                  223              

401.535.1.423.000 Life & Health Insura 16,887                 15,965                  (922)             

401.535.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insuran 2,379                    2,283                     (96)               

401.535.1.431.300 Engineering 15,000                 2,999                     (12,001)       

401.535.1.431.500 Employee Exams 300                       144                        (156)             

401.535.1.434.100 Contractual Services 500                       ‐                         (500)             

401.535.1.434.500 Sampling of Wells 12,000                 11,032                  (968)             

401.535.1.434.510 Sludge Hauling 8,000                    31,471                  23,471        

401.535.1.440.300 Training & Travel 1,000                    14                          (986)             

401.535.1.441.000 Communications 8,000                    6,367                     (1,633)         

401.535.1.441.100 Cell Phone 600                       581                        (19)               

401.535.1.443.200 Electric 87,000                 89,470                  2,470           

401.535.1.445.000 Property & Liability 33,528                 33,365                  (163)             

401.535.1.446.000 R & M Services 40,000                 64,394                  24,394        

401.535.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 1,000                    403                        (597)             

401.535.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 2,500                    1,819                     (681)             

401.535.1.452.600 Chemicals 90,000                 88,884                  (1,116)         

401.535.1.452.700 Fuel 500                       523                        23                

401.535.1.452.800 Diesel Fuel 200                       ‐                         (200)             

401.535.1.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 750                       300                        (450)             

TOTAL WASTE WATER 435,385               465,262               

SUMMIT GROVE

401.535.2.464.100 Sprayfield Expansion ‐                        85,151                  85,151        

WASTE WATER OPERATIONS



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

SERVICE

401.536.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 253,572               250,434                (3,138)         

401.536.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 6,000                    4,890                     (1,110)         

401.536.1.421.000 FICA Expense 19,857                 19,587                  (270)             

401.536.1.422.000 Retirement 35,900                 36,495                  595              

401.536.1.423.000 Life & Health Insura 45,031                 40,440                  (4,591)         

401.536.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insuran 5,295                    4,478                     (817)             

401.536.1.425.000 Unemployment Comp ‐                        29                          29                

401.536.1.431.300 Engineering 5,000                    2,738                     (2,262)         

401.536.1.431.500 Employee Exams 500                       288                        (212)             

401.536.1.440.300 Training & Travel 1,000                    770                        (230)             

401.536.1.441.000 Communications 22,000                 24,801                  2,801           

401.536.1.441.100 Cell Phone 1,800                    838                        (962)             

401.536.1.443.200 Electric 2,500                    1,694                     (806)             

401.536.1.444.100 Rental Equipment 500                       ‐                         (500)             

401.536.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 10,000                 12,313                  2,313           

401.536.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Copier 1,400                    2,513                     1,113           

401.536.1.446.348 R & M ‐ Software 3,500                    3,622                     122              

401.536.1.446.350 R & M ‐ Water Lines 22,000                 21,068                  (932)             

401.536.1.446.360 R & M ‐ Fire Hydrant 1,000                    6,077                     5,077           

401.536.1.446.370 R & M ‐ Lift Station 70,000                 60,527                  (9,473)         

401.536.1.446.380 R & M ‐ Sewer Lines 10,000                 6,109                     (3,891)         

401.536.1.446.390 EQUIPMENT 5,000                    1,684                     (3,316)         

401.536.1.446.400 Lighting Claim ‐ EF ‐                        30,425                  30,425        

401.536.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 5,000                    3,908                     (1,092)         

401.536.1.452.700 Fuel 20,000                 15,968                  (4,032)         

401.536.1.452.800 Diesel 1,500                    726                        (774)             

401.536.1.452.900 Meter & Fittings ‐ N 30,000                 76,401                  46,401        

401.536.1.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 3,000                    5,468                     2,468           

401.536.1.464.200 Capital ‐ Machinery 25,000                 33,510                  8,510           

401.536.1.536.910 Interfund Transfer 332,370               382,370                50,000        

401.536.1.536.999 Contingencies 20,815                 27,653                  6,838           

TOTAL SERVICE 959,540               1,077,824            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,186,000            2,414,255            



Ordinance 1376‐16

Exhibit "A"

ORIGINAL  CURRENT VARIANCE

401.000.0.343.900 Stormwater Revenue 55,000         59,848           4,848             

401.538.1.431.300 Engineering ‐ Master 10,000         2,375              (7,625)            

401.538.1.432.000 Accounting & Auditin 700               ‐                  (700)               

401.538.1.434.000 Contractual Services 1,000            3,228              2,228             

401.538.1.440.300 Training & Travel 500               35                   (465)               

401.538.1.443.200 Electric 160               ‐                  (160)               

401.538.1.446.000 R & M Services 4,000            6,389              2,389             

401.538.1.446.100 R & M ‐  Auto 1,000            ‐                  (1,000)            

401.538.1.446.200 Street Sweeping Cont 10,000         10,186           186                 

401.538.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 500               542                 42                   

401.538.1.452.700 Fuel 1,200            69                   (1,131)            

401.538.1.452.940 SUBSCRIPTIONS & MEMB 700               ‐                  (700)               

401.538.1.458.903 Cost Allocation 11,130         11,130           ‐                  

401.538.1.999.000 Contingencies 14,110         ‐                  (14,110)          

55,000         33,954          

Stormwater Reserve  25,894        



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 7, 2016 

 
 
 

6.) PURCHASE: PUBLIC WORKS VEHICLE 
 

ISSUE:  The City Commission will consider the purchase of a budgeted vehicle replacement in 
the Public Works department. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

 Bids: F-250 Utility Service Vehicle 
 
ANALYSIS:  The current FY 16/17 budget includes $25,000 for the purchase of a replacement 
vehicle in the Public Works department. The proposed purchase is for a 2017 Ford F150 pickup 
truck. The vehicle will replace a 2000 F-250 utility service vehicle that is at the end of its service 
life. 
 
City staff has solicited the following bids for the purchase: 
 Bartow Ford: $26,369 
 Weikert Ford: $25,988 
 Bill Jarrett Ford: $26,456 

 
Retail purchase price of the vehicle is $33,730 (23% savings). 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Purchase the F150 pickup truck from Weikert Ford in the amount 
of $25,988. 










